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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH 03302-1806

603-271-5610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609

TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/nhdoc

Helen E. Honks

Commissioner

Robin H. Moddaus

Director

November 23, 2020

His Excellency, Govemor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the NH Department of Corrections (NHDOC) to amend an existing contract (Contract U1063418), with Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (VC# 177195-3007), 34 Jefferson Road, Whitefleld, NH 03598, for the provision of
Guardianship services by exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $21,900.00 from
$26,304.00 to $48,204.00, and extending the completion date from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2023 effective upon approval of
Govemor and Executive Council. The original contract. Agreement, was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council
on June 6, 2018, Item #77. 100% General Funds

Funds are available in account, Medical-Dental: 02-46-46-465010-8234-101-500729 as follows with the authority to adjust
encumbrances between Stale fiscal years within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and justified. Funds
for FY 2022-2023 are contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds.

jOriginal Contract. Agreement: Tri-County Community Action Program

Account Description FY 19-21 FY 22 FY 23 Total

02-46-46-465010-8234-101 -500729 Medical Providers 26,304.00 - - 26,304.00

Amendment Agreement #1 |

Account Description FY 19-21 FY 22 FY 23 Total

02-46-46-465010-8234-101 -500729 Medical Providers
- 10,950.00 10,950.00 21,900.00

iTotal Contract Amount 26.304.00 10,950.00 10,950.00 1$ 48.204.0q'

EXPLANATION

This Contract is for the provision of guardianship and protective services to safeguard the liberty and well being of persons
who because of functional limitations have suffered, are suffering, or are likely to suffer substantial hami due to an inability
to provide for personal needs, food, clothing, shelter, healthcare, safety or an inability to manage their property or financial
affairs. Guardianship and protective services under this contract are to be provided to persons at risk of hami to person or
estate whom the State of New Hampshire has responsibility to safeguard pursuant to RSA 2I-H:8.

RcspectJully Submitted,

t. Hanks

Commissioner

Promoilng Public Safc(y through Integrity. Respect, Professionalism, Coliaboralion and Accountability



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF MEDICAL & FORENSIC
SERVICES
P.O.BOXlBOe Piinla L.

CONCORD, NH 0at02-1806 Director

eOS.271-6610 FAX: l-SftS-908^09

TDDAcccm: l-e00-7$S-2864

v.nlLrov/nlidec

AMENDMENT AGREEMENT #1

This amendment is between the State of New Hampshire, acting by and through the STATE OF
NEW HAMPSHIRE, DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS ("State" or "Department"^ and TRI-
COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PLAN, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) ("Contractor'^, a New Han^shiie
Non-profit Coiporation with a place of business at 30 Exchange Street, Beriin, NH 03570.

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Contract ("Agrecmoit 2018-77") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on June 6, 2018, Item #77 with m effective date of July 1,2018, the Contractor agreed
to perform Guardianship Services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the original Agreement
as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

- WHEREAS, die State and Contractor have agreed to make changes to the completion date and
price limitation of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 of the Agreement and Exhibit A,
Paragraph 2., Terms of Contract, the State may renew the Agreement for one (1) additional period of up to
two (2) years only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the Agreement for two (2) additional years and increase
the price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the origina] Agreement and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follow:

To amend as follows:

1. Forni P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read: "June 30,2023";

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price limitation, to read: "$48,204.00" a total
increase of $21,900.00;

3. Scope of Services, Exhibit A Section 2., Terms of Contract, to read:

"Amendment #1 exercises the option to renew for one (1) additional period of up to two
(2) years and shall became effective on July 1,2021 for the period ofJuly 1,2021 through
June 30,2023 with the approval of the Commissioner ofthe NH Department of CdrTections
(NHDOC) and upon Governor and Executive Council (GAC) approval."

4. That all other provisions of the original Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Prmwdng Public Safety througb Integrity, Respect, ProfenioDib&m, Collaboration and AccoimiBfailjty
Page I of 2



SIGNATURE PAGE TO AMENDMENT AGREEMENT m TO: Guardianship Soviccs 2018-77
(**Agreeanent").

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF

CORRECTIONS

By:
Name: Me E. Hanks

Title: Comnussioner

TRI-COUNTy COMMUNITY ACftlON PLAN, INC.

By:
Name: JeannVl.^ Robillard
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Date:

STATBOF

COUNTY OF (W-
On this day of ftteptr 2QS0 . before me.rhrghA KNwv the undersigned officer,

penonally appeared l^wn to n\e (or satisfactorily proven) to be tbe person whose
name is sign^ above and acknowledged that be/she executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

fn wijp^ss thereof, I hereto my hand and official seal.

NolaivTS!^blic/Justice of tbe Peace

My Commission Expires: /6>ff9la5

AppiovaTBy NJi. Attorney General
(Form, Substance and Execution)

oUry

Date

A}^roved by tbe N.H. Govemor and Executive Council Date

PnxQotini Pwblic Safety thfough huesriiy, Respect, RrofctttofwRm, Colttbortiion aod AccouotsUKty
ris«2or2



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTinCATE

I. Wilton M. G«inn,, Secr«»y of Slut of Ac St«e of Now HtopAirc. <io h<ooby oortily A« TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY
ACnON program, inc. ,TRI-COUNTY CAP) G . New Nor^f,. Conxnolioo ,cEi«c,cd » toocto btonc io
Now H.o.pAi,o.n 18. IMS. I R«to ccAlfr A« oil fco. ond docomcm. r«^ ty Ac Soo™, of S»o'. office ho,,
been received and ii b good nandiitg as f«r as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 61020

Cmlticatc Number: 0004969574

c

%

o

%

•ft

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of Nw Hampshire,

this 3 l5t day of July- AD. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Stale



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

2020 ANNUAL REPORT

Filed

Dale Filed; 7/31/2020

EfTcclivc Dale: 7/31/2020

Business ID: 63020

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate

BUSINESS NAME

BUSINESS TYPE

BUSINESS ID

STATE OF INCORPORATION

TRI-COUNTV COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP)

Domestic NonproFit Corporation

63020

New Hampshire

CURRENT PRINCIPAL OFFICE ADDRESS CURRENT MAILING ADDRESS

30 EXCHANGE ST

BERLIN, NH, 03570, USA
30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH, 03570, USA

PRINCIPAL PURPOSE(S)

NAICS CODE NAICS SUBCODE

OTHER / CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION

OFFICER / DIRECTOR INFORMATION

NAME BUSINESS ADDRESS TITLE

Sandy Alonzo 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA
Chairman of the Board of

Directors

Anne Barber 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA Director

Michael Dewar 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA Director

Karolina Br/osowska 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA Director

Julie Davis 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA Director

Linda Masimilla 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03598, USA Director

Tricia Garrison 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA Director

Richard Mcleod 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA Director

Jeanne L Robillard 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA Chief Executive Officer

Randall S Pilotle 30 Exchange St, Berlin, NH, 03570, USA Chief Financial Officer

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the statements on this report are true to the best of my information, knowledge and belief.

Title: Chief Financial Officer

Business Name: Tri-County CAP, Inc.

Signature: Randall Pilottc

Name of Signer: Randall Pilottc

Title of Signer: Chief Financial Officer

Mailing Address • Corporation Division, Ni l Department of State, 107 North Main Street, Room 204, Concord, Ni l 03301-4989
Physical Location - State l-Iousc Annex, 3rd Floor, Room 317, 25 Capitol Street, Concord, NM

Phone: (603)271-3246 | Fax: (603)271-3247 j Email: corporatc(^sos.nh.gov | Website: sos.nh.gov
- Page 1 of 1 -



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)

Sandy Alonzo . ChairA^ice Chair/Secretaiy of Tri-County Comrounity Action Program, mc.
(Name) (Corporation name)

(Hereinafter the "Corporation"), a ^Ncw Hampshire corporalion, hereby certify that: (1) 1 am the duly
(Stfite)

elected and acting Claic/Secretary of the Corporation; (2) I miiintptrt and have custody and am familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such
books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized Resolution 4FY21. on September 29th
2m

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) arc authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the
Conwration any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services;

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer
(Name) (Position)

Randall Pilottc Chief Fmancml Officer
(Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hamp^hiw
(State of incorporation)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand as the Chair/ Vice Chair/Secretary of the corporation this

52jlay of October. 2020

STATE OF New Hampshire
COUNTY OF Coos

hair/Vi ir/S ary

On this(32day of October. 2020__, before rae, Christina Morin the undersigned Officer, personally
appeared Sandv Alonzo who acknowledged her/himself to be the Board Oiair of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc. , a corporation and that she/he as such Roaid Cbflir being
authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

CHRISTINA MORIN. Notary Public
State Of New Hampshire hiertaryPublic/Justice afthe Pfjtcf

My Commission Expires December 19.2023 ^ 0^ we Fcace ,
Commission Expirafjon Date:



TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

4FY21 Board Resolution: Resolution of the Corporation

Authority to Sipn

The Board of Directors ofTri County Community Action Program. Inc. (the "Coiporalion")
takes the following action.

ReioJved,

That the Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc. Chief Executive Officer <CEO) Jeanne L.
Robillard, or the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Randall S. Pilotte and Chief Programs Ofhccr
(CPO) Kristy Letendre acting as a designec of the CEO. are herdiy authorized on behalf of this
Coiporation to enter into contracts with the Federal Government, State of New Hampsliiro, and
any other parties as deemed necessary and to execute any and all documents, agreements and
other instruments and amendments, revisions or modifications tfiereto, as may be deemed
necessary, desirable or aiqjTOpriale for the corporation; this authorization being enforced and
effective until June 30*^, 2021.

Attest, the resolution adopted therein was duly authorized by the Board of Directors on
September 29'\ 2020

QjisnrvTk/By. ^
Name: Sandy Alonzo
Title: Board Chair

Name: Anne Barber

Title: Board Vice Chair



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

11/09/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

NAME*^^ Karen Shaughnessy
(603)669-3218 (603)645^331

AOORESS- kshaughnessy@crossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A: ^'^klo Marine Holdings, inc.
INSURED

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berlin NH 03570

INSURER B: State Health Care and Human Services Setf-

IN8URERC;

INSURER D ;

INSURER E ;

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 20-21 All Lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CeRTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EFF
(mm/oo/yyyyi

TOUT5UBR WLICVEVF
tMM/DO/YYYYlTYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER LtMrsLTR

X COMMERCIAL CENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

DWWCE TO'RERTEP
PREMISES (Ea occufreocel

PHPK2150055 07/01/2020 07/01/2021

MED EXP (Any one paoon)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTX POLICY

OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
IEafccWcw)

1.000.000

100.000

5.000

1.000,000

3.000,000

3.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANYALfTOX

1.000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2150050 07/01/2020 07/01/2021 BODILY INJURY (Per ecddenl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aceidenil

Underinsured motorlsl 1.000,000

X

UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS LIAB

OED

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OC^URR^NCE 2.000.000

PHUB728176 07/01/2020 07/01/2021 2.000.000

X RETENTION $ 10.000
OTH-
ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFRCERAIEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mendetorjr In NH)
If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

HCHS20200000241 (3a.) NH 02/01/2020 02/01/2021
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
1.000,000

Professional Liability
PHPK2150055 07/01/2020 07/01/2021

Each Occurrence

Aggregate

$1,000,000

$3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AddltionsI Remsrtis Schedule, mey be etuched If more space Is required)

State of New Hampshire. NH Department of Corrections, is Included as additional insured with respects to CGL as required by written contract with named
insured.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Slate of New Hampshire

NH Department of Corrections

PO Box 1806

Concord NH 03302-1806

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

0 1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORO name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES

Cor 307 Items Considered Contraband. Contraband shall consist of:

a) Any substance or item whose possession in unlawful tor the person or die general public
possessing it including but not tunitcd to:

(1) narcotics
(2) controlled drugs or
(3) automatic or concealed weapons possessed by those not licensed to have them.

b) Any firearm, simulated firearm, or device designed to propel or guide a projectile against a
person, animni or target.

c) Any bullets, cartridges, projectiles or similar items designed to be projected against a
person, animal or target.

d) Any explosive device, bomb, grenade, dynamite or dynamite cap or detonating device
including primers, primer cord, explosive powder or similar items or simulations of these
items.

e)' Any dmg item, wliedier medically prescribed or not, in excess of a one day supply or in
such quantities diat a person would suffer intoxication or illness i8f the entire available
quantity were consum^ alone or in combination with odier available substances.

f) Any intoxicating beverage.
g) Sums of money or negotiable instnjments in excess of $100.00.
h) Loclc-picking Idts or tools or instruments on picking locks, making keys or obtaining

surreptitious entry or exit.
i) The foUowing types of items in the possession of an individual who is not in a vehicle, but

shall not be contraband stored in a secured vehicle:

(1) knives and knife-Uke weapons, clubs and club-Ukc weapons,
(2) tobacco, alcohol, drugs including prescription drugs unless prior {qpproval b

granted in writing by the facility Winden/d^ignee, or Director/designee,
(3) maps of the prison vicinity or sketches or drawings or pictorial representations of

the facilities, its grounds or its vicinity,
(4) pornography or pictures ofvbitors or prospective visitors imdressed,
(5) radios capable of monitoring or transmitting on tiie police band in the possession

of other than law enforcement officials,
(6) identification documents, licenses and credentiab not in the possession of the

pCTScm to uhom properiy issued,
(7) ropes, saws, gnqipling hooks, fishing line, masks, artificial beards or mustaches,

cutting wheels or string rope or line inqtregnated with cutting material or similar
items to facilitate escapes,

(8) balloons, condoms, false-bottomed containers or other containers which could
facilitate transfer of contraband.



COR 307.02 Contrabaod 00 prison grounds is prohibited. The possession, transpOTt, introduction, use,
saJe or storage of contraband on the prison grounds without prior approval of the Commissioner of
Corrections or his designec is prohibited under the provision of RSA 622:24 and RSA 622:25.

COR 307.03 Searches and Inspections Authorized.

a) Any person or property on state prison grounds shall be subject to search to discover
contraband...

Travel onto prison grounds shall constitute uuplied consent to search for contraband. In such
cases where implied consent exists, the visitor will be given a choice of either consenting to
the search or immediately leaving the prison grounds. Nothing in this rule however, prevents
non-consensual searches in situations where probable cause exists to believe that the visitor is
or had attenq>ted to introduce contraband into the prison pursuant to the (aw of New
Hampshire concerning seaidi, seizure and arrest

b) All motor vehicles parked on prison grounds «hHll be locked and have the keys removed.
Custodial personnel shall chedc to insure that vehicles are locked and shall visually inspect
the plain view interior of the vehicles. Vdiicles discovered unlocked ahftll be searched to
insure that no contraband is present Contraband discovered during searches «h«1l be
confiscated for evidence, as shall contraband discovered during plain view inspections.

c) All persons entering the fiicilities to visit with residents or staff, or to perform services at the
facilities or to tour the facilities shall be subject to having their persons checked. All items
and clothing carried into the institution shall be searched for contraband.

Jeanne L. Robillard

Name Date

Witness Name Signature Date



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULES OF CONDUCT FOR PERSONS PROVIDTNG CONTRACT SERVTCBS

1. Engaging is any of the fbllowmg activities with persons under dq)artiDenta] control is strictly
prohibited:

a. Any contact, ioclndiog correspondcoce, odier than the performance of your services
for which you have been contracted.

b. Giving or selling of anything
c. Accepting or buying anything

2. Any peiBon providing contract services who is tbund to be under the influence of intoxicants or drugs
will be removed from facility grounds and barred from future entry to NH Dq)aTtmeDt
of Conrections property.

3. Possession of any item considered to be contraband as defined in the New Hanqnhire code of
Administrative Rules, Part COR 307 is a violation of the rules and the laws of the State of New
Hanq)shire and may result in legal action under RSA 622:24 or other statutes.

4. In the event of any emergency situation, Le., fire, disturbance, etc., you will follow the instructions of
the escorting staff or report immediately to die closest available staff.

5. All rules, regulations and policies of the NH Department of Corrections are designed for the safety of
the staff, visiton and residents, the security of the facility and an orderly flow of necessary movement
and activities. If unsure of any policy and procedure, ask for inundate assistance from a staff
member.

6. Harassment and discrimination directed toward anyone based on sex, race, creed, color, national
origin or age arc illegal under federal and state laws and will not be tolerated in die work place.
Maintenance of a discriimnatoiy work enviromnent is also prohibited. Everyone has a duty to
observe the law and will be subject to removal for failing to do so.

7. During the performance of your services you are responsible to the facility administrator, and by your
signature below, agree to abide by all the rules, regulations, policies and procedures of the NH
Department of Correcticms and the State of New Hanqishire. .

8. In lieu of Contracted staff participating in the Corrections Academy, the Vendor through the
Commissioner or his designees will establish a training/orientation facilitated by the Vendor to
supplement diis requirement and ̂ ^)ropriate orienl Vendor staff to the rules, regulations, policies and
procedures of die Department of Corrections and the State of New Hanqishire.

Name Sign

Jeanne L. Robillard

D

Witness Name Signature

ate

SL
Dat



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION AGREEMENT

I understand and agree that ail employed by the organization/agency 1 represent must abide by all
rules, regulations and laws of the State ofNew Hampshire and the NH Dqjartment of Corrections that
relate to the confidentiality of records and all other privileged information.

I further agree that all employed by or subcontracted through the organizatioa I represent are not to
discuss any confidential or privileged information with fiimily, friends or any persons not
professionally involved with the NH Dq)artnient of Collections. If persons under Departmental
control of the NH Department of Corrections, or, anyone outside of ttic NH Depaitmenl of
Corrections employ approaches any of die organization's employees or subcontractors flTid requests
infonnation, the staf^employees of the organization I represent will immediately contact their
supervisor, notify the NH Department of Corrections, and file an incident report or statement report
with die qiproi^te NH Deputment of CorrectiDns representative.

Any violation of die above may result in immediate termination of any and all contractual obligations.

Jeamie L. R^biUard _
Name SiSwdw ^ Date

/LxjuI
Witness Name Signature

aO
Da



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
HF.Al.TH insurance PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1J of the General Provisioos of die Agreement agrees to
comply with die Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Infoimation, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164. As defined herein, 'business Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractora and agents of
the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and
"Covered Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Healdi and Human Services.

inPefinftiOBii

a "Designated Record Set" shall have (he same meaning as the term "designated record set" m 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

b. "Data Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

c. "Health Care Qneraticns" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

d. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-
191.

e. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the tenn "individual" in 45 CFR Section i 64.501 and shall
include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

f. "Privacy Rale" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the Unit^ Stales Department of Health and
Human Services.

g. "Protected Health shall have the same meaning as the term "protected healfo mformation"
in 45 CFR Section 164JOl, limited to the mformation created or received by Business Associate from or
on behalf of Covered Entity.

b. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

i. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of (he Department of Heahb and Human Services or his/her
desigoee.

j. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

k. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the oieaning established under 45
C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended fix>m time to time.

(D Use and Disclosnre of Protected Health Information

StaitiifN8,D«p€Hmait»fC4rr»etieiia PafttafS
Dtvislon <^Mt4iealan4 FtrauieStn^a /

VcaSer loMtlr VA^—



a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessaiy to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreefflcnt.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
(i) for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
(ii) as required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
(iii) for data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

c. To the extoit Business Associate is permitted under foe Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party.
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from foe
foird party foat such PHI will be held confidentially and used or forfoer disclosed only as required by law
or for foe purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party
to immediately notify Business Associate of any breaches of the confidentiality of foe PHI, to foe extent it
has obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of foe Agreement, disclose any PHI in re^onse to a request for disclosure on foe
foat it is required by law, wifoout first notifying Covered Entity so foat Covered Entity has an opportunity
to object to foe disclosure and to seek iqipropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the
Business Associate shall refrain frxnn disclosing foe PHI until Covered Entity has all remedies.

e. If foe Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions on foe uses or disclosures or securi^ safeguards of PHI punnant to the Privacy and
Security Rule, foe Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose
PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3> ObKgations and Acttvitles of Borineis Awoclate

a. Business Associate shall report to foe designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, m writing, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of foe Agreement, including any security incident Involving Covered
Entity data, of which it becomes aware, within two (2) business days of becoming aware of such
unauthorized use or disclosure or security incident

b. Business Associate shall use administrative, physical and technical safeguards foat reasonably and
appropriately protect foe confidentiality, integrity and availability of protected health information, in
electronic or any other form, that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits under (his Agreement, in
accordance with the Privacy and Security Rules, to prevent foe use or disclosure of PHI other than as
permitted by foe Agreement

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business Associate
on bdialf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity's conqiliancc
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement lo egree in writing to adhoe to the same restrictions and conditions on foe use and
disclosure of PHI contained boein, including the duty to return or destroy foe PHI as provided imdcr
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the
Ctrntractor's business associate agreements wifo Contractor's intended business associates, who will be

State o/NII,I>ep€rtaunt«fC9rr€cthii»
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receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indcmnitication from sucb
business associates who shall be governed by standanl provision #13 of this Agreement for the piupose of
use and disclosure of protected healdi information.

e. Wiflim five (5) business days of receipt of a written request finra Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to detemiine Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered
Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall
make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendmetit and incorporate any such amendment to
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to sucb disclosures
as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

1. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrrtten reqtiest from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate ^all make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. Fn the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward sucb request to
Covered Entity. Covoed Entity shall have the re^>onsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to die individual's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

k. Within ten (10) business days of terminatioii of die Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate
shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or received by
the Business Associate in connectioii with (he Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes
of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the dispositioD of the PHI has been otherwise
agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall cootinue to extend the protections of the Agreement,
to such PHI and limit furdier uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that nmW ttie return or
destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole
discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall
certify to Covered Entity that die PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObUgrtions of Covered Entltv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to die extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.
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1). Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, punuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on die use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance widi 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate* 6 use or disclosure of PHI.

TerminaHnn fnr TpniA

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immtcdiately terminate
the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may cither immediately terminate
die Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach widiin a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither tennination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

f61 Mlscellaneoua

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, as emended from time to
time. A reference in ie Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit J, to a Section in the
Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary
to amend the Agrecmoit, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with
the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal
and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights widi
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to
permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA and the Wvacy and Security Rule.

e. Segregatioa If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or conditiott; to this end the terms
and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in diis Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destTuction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnificatioo provisions of section 3.d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
tennination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this HEALTH INSURANCE
PORTABILrrY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT BUSINESS ASSOQATE AGREEMENT.
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NH Dcpartmenl of Corrections Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Stole of New Hampshire Agency Name Contractor Name

of A zed Representativeaturc ContractoMlq)resentmive Signai^e

HellenE. Hanks

Authorized DOC Representative Name

Jeanne L. RobiUard

Autiiorized Contractor Representative Name

Commissioner

Authorized DOC Representative Title

11/23/2020

Date

Chief Executive Officer

Authorized Contractor Representative Title

/ o /aa/ so
Date
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Helen E. Hanks

Commissioner

Robin Maddaus

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 180C

CONCORD, NH 03302-1800

603-271.5610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access; 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/nhdoc

PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

The Pri.<;on Rape Eliminaiion Act (PREA) of 2003 (with Final Rule Augu.si 2012) is a federal law
established to address the elimination and prevention of sexual assaull and sexual harassment within
correclional systems and detention facilities. This Act applies to all correctional facilities, including
prisons, jails, juvenile facilities and community corrections residential facilities. PREA incidents involve
the following conduct:

•  Rcsident-on-residenl sexual assault

•  Rcsidcnt-on-residcnt abusive sexual contact

•  Staff sexual misconduct

•  Staff sexual harassment, assault of a resident

The act aimed to curb prison rape through a "zero-tolerance" policy, as well as through research and
infonnalion gathering. The NH Department of Corrections has zero tolerance relating to the sexual
assault/rape of offenders and recognizes these offenders as crime victitns. Due to this recognition and
adherence to the federal Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003, the NH Department of Corrections
extends the "zero tolerance" to the following:

•  Contracior/subcontractor misconduct

•  Contracior/subcontractor harasstncni. assault of a resident

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of Corrections, I acknowledge that I have
been provided information on the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 Public Law 108-79—Sept. 4.
2003 and have been informed that as a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of
Corrections, sexual conduct between Contractor and/or Subcontractor and offenders is prohibited. Sexual
harassment or sexual misconduct involving an offender can be a violation of NH RSA 632-A:2, 632-A:3
and 632-A:4, Chapter 632-A: Sexual Assault and Related Oft'cn.scs, and result in criminal prosecution.

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of Corrections, 1 understand that I shall
inform all employees of the Contractor and/or Subcontractor to adhere to all policies concerning
PREA, RSA 632-A:2, RSA 632-A;3, RSA 632-A;4 and departmental policies including NHDQC
Adniinistraiivc Rulc.s, Conduct and Confidcntialiiy Information regarding my conduct, reporting of
incidents and treatment of tho.se under the supervision of the NH Department of Corrections. (Ref. RSA
Chapter 632-A, and Administrative Rules, Rules of Conduct for Persons Providing Contract Scr\'ices,
Confidentiality of Information Agreement).

Name (print); Jeanne L. Robillard, CEO
'Con|ract Signi

Signature: A

Promollng Publit Safrw through Intcf^rify. Kespcci. ProrcMionalism. Collaboration and Accoontabillry

(S tract S tory)



Tri-County Community Action Program, inc.
30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

603-752-7001

Mission Statement

Tri-County CAP is dedicated to improving the lives and well-being of New Hampshire's people and

communities. We provide opportunities and support for people to learn and grow in self-sufficiency and

to get involved in helping their neighbors and improving the conditions in their communities.

Purpose

Tri-County CAP is a multi-program agency with many projects and service locations and is community

action network of private/non-profit or public organizations was created by the federal government in

1964 to combat poverty in geographically designated areas. Each Community Action Agency promotes

works to reduce the effects of poverty by involving the community, including elected public officials,

private sector representatives and especially low-income residents in assessing local needs and attacking
the causes and conditions of poverty.

Community Action Agencies leverage available local, state, private and federal resources to assist low-

income individuals and families in acquiring the necessary support, skills and knowledge to gain access to

new opportunities and achieve economic self-sufficiency.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit crganlzatioris), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the related
consolidated statements of cash flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, the
related consolidated statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2019 and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Op/n/on
In our opinion, the a>nsolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2019 and 2016, and its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in its net assets for the year ended June 30. 2019, In accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2018
consolidated finandal statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated October 19, 2018. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2018, is consistent, in all material resF>ects. with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which It has been derived.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated rinandal
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not. a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
October 21. 2019, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financiai reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an Integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

October 21, 2019

North Conway, New Hampshire



TRI-CQUNTY CQMMUWTV ACTION PRnr,T^^|y}. INC. AND AFFILIATF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSfTtON
JUNE 30.2019 AND 2Q18

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable

Property held for sale
Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Property and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Demand note payable
Current portion of long term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accnjed compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances
Other jjabililies

Total cunent liabilities

LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt, net of current portion
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

Total liBbilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019

1,400.750
583,963

1.274,083

47,000

231,161
85,886
34.037

3,656.880

12.086,152
{5,178.535)

6,907,817

418,936

$ 10.983,433

148.449

4.870
221,571
204.079

210,952
89,524
197,157

598.195

1.674,797

5.227,835
3.355

6.905.987

3.399,192

678,254

4,077.446

2018

S  1.329.038
380,902

1.156,657

212,207
87.569
25.640

3,192,013

12,812.689
(5,203.324)

7.609,365

325,863

$ 11,127.241

516.022
142,733
4,445

237,276
203.121

187,508
131.888

191.069
387,168

2,001,230

5,373.937
8,226

7.383,393

2,926,057

617.791

3,743,848

$ 10,983,433 $ 11,127.241

See Notes to Consotldated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACnvfnES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019
WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor With Donor 2019 2016

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant end contracts $  14.074.008 $  401,106 S 14,475,114 $ 14,309,086
Proflfam funding 1.187.509 1.187.509 1.259.037
Utnty programs 1.287,103 1.287,103 1.079.381
In-kind contributions 477.187 477,167 351.187
ConlrfbuUons 230,986 230,988 395.225
Fundrslsing 39,303 39.303 59,536
Rental income 625,046 625,040 679.112
Interest income 843 643 348

(Loss) gain on disposal of property (32.892) (32,892) 48.487
Loss on write down of property hold for sale (255.492) (255,492) .

Other revenue 196.364 198.304 auas

Total revenues and other support 17.809,745 401.106 18.210,851 18,263,317

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 540,643 (540.843) _

Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions tej350.386 (139.537) 18.210.851 18.263.317

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES /

Program Servloes:
Agertcy Furtd 950.639 950.639 922.701
Head Start 2,451.296 2,451.296 2.461,916
Guardlanthip 767.241 767,241 760.009
Transports lion 916,069 916.069 879.729
Volunleer 118.406 118,408 122,941
Worlcforce Oevelopmenl 354.263 354,263 394,252
Alcohol and Other Orugs - 444.581
Carrol County Oental 747,474 747,474 842.637
Support Center 391.650 391.650 276.172
Homeless 714.066 714,068 577.763
Energy and Community OevetopmenI 7.788,560 7.788.580 7.480.943
Eider 1.462.613 1.462,613 1.142,818
Housing Servlcos 172.852 172.852 178.511

Total program services 16.835.151 16.835.151 16.302.993

Supporting Actlvitiea:
General and administrative 1.032.207 . 1.032,207 1,102.448

Fundralsirto 9.89S - 9.695 6.023

Total supporting acUvttlas 1,042,102 1.042.102 1.110.471

Total functional expenses 17.877,253 17.877253 17,413.484

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 473.135 (139.537) 333.598 849.653

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2.928.057 617.791 3.743.848 2.893.995

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR S  3,399,192 S  676.254 5 4.077,446 5 3.743,848

Sm Notsi to ConsolidaUd Ptnanclol Ststomenls
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TRI-CQUNTYCQHMUNnrYACTIOMfROGRAM.lNC.ANDAFFlLlATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change In net oseets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities;

Depredation

Loss (gain) on disposal of properly
Loss on write down of property held for sate

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payabio
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabiliUes

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property
Purchases of property and oquipmenl

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM RNANCINO ACTIVniES

Net repayment on demand note payable
Repayment of bng-torm debt
Repayment of capital lease obtigations

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVmES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION;

Cash paid during the year for

Inleresl

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVfTIES:

Property donated

2010

S  333.596

447,669
32,892

255,492

(117,426)
(18.954)

1,683
(8.397)

(296,134)

(15,705)
958

23,444
(42,364)

6,066

211,027

813,871

14,283

(95,588)

(81,305)

(516,022)
(140,386)

(4.446)

(660.8541

71,712

1,329.038

2018

S  849,853

463,483
(48,487)

170,337
(6,403)

(21.928)
19,705

235,922

(281,171)
(39,424)
(0,374)

24,261
(6,479)

(258.143)

1,092,152

152,078

278,972

(141.3351

137,637

(90,412)
(311,083)

(4.056)

(406.451)

823,338

505,700

$  1,400.750 $ 1.329.038

182,514

Sea Notes to Consolldetad Financial Statements
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CONSOUDATEO STAteMEWT OF FUNCTIOMA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE M. 70

Gantral ft

Aoancv Fund Meadt Total AdmlnlHtntlve PHPiifFiF'nq Total

DIrtct ExpanMS ,

PayfoH $  1dd.24t 5  $ 5.462.309 S 696.457 s •  S 6.068.762

Pa/roti tues ens berteriis 49.259 3  . 1.413.250 161274 1,576.524

Asststoncs to cllenis 22.359 5.768,314 5.786.314

Consumable supplies 3.408 ^^78 846.305 11.436 857.741

Spece costs end rentals 7,828 523.719 66.586 590.287

Deproctsiion expense 169.653 447.669 3.157 450.826

Irvkind expended • 477.167 477.167

Consultenls end conlraciors 20.400 222.316 16.029 238,347

UllillM 168.297
181 378.638 5.708 384,344

Travel and meeiines 11.024 ^2 297.607 20.783 318.398

Giber direct program costs 2,.535 •224 157.696 9.225 9.895 176,616

Focal and adminislratlve 10.817 731 103.147 94.740 197,687

Bu-lldlng and grounds malntanance 93.988 594 179.346 3D 179.376

Intsrest axperoe 117.585 152.965 653 153.818

Vehicle experue 3.747 199.965 199.965

Insurance 56,671
518 69.016 30.772 119.788

Mainierwnce oS equipmeru and rental 562
331 63.609 12.647 96.656

Fbced 'ecs 8.265 13.617 422
- —

14.239

Total Olrecf Expanses 950 639 16.835.151 1.032.207 9.895 17,677,253

Indirect Expanaaa

Indirect costs 1.032.207 (1,032.207) -

Total Olrecl ft Indirtct expenses 5 • 1 IMi) W
S 17.867,358 i- 5 0.895 S 17.877,253

Sm Notts to ConsoUtfattd Finsnd
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rBi-cou?<ry.coMMUMiTY action prqgraw.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOf FUNCTIONAL E>
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 y»il

Dirtct Exp«nft«s

P«yn4

Payroll taxes and benefits

Assistance to cierrts

Consumable suppliu
Spaca costs and renuls

Deorecfalron ftjipenae

In-kind expended

Consullants and ceniraciors

UiUities

Travel and meetings
Other direct progrem costs

Fiscal and admlrv'sUative

BuBdmg and grounds mair4enanc*
Inieresl expense

Vehicle expense

Insurance

Maintenance ol equpment and renul
Fixed tees

Tola/ 0/rect Expenaes

Indirect Expenses

Indirect costs

Capitaliaed Expenses

less capitiitution ot essets

Tatti OfVecr 4 indlnei expenses

99755

23.319

74.171

1.723

21.013

324.623

12.500

15.615

136,551

1.093

44.933

243

62.022

127.777

4.282

65,654

Head Star

1.250.637
339,0 .

240,832
184.4

^■^69
2oe.oi .
28,9;
32.5s2
50Z,5

9-764
28.3^0
62.5^

31
t

14.0^
52.1i

66.950

(92.3731

246.01

Total

5,214.049
1.260.319
S.536.S46

949.050
578.542
463.403
351.188
315.842
326.659

278.787
192.049
94.549

198.381
163.401
104.961
154.315
127.333

4.312

1.015.074 2,401.9 „ 16.395,366

General ft

670J92
184.414

Fundralalnn

1,102.448

(92.373)

11.219
72.385

15.682
3.589

9.470
28.234

108.359
180

1.241

5.085
14,018

1.102,440

11,102.4481

8.023

6.023

l£H!

5.884.641
1.424.733
5.636.546

961.069
650.927
483.483
351.188
331.504
330.240

288.257
229.106
200.906
198.561
184.642
164.961
159.400
141.351

4.312

17J0S.837

(92.3731

^  S 17.405.441 I 8.Q23 ft 17,413,464

See Notes to ConaelMatedFinancial I
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PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2019 AND 2018

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of ConsoKdation

The consolidated financial statements Include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. and its affiliate. Cornerstone Housing North. Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All slgntflcant Intercompany Items and transactions have been eliminated from the

basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) was incorporated under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition, construction and operation
of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services. IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Prograrn. Inc., Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other' responsibilities Include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, health and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.



Programs support and strerigthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri County Community Action Head Start serves 217 children in Carroll,
Coos & Grafton counties in 9 locations with 13 center-based classrooms
and 1 home-based option.

Guardianship

The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services for the vulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill. traumatic brain injury,
and the elderiy suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve In that capacity. This program serves 414
individuals. Additional services include, conservatorshlp, representative
payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management services and
private probate accounting services.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services; public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 17
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Voiunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 394 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 287
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 tocal non-profit and
public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 46,764 hours yearly.

^Vortkforce PeveloDment

The Organization Is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.



The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, In line with the federal Workforce
Investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy families (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training In the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients in community-based work experience sites.

Afcohol & Other Drugs (AODi

Services provided through the AOD program included assisting the
alcoholic/addicted person on the road to recovery, through three phases;
Crisis Intervention, Sobriety Maintenance, and Assessment and Referral to
appropriate treatment facilities.

The Residential Treatment Programs (Friendship House) provided
chemically dependent Individuals with the fundamental tools of recovery.
Including educational classes, group and individual counseling, work and
recreational therapy, and attendance at in-house and community-based
alcoholics anonymous and narcotics anonymous meetings. The AOD
program also offered assistance with its impaired driver programs.

Effective October 1, 2017, the Organization is no longer responsible for the
Alcohol & Other Dnjgs (AOD) program. The grants for the program were
transferred to North Country Health Consortium (NCHC), as they took over the
program. The Friendship House was sold to Affordable Housing Education and
Development (AHEAD).

Carroll County Dental

The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers high quality oral health
care to children with NH Medicaid coverage. The Organization also serves
uninsured and underinsured children and adults using a sliding fee scale
that offers income-based discounts for care. The Center accepts most
common dental insurances for those who have commercial dental
insurance coverage. A school-based project of the Dental Center. School
Smiles, offers oral hearth education, screening, treatment and referrals for
treatment to over 1,000 children in 9 schools in the vicinity of the Center.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and sherter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking in Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
intervention; supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach; violence prevention programs for students;
Information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.
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Homeless

Homeless services ir^clude an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless In securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing slock.

Energy Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

Low-Income Weatherizatlon

The ISIH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and Individuals lower their home energy costs;
Increase their health, safety, and comfort; and Improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherizatlon Assistance Program also creates local NH Jobs.

Elder

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 15 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServlceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling. Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is subject to a Project Rental Assistance
Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their rental income is
received from HUD.

The Organization includes a 12-unlt apartment complex in Berlin. New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operatirig methods.
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The Organization has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program.

Method of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (PASS) Accountir^g
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAR). which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not subject
to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
perfomiing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $678,254 and $817,791
at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. See Note 13

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that is. when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets reieased from restrictions.
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Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
program. Past due receivables are written off at management's discretion using the
direct write off method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write
method approximate those of the allowance method. Managernent selects accounts
to be written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts
receivable, and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as
length of time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on
outstanding accounts receivable.

Property and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and Improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program Is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation.

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the amounts
received from the clients.
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Refundable Advances

Grants received In advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received In advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $197,157 and $191,069 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018. respective!/.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is' a not-for-profit Section 501 (cK3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Intemal Revenue Code and qualifies for a charitable
contribution deduction for individual donors. The Organization files information
returns in the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Retum of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS,
generally for three years after it is filed. The Organization is no longer subject to
examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2015.

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax retum.
The Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for Income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized.

Due to changes in the tax law in the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, the Organization
Is subject to file an Unrelated Business Income Tax Retum for unallowed expenses
for the year ended June 30. 2019. These expenses fall under the qualified taxable
fringe benefits. The total tax due for the year ended June 30, 2019 is approximately
$8,900.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. Is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the internal Revenue Code. The Intemal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Intemal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Intemal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements;
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Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-ftnanclal assets or

that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If

donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.

Donated property and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
.how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of dor>or restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as Instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifles net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected In more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due In future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment is merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in the amount of $231,161 and $212,207,
respectively. This amount was included In grants and contracts on the
Consolidated Statement of Activities.
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Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various
programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time
employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is atlocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The poo! Is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the statements of functional expenses.
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Insurance: automobile Insurance is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building liability Insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of ttie buildings; and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expanses include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal, effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018, received
provisional approval and is effective, until amended, at a rate of 12.50%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2018 was 11.45%. The actual
rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was approximately 10.44%, which is
allowable because it is less than the provisional rate.

Advertising policy

The Organization uses advertising to Inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as Incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $11,698 and
$18,616, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
'Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.' The ASU is limited to
simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidance for debt issuance costs Is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2019 and 2018.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 16. 2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958)
- Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update
addresses the complexity and understandablllty of net asset classification,
deficiencies In information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack
of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment
return. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements
accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to all periods presented.
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NOTE 2. UQUrPITY AND AVAILABtLITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of June 30, 2019
and 2018;

2019 2018

Financial assets at year-end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 1,400,750 $ 1.329,038
Accounts receivable 1,274,083 1,156,657
Pledges receivable 231.161 212.207

Total financial assets 2.905.994 2.697.902

Less amounts not available to be

used within one yean
Net assets with donor restrictions 678,254 817,791
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met In less than a year (348.6311 (540.6431

Amounts not available within one year 329.623 277.148

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 2.576.371 $ 2.420.7S4

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $2,786,000 and $2,729,000 respectively,
at June 30, 2019 and 2018.

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
institutions, and Investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the
balances in interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were insured by the FDIC up
to $250,000. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, there was approximately $1,750,000 and
$1,200,000, of deposits held in excess of the FDIC limit, respectively. Management
believes the Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and
cash equivalents and considers this a normal business risk.

Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. It Is required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 In the account, which is restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the US Department of
Agriculture.'
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Amounts withdrawn to make payments ot debt service must be replenished with
monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance Is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $20,010 and $19,980, respectively.
The Organization has made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018. These amounts are included in restricted cash on the

Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable In Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2019 and 2018 was $176,298 and $176,570, respectively, and the Organization
was in compliance with this requirement. These amounts are included in restricted
cash on the Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate In
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account Is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $582,116 and $378,605, respectively.
These amounts are included In other liabilities on the Statements of Financial

Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2019 and 2018

was $582,116 and $378,605, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Financial Position.

At June 30, 2019, the Organization had $45,198 in restricted cash relating to the
property that Is held for sale at year end. Upon the sale of the property, it will be
donated to another non-profit Organization.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2019 and 2018 was $179,277 and $131,610, respectively. See Note 15.

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

In 2019 and 2018, inventory included weatherization materials which had been'
purchased in bulk. These Items are valued at the most recent cxDst. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, fIrst-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2019 and 2018, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $85,886 and $87,569, respectlveiy.
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During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Organization adopted the provisions of
the FASB Accounting Standard Update (ASU) 2015-11, Inventory, (Topic 330):
Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory, which simplifies the subsequent
measurement of inventory by requiring inventory to be measured at the lower of
cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of
inventory in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of
completion, disposal and transportation. The Organization has evaluated ASU
2015-11 and has determined that there is no material impact to the financial
statements.

NOTE 5. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30, 2019 and 2018, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2019 and
2018, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
employees had earned and vested In the amount of $204,079 and $203,121,
respectively.

NOTE 6. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2019:

Building
Equipment
Construction

in progress
Land

Capitalized
Cost

$ 9,709,749
1.950,063

2.500
423.840

Accumulated Net

Depreciation Book Value

$ 3,469,618 $6,240,131
1,708,917 241,146

2,500
:  423.840

$ 5.178.535 5 6.907.617

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2018:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation Book Value

Building $10,003,944 $ 3,448,411 $ 6,555,533
Equipment 2.384,905 1,754.913 629,992
Land 423.840 ; 423.840'

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value Is Immaterial to the financial statements, Is not Included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.
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Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$447,669'and $463,483, respectively.

The Organization has property held for sale at June 30, 2019 amounting to
$47,000, which is classified as a current asset in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. The total loss on the write down to martlet value of
this property was $255,492.

NOTE 7. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 consisted of
the following:

2019 2018
Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
installmentdue January 2027. $ 124.867 $ 138.225

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $3,033, including interest at 4.69%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final installment due April
2021. 328,896 349.131

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459. including Interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit

that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016. Final installment due April
2021. 9.618 14,500

Note p)ayable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly Installments of $312, including interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due August 2021. 7,642 10,874

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, including interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021. 7,385 10,637

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143. including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final Installment due November 2020. 2,331 3,863
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Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248. including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final Installment due February 2023.

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $2,512, including interest at 5.51%
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment is due in
March 2023.

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an indicative rate of 3.28%. Secured by
first commercial real estate mortgage on various
properties and assignments of rents at various
properties. Final installment due August 2040.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
interest or principal amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or in August 2047.

Cornerstone Housing North. Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage Is not subject to interest or principal
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due in August 2047.

Total long term debt before unamortized debt
issuance costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Total long term debt
Less current portion due within one year

9.739 12,041

395,429 403.244

2,634,595 2,719,260

1,617,600 1,617,600

250.000 250.000

5,388,102 5,529,375
f11.818^ (12.705)

5.376,284 5,516,670

(148.449) (142.733)

$ 5.227,
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The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2020 $ 148,449
2021 437,624
2022 123,156

2023 485,481
2024 118.295

Thereafter 4.075.097

£ 5.388.102

As described at Note 3. the Organization Is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first two notes payable listed above.

NOTES. CAPrTAL LEASE GBLIGATIONS

During the year ended June 30. 2016, the Organization leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021. respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Company leased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May 2021. The
assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.

The obligations included In capital leases at June 30. 2019 and 2018, consisted of
the following:

2019 2018
Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone system and will mature in November
2020. $ 3,291 $ 5,362

Lease payable to a. financing company with
monthly Installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature in March
2021. 2,261 3.467
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Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly Installments of $122 for principal and
Interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature In May 2021. 2.673 3.642

8.225 12.671
Less current portion (4.8701 (4.4451

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2019 were as
follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2020 $ 4,870
2021 3.355

$

NOTE 9. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution^ which is secured by real estate mortgages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed In the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest at 5.00% per annum, and totaled $316,000
at June 30, 2018. There was no balance outstanding at June 30. 2019. The line is
subject to renewal each January.

The Organization was issued an unsecured revolving line of credit in 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. The Organization was not
required to make payments of Interest or principal prior to maturity. At June 30,
2018, the outstanding debt totaled $200,022, which included accrued interest of
$21,434. The unsecured revolving line of credit was paid off in full during the year
ended "June 30, 2019.

NOTE 10. OPERATING LEASES

The Organization has entered Into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018, the annual rent expense for leased facilities totaled
$181,127 and $165,227, respectively.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases having
initial terms In excess of one year as of June 30, 2019, are as follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2020 $ 147.778
2021 65.003
2022 3.301

£ 216.082

NOTE 11. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of In-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, transportation and elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These sen/ices are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind In the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and elder programs.
The value of the In-kind rent Is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

Many other Individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

TrI-County Community Action Program. Inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal and state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
approximately $13,951,828 (77%) and $13,773,803 (75%). respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
effect on the Organization's programs and activities.

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. receives a large majority of its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2019 and 2018, approximately 69% of the Organizations total revenue was
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Comerstone
Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development.
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The majorrty of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In
addition, the Organization operates In a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.

NOTE 13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2016

Temporary Municipal Funding - $ 231,161 $ 212,207
10 Bricks Shelter Funds 142,190 142,190
FAR 117.470 136,614
Restricted Buildings 87,541 190,049
Support Center 25,939
Weatherization 25.000
Loans-HSGP 19,907 21,454
FAP/EAP 11,290 23,249
RSVP Program Funds 7.056 5,021
Senior Meals 5,130
Head Start 3,999 4,172
Donations to Maple Fund 1,571 1,586
Homeless Programs - 27,680
LISDA - 10.332
Loans - HHARLF • 6,967
IDN Capacity Fund - 32,194
Community Needs Assessment ^ 4.075

Total net assets with donor restrictions S 678.254 £ 817.791

NOTE 14. COIVIIVIITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance

The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
Including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.
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Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company.

The exterior soil and Interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the
East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building Is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are

released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
action Including containment and remediation.

Loss Contingencies

During the year ended June 30, 2018, legal actions were brought against the
Organization. Due to the uncertainty of the outcome of such cases as of June 30.
2019, as well as the uncertainty of the Organization's potential liability, no amount
has been accrued by the Organization at this time.

NOTE 15. REPLACEMENT RSERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS

Under Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s regulatory agreement with HUD, the
Organization Is required to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the
replacement of property and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-
restricted deposits of $129,407 and $106,548 were held in a segregated account at
June 30. 2019 and 2018, respectively. HUD-restricted deposits generally are not
available for operating purposes.

Cornerstone Housing North, (nc.'s use of the residual receipts account Is contingent
upon HUD'S prior written approval. Residual receipts of $46,514 and $21,326 were
held in a segregated account for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of the Organization's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts In excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.
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In accordance with the policy noted above, subsequent to year end the
Organization was required to remit funds to HUD totaling $31,412. In addition to the
funds remitted, HUD approved the'Organization to withdraw $11,852 from the
residual receipts account for equipment.

note 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent In the process of preparing financial statements.
Norvrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date; Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 21,
2019, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of DIrectore of

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United Slates, the financial statements of Tii-County
Community Action Program, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30. 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have Issued our
report thereon dated October 21, 2019.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (Internal control) to determine
the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s Internal
control.

A deficiency In internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees. In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attenUon by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance aboul whether Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliant and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's Internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed In
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's Internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 21.2019
North Conway. New Hampshire
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TRI-CQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board ot Directors of

Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc.
Berlin. New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited Trl-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements desaibed in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2019. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
Identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management Is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to Its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Trl-County Community Action
Program Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
opinion. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, In all material respects witti the

^^^""•n'nfnts referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of Its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Community Action Program. Inc. is responsible for establishing and

S^ To at^te fn °f compliance requirementsP'^nn ng and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc. s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that

f  appropnate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
^ ? program and to test and report on internal control over compliance inof expressing an opinion ^he

ffffrlr oj'^temal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on theeffectiveness of Tn-County Community Action Program. Inc.'s internal control over compliance.
A der^iencyin internal control over compHance exists when the design or operation of a control over

"°I i" 'Pe no^al course of perfoZng metassigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of comnliance
r^u^ement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in Xna7 confrS over
c^plance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that

noncompliance with a type of complla^S^^^eme^^^f^^al program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis A Scant
intpmt??' ? control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies inintemal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that Is less

to ment

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
^  k" designed to identify all deficiencies In Internal control overcompliance that might be matenal weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify anv

mnlp'lT®^ V co"iP''ance that we consider to be material weaknesses HovJevermatenal weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified. nowever.

winn"nf^nf«mVi^'^ 'S solely to describe the scope of ouresting of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

October 21. 2019
North Conway, New Hampshire
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PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

1  The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting end on Compliance
and other Matters Based on en Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies In Intemal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported In the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LINEAR - CFDA #93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, Head Start - CFDA #93.600

U.S. Dept. of Energy, Weatherization Assistance for Low Income Individuals - CFDA
#81.042

A

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and 8 programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS • FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Resumes of AJJ Key PersoDoel and Job Descriptions of Support Personnel

Section 16

Jeanne L. Roblllard

CORE STRENGTHS

Program development, management and administration □ Community collaborations

Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet ftmder standards

Grant writing and management □ Budget performance and financial reporting Innovative

solutions & problem solving □□Capacity building
Professional presentations □ Public speaking

Dedication □□ Imagination □□ Determination □ Fortitude

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Trl-County Community Action Programs, Inc.

Chief Executive Officer

Berlin, NH current FT employment

Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc.

Chief Operating Officer

Berlin, NH 2016-2018

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that

provide over 60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire.

Essential duties include; supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program

resources, revenues, expenditures and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs
to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; develop and implement strategies to

improve individual programs and overall agency program and fiscal performance;

oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan, Community

Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new

service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues
and problems in the daily operations of programs.

Trl-County Community Action Programs, Inc.

Division Director: TCCAP Prevention Services

Berlin, NH 2015- 2016
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Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention

Services; oversee division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget

performance; general oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic

goals; supervise program directors; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and

prepare grant reports and financial statements for funders and agency, develop

fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through

participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service

delivery

collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative

testimony.

Tii-Couoty Community Action Programs, Inc.

Program/Division Director: Support Center at Burch House

Littleton, New Hampshire 2007- 2015 Oversee daily operation and supervision of

domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential shelter, write grants to support

programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for funders

and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and monitor

budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim

advocacy programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and

federal law; develop fimdraising and mariceting strategies; participate in state and local

collaborations to enhance victim services; represent program in state and federal victim

service initiatives, including presentation of legislative testimony; create and present
trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards and best practices for

victim services.

Bookeeper: Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network (WREN)

Bethlehem, NH current PT employment

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi

weekly payroll and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end

reconciliations for bank accounts, credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales;

monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail locations, preparing monthly cash flow,

forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.
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Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc.

Direct ServicesA'olunteer Coordinator: Support Center at Burch House

Littleton, New Hampshire 1997 to 2007

Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence;

supervise court advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and

interns; develop agency systems, policies and protocols; create and present community

outreach presentations and campaigns; present school-based violence prevention classes

for grades K-12; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: HaverhlU Area Juvenile Diversion Program

Woodsville, New Hampshire 1999-2001

Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community

programming for diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative

relationships between the court system, juvenile service officers, local police

departments, and diversion program; prepare and file court reports on diverted youth;

community outreach and education

Counselor/Title I Teacher: Northern Family Institute-Jefferson Shelter

Jefferson, New Hampshire 1996-1999

Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support

groups, develop and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients,

supervise and tutor youth in classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Education

BS in Human Services, Springfield College School of Human Services, Boston, MA

Criminal Justice Concentration, Graduated with 4.0 GPA

AS in Drug and Alcohol Rehabilitation Counseling (DARC Program)

Southern Connecticut Community College, New Haven, CT

Additional Skills, Professional Leadership and Civic Affiliations

□ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2006-

2010
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□ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treasurer 1996-

1998

□ Chairman, Haverhill Area Family Violence Council 1998-2003

□ Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor

#NH16199

□ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire

□ Board Member, Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Networic 2014: Individual Member

2008-2017

□ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 2015

□ Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current

□ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012

□ □TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011

□ Bethlehem Citizen's Advisory Committee on Recycling 2007-2010

□ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

□ Small Business Owner : Aurora Energies 2015- current

0 Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997- current

Q Member, United States Figure Skating Assoc/Intemational Skating Institute current

since 1993

□ Avid outdoor enthusiast and angler
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DAWN FERRINGO

Experience

Prevendon Services Division Director, Tri-County CAP. Berlin, NU July 2016 to

present

♦Write, manage, and administer federal, state, and local grants and grant deliverables
♦Provide supervision of all programs directors under Division

♦Oversee and administer all fiscal and administrative matters related to programs, including
budget preparation, tracking, and management, grants preparation and management, reports
to flinders and audit requirements

♦Maintain program documentation and ensure compliance with funding standards
(including audits, reports and compliance checks) and objectives as required by flinders
♦Prepare monthly financial reports and Division reports for CEO/COO and TCCAP Board

♦Ensure program integrity, viability, and compliance with all funding standards

♦Ensure program has adequate resources to sustain operations and programs
♦Represent program at community, business, and civic functions

♦Develop and maintain positive collaborative relationships with area health and human

service providers, and other civic and business organizations
♦Represent Division programs in federal, state and local initiatives

♦Organize, plan, and prepare agency development and flindraising projects

Shelter Manager, Tyler Blain House, Tri-County CAP, Lancaster, NH March 2016

to June 2016.

♦Responsible for the general welfare and safety of all Shelter Residents.
♦Direct intake and exit procedures
♦Maintain appropriate client records.

♦Oversee the enforcement of house rules and standards of conduct.

♦Coordinate and assist with the provision of case management services for residents.
♦Supervise other House staff: hire, train, schedule and evaluate; oversee the submission

of payroll forms.

♦Oversee the maintenance of the Shelter building and grounds with TCCAP Facilities;
keep the interior orderly, clean and safe, the exterior sound and presentable, house
vehicle, appliances and office equipment in good working order,
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♦Maintain cash receipts for shelter guests rent, submit rent revenue to Accounts

♦Receivable, and review and submit bills for payment.
♦Be responsible for the receipt, storage and disbursement of donated goods.
♦Keep necessary records; prepare and submit reports on Shelter activities as required by

funders.

♦Enter statistical data into State HMIS system; act as one of the coordinated entry points
for the Northern Region per State of NH BHHS, attend HMIS trainings as needed.
♦Operate under strict client confidentiality and code of conduct requirements.
♦Abide by the Homeless Programs Ethics Policy.
♦Public Relations Rqjresentative for the Tyler Blain House and related TCCAP programs
to include statewide Shelter Meetings, other meetings and opportunities for community
outreach as necessary..

♦Assist Homeless Programs Manager and Prevention Division Director with fund raising
and grant writing.

♦Communicate regularly with Homeless Programs Manager and Prevention Division
Director; inform them of important issues promptly.

Director of Welfare, Town of Bethlehem, Bethlehem, NH July 2009 to March 2016.
♦Developed municipal welfare policy and maintained policy integrity, viability and

compliance with NH RSA 165, Aid to Assisted Persons.

♦Oversaw and administered all fiscal and administrative matters related to municipal
welfare including budget preparation, tracking and management.

♦Effectively reduced over all municipal welfare budgets by 60% over the course of three

years through program evaluation and established new policy and program facilitation
practices.

♦Provided case management for clients who qualify for general assistance, which often

includes resource and referrals networking and client advocacy.

♦Employed a method of self-care with clients including self assessment, goal setting,
1

strategies and desired outcomes in the Seven Areas of Wellness.

♦Monitored legislation and new programs and makes recommendations regarding the
administration of the welfare function to the Board of Selectmen;
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*Made frequent collateral contact requiring considerable skill and tact in eliciting

confidential and pertinent information in order to determine eligibility for assistance.

♦Maintained meticulous case files, case notes, and other related records.

♦Established and maintains effective relationships with state and local social services
organizations.

♦Maintained strict confidentiality practices.

Development and Special Events Manager, Adaptive Sports Partners of the North
Country, Franconia, NH October 2013 - May 2014.

♦Annual Fundraising and Resource Development: Worked with the Executive Director
and Development Committee to create, oversee and manage annual fundraising plan for
the organization. Helped to establish new mission statement, strategic plan and case
statement for the organization.

♦Event Management: Managed key fundraising events throughout the year including;

Wobble *n Gobble Thanksgiving Day SIC, Pirates of the High Skis, Sunrise Ascent on
Mount Washington, Any Which Way You Can Triathlon Challenge, and multiple smaller
events.

♦Outreach and Communication: Promoted Adaptive Sports Partners of the North

Country's mission and business operation in the community and beyond.

Workplace Success Facilitator/Community Job Specialist, Tri-County CAP,

Littleton, NH September 2007 - January 2011.

♦Conducted daily work simulated sessions through "Service Bureau" projects and
Workplace Success curriculum to participants enrolled with the NH Employment
Program (NHEP).

♦Followed each participant's NHEP Employability Plan in an effort to resolve
employment barriers. ^
♦Coordinated Community Work Experience Program (CWEP) in Grafton, Coos, and
Carroll Counties for participants who completed Workplace Success.
♦Developed and maintained relationships with the volunteer sites and acted as a liaison
for these sites, the client, and the NHEP Employment Counselor Specialist.
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DONNA M. C. KEDDY

Career Objective: To utilize my experience in the Probate Forum to advocate for

incapacitated individuals for the improvement of their quality of life.

EMPLOVMEOT:

2003-Present - Tii-County CAP, Inc. Guardianship Services- Director

Directorship approved by Board of Directors on 4/21/2004

Acting Director effective 5/13/2003

1993-2003 - TCC/GS Assistant Director/Estate Supervisor

1/01/1993-5/12/2003 - Duties include Management of the Estate and Trust Departments,

direct supervision of five financial managers, ie: Estate Managers, Payee Specialist and

Benefits Administrator, indirect supervision of entire program staff as Director's

designee. This position also includes carrying an Estate and Trust Caseload.

1991-1992 - TCC/GS Estate Manager

6/1991-12/1992 - Duties included the development of a more efficient system to manage

and account for wards resources. Continual training and understanding of the Probate

System and all public assistance programs and systems, plus Social Security and Veteran

Administrative systems. Also carried an Estate and Payee Caseload. Duties also

included Administrative Program functions. Direct supervision of estate and support

staff.

1988-1992 - TCC/GS Administrative Assistant/Staff Guardian

11/1988-12/1992 - Duties included Administrative Program Functions, Payee

Responsibilities, and a guardianship caseload at Glencliff Home for the Elderly.

1985-1989 Bookkeeper for Diamond International Corporation

Woodland Division based out of Lancaster/Groveton, New Hampshire

EDUCATION:

1973-1977 Ludlow High School, Business Study

Ludlow, MA

National Honor Society

70



D Keddy *2

CERTIFICATIONS: Member since 1988, Registered Guardian, Conference Presenter

National Guardianship Foundation. National Master Guardian, Center for Guardianship

Certification.

Professional Qualifications and Background:

♦Development of comprehensive program policies and protocols for the establishment of

Estate, Trust, Protective Payee, and Benefit Management Services for state-wide

public guardianship program with oversight of the associate director, staff

guardians, estate and benefit staff in both Whitefield and Concord offices.

♦Consultation services to family guardians and individuals either considering

Guardianship over a loved one or education regarding guardianship standards

and responsibilities both on a fee-for-service basis and as a professional

courtesy to the Probate Court and the general public.

♦Member of the National Guardianship Association (NGA) from 1988 to present.

♦Certified as a National Registered Guardian through the NGA in 1997.

♦Presenter at the National Guardianship Conference in Arlington, Virginia 1998.

Topic: The Keys of Estate Management 'The First Ninety "Days".

♦Selected by Judge Maher, then Administrative Probate Judge, to be on his

committee to produce a handbook to guide, assist, and provide resources to

individuals that are responsible for making health care decision for others.

"Making Medical Decisions for Someone Else: A New Hampshire Handbook (2007).

♦Appointed to Judge King's Task Force on Professional Guardians 6/24/2008.

Purpose: need to ensure that the guardians serving the vulnerable population are held to

high professional and ethical standards and have adequate education, training and

experience. (Article in Coos County Democrat July 2, 2008). The NH House passed the

proposed legislation for the amendment on RSA 464-A:10 on 5/20/2009.

♦Certified as a National Master Guardian through the Center for Guardianship

Certification on 4/1 /2010.
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JAYNE ELIZABETH MCCABE

Career Objective:

To work for a customer orientated human services organization that enables me to utilize

a variety of leadership and management skills in a challenging setting.

EMPLOYMENT:

8/98- present TRI-COUNTY CAP, INC^ GUARDIANSHIP SERVICES

Associate Director - 4/04 to present

Duties include assisting the Director in the overall management of the program,

supervision of staff guardians, training and orientation

of staff, and quality assurance activities. Managing assigned case load.

Senior Staff Guardian-11/02 to 4/04

Duties included direct supervision of 7 staff guardians, staff training and orientation, and

working with the program management team.

Staff Guardian- 8/98 to 10/02

Duties included making medical and treatment decisions for incapacitated adults,

working with treatment teams from a variety of community agencies, and advocacy.

4/83- 11/98 MOORE CENTER SERVICES INC.

Self Determination and Special Projects Director- 2/98 to 11/98

Primary responsibilities included coordination of regional self-determination project a

part of a state-wide grant from the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation. Primary focus

included developing a data collection system, facilitating necessary training, and

identification of systems issues which impacted the ability of the consumers to exercise

choice and control. Secondary responsibilities included coordination of regional quality

assurance activities.
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Quality Assurance Director- 11/93 to 2/98

Areas of authority included coordination of regional quality assurance activities;

coordination of regional client rights activities including complaint investigation,

problem resolution and trend analysis; and, coordination of regional staff development

and training activities.

Director of Regional Residential Services- 2/88-11/93

Areas of authority included directing programmatic support and administrative services

for residential programs services 127 individuals within a seven community region;

management of owned and lease property, negotiating and monitoring subcontracts;

formulation and management of program budget.

Residential Supervisor- 3/86 to 2/88

Supervision of staffed residences; recruitment, training and supervision of private

residential providers; and, coordination of quality assurance and licensing activities.

Various other positions within the agdicy- 4/83 to 3/86

EDUCATION:

1986 NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE, Manchester, New Hampshire

M.S., Human Services Administration

1983 SAINT ANSELM COLLEGE, Goffstown, NH

B.S., Criminal Justice

CERTinCATIONS:

Center for Guardianship Certification:

National Master Guardian 4/2010 to present

National Certified Guardian 10/1999 to 4/2010
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SANDRA CARON

OBJECTIVE:

Utilize community resources to create positive and meaningful programs for individuals

with disabilities.

EDUCATION:

BS in Early Chil^ood Education, Northeastern University, Boston MA. 1986.

Concentrated in Innovative teaching style with understudy in special needs.

WORK EXPERIENCE:

Tri-County CAP. IncJGuardianship Services, Concord, NH 03301 (October, 2007-

Present)

Meet with wards and/or treatment team according to ward's needs and program policy.

Develop and maintain a working relationship with treatment providers. Advocate for the

wards needs. Provide informed consent as necessary and appropriate. Maintain records

and documentation in a timely manner. Complete guardianship reports and

documentation accurately in accordance with program requirements. Demonstrate a

woiking knowledge of state standards for treatment providers.

Life Share Inc. Manchester, NH. (2004 - 2007)

D.S.P. responsible for designing positive community base programs for three individuals.

Administering medication, creating monthly activity calendars and weekly life skill

classes. Develop and conduct staff training sessions. Organize special events aimed at

community inclusion.

EXTENDED COURSES COMPLETED:

On line College Course for Direct Support by The Moore Center

CMT training

Medication Administration- State of NH

Disabilities Quality Of Life, Clients Rights

The Making Of A Home: Home Providers Perspective, seminar

D.D. Worid - Guys and Main Street Man, seminar

Direct Support Conference "Enriching Lives"
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PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS:

NH Developmental Disabilities Council

NH Education Board: Dept. For Training and seminar research

CERTIFICATIONS:

Member of the National Guardianship Association 2008 to present

National Certified Guardian (Centers for Guardianship Certification) 2008 to present
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SHERRl P. LITCHHELD

EDUCATION:

Associates Degree - Liberal Arts

New Hampshire College

EXPERIENCE:

Tri CouQty CAP, Inc^ Guardianship Services, 18 Low Avenue, Concord, New

Hampshire, (603) 224-0805

2010- Present

Staff Guardian:

♦Primary responsibilities include:

♦Provide advocacy and informed consent on behalf of individuals deemed by the Probate

Court as incapacitated and unable to make informed decisions.

♦Advocate for the needs of individual's and for changes in treatment as necessary.
♦Provide informed consent as necessary and appropriate in regards to medical issues that

include, but not limited to, medication authorization and medical treatment.

♦Maintain records and documentation.

♦Develop and maintain a working relationship with treatment provider's that ensure all

services being provided are in the individual's best interest and is in the least restrictive

setting.

♦Attend court hearings as required.
American Red Cross, 2 Maitland Street, Concord, NH 03301, (603) 225-6697

2007 - 2009

Director of Health & Safety:

Responsibilities included:

♦Scheduling all community classes and arranging for instructors to teach classes being

offered.

♦Oversaw the ordering of all Health & Safety equipment and supplies required for

classes.
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♦Supervised per diem instructors and worked closely with outside instructors to ensure

that all Red Cross classes were being conducted per American Red Cross standards.

♦Taught First Aid, CPR (Adult/Infant/Child) when needed. Supervised and oversaw

training of all volunteers within the Health & Safety department.

♦ Responsible for promoting and selling Health & Safety classes to companies and

organizations.

♦Conducted and promoted other Red Cross trainings such as Prepare New Hampshire,

Speakers Bureau, Disaster Services, Services to the Armed Forces, and the LNA

program. Additional responsibilities included data entry, developing annual budget, and

extensive travel throughout New Hampshire.

Granite Bay Connections, Inc^ 54 Old Suncook Road, Concord, NH 03301,

(603) 224-5588

2001-2007

Director of Quality Assurance:

♦Ensuring that all homes that Granite Bay Connection operated met all the requirements
(

for State Certification and full compliance for re-certification. This included monitoring

documentation, commimication, and implementation Of all service components.

♦Also responsible for staff development and training to ensure compliance with state
regulations which included, but was not limited to. Client Rights, Overview of

Developmental Disabilities, Learning Skills, Blood Borne Pathogens, and HIPPA.

♦ Served as the agency HIPPA officer and monitored internal complaints.

♦Supervised the agency RN Nurse Trainer to ensure compliance with the state regulation

that governs medication administration to all individuals receiving services.

♦Maintained direct contact with all local and state agencies to ensure that all means of

communication is happening.
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Program Manager Director:

♦Provided direct support and supervision to Program Managers and the Clinical team
members.

♦Monitored all residential and vocational programs; maintained close contact with state
agencies to address issues that required immediate attention.
♦Responsible for maintaining all internal documentation and all documentation going to
state and local agencies.

♦Worked closely with the CEO and VP for all major decisions involving the agency in
the area of Clinical Development and outside contracts.
♦Also worked closely with the MIS Director and Director of Human Resources

pertaimng to financial'matters and personnel matters.
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MARIE BROCKWAY

Educatiop:

Master of Science, Environmental Studies, Education major

Antioch University New England, Keene NH

Bachelor of Arts, Behavioral Science, History & Philosophy minor

Notre Dame College, Manchester NH

Professional History:

Staff Guardian, TrI-County Community Action Program, Whitefield NH

July 5,2016 to Present

Department of Children and Families, St. Johnsbury VT

October 2015 to June 2016

Deputy Town Clerk/Tax CoUector, Bethlehem NH

April 2014 to March 2016

Town Clerk/Tax Collector, Franconia NH

November 2014 to April 2015 (Interim)

Manager, Springfield Humane Society, Springfield VT

January 2007 - January 2014

Assistant Director, Historic Sites, Kansas State Historical Society, Topeka KS

August 2000 - December 2006

Executive Director, Mt Kearsarge Indian Museum, Education and Cultural Center,

Warner NH

December 1997 - December 1999

Consultant, Nez Perce Tribe Wildlife Department - Wolf Relntroduction Project, .

Lapwai ID

June 1995 - September 1995 (sabbatical from Director of Youth & FamUy Services

position)

Director, Youth & Family Services - Town of Hooksett/Hooksett Police

Department/Hooksett District Court, Hooksett NH

September 1985-January 1998 (position overlapped with Indian Museum)

79



M BROCKWAY *2

Areas of Strength:

Communicatioii/Education:

^Interact with public in person, via email and phone in a fiiendly and professional

manner to answer questions and provide information and services

^Facilitate positive change with individuals and/or groups

♦Cultivate and maintain productive partnerships/relationships with local, state, Tribal

leaders; service agencies, attorney's, the courts and the community in general, including

donors

♦Collect and interpret prioritized information to determine the least restrictive and most

appropriate outcome for wards

♦Mediate competing interests with individuals, groups and communities
♦Organize and motivate community support groups

♦Facilitate meetings by encouraging individual creativity, a team approach and reaching

consensus

♦Speak on relevant topics with individuals and groups in community, academic and

political settings

♦Research, collect, organize and write/edit information for dissemination

♦Edit material for accessibility and content

♦Plan and implement special public event

Administration:

♦Ensure all aspects of performance and operations are managed according to the best

practices as recommended by the prevailing industry standards

♦Maintain accurate focus on numerous simultaneously occurring activities and projects

♦Supervise multiple employees and volunteers

♦Manage human resource issues

♦Interview, hire and evaluate employees and volunteers

♦Develop, implement youth services/historical/environmental/animal welfare programs

♦Develop and administer annual budgets
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M BROCKWAY *3

Board Memberships (Invitational;

♦Identify service gaps, create structure and service delivery plans, develop funding,

coordinate volunteers/employees

♦Project manage interpretive design elements for historic sites including exhibits, written
materials, hands-on components, audio and visual components

♦Review funding requests/proposals and award grant monies
♦Track operational activities

♦Bethlehem Heritage Society, Treasurer - current

♦Lewis & Clark Bicentennial Commemoration, Native American Committee

♦Tallgrass Prairie National Preserve, Cottonwood Falls KS, National Advisory Board

♦Kaw Nation Memorial Heritage Park, Council Grove KS, Master Planning Board

♦Nez Perce Tribe National Trail Committee, Topeka KS, KSHS representative

♦Kansas Historical Markers Committee, Topeka KS, Chair
♦Tri-Town Area Task Force on Domestic Violence, Hooksett NH, Chair

♦Attorney Generars Task Force on Child Abuse and Neglect Prevention, Concord NH

♦Merrimack County Grant review committee. Concord NH

♦Hooksett Emergency Relief Committee, Hooksett NH, founding member
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Katberine Mooney

Objective

To obtain a position working and helping others while gaining more knowledge and

experience.

Highlights of QuallficatioDS

Nationally Certified Guardian through the Center for Guardianship Certification since

October 2008
\

Member of the National Guardianship Association since October 2008

Computer Internet and Research Engines, Microsoft Word, Microsoft PowerPoint, and

Microsoft Excel

Work well independently and in a team

Attention to detail and ability to multitask

Education

Bachelor of Science in Psychology- Plymouth State University, 2007

Concentrations - Mental Health and Psych and Law

Work Experience

Estate Guardian/Conservator/Representative Payee/Estate Administrator

for Tri-County CAP, IncVGuardianship - Whitefield, NH

October 2007 - Present

Guardianship services for elderly and incapacitated adults

Provide administrative and estate support to the Director and Associate Director

Oversee Estate Associate

Assist with the running of rqx)rts and maintenance of the client database system

Completion of Court required reports, inventories, accountings, motions, etc.

Management of income, benefits, and maintaining a client's estate.

Administrative and financial tasks as instructed
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K Mooncy *2

Sales Associate for Jiffy Mart - Lancaster, NH

June 2006 - January 2008

Customer Service

Checking in products and stocking

Observe/card customers for legal purchases Store closing responsibilities

Deli -Preparing Food, Cooking, and Cleaning

Cashier

Data Processor Assistant for Lee F. Carroll, PE - Gorfaam, NH

2001 -2006, As Needed

Assistant typist as needed basis for an electrical engineering company

Rides Attendant for Santa*s Village - Jefferson, NH

June 2001 - December 2005

Customer Service/Public Relations, Monitor safety requirements and adherence.

Ticket Sales, Gift Shop
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Patrick Gilmartin

Highlights of QuallficatioDs:

Nationally Certified Guardian through the Center for Guardianship Certification

November 5,2005 through November 30,2017

Member of the National Guardianship Association November 5, 2005 through Noveinber

30, 2017

Knowledge of public policy and laws regarding the mentally and disabl^ populations

Vast experience with the DOC population since 1974

Professional Experience:

Guardian Support Coordinator - Tri-County CAP, lnc7Guardianship Services

February 2018 - Present

Provide support to other staff members in providing guardianship services.

Public Guardian - Tri-County CAP, IncVGuardianship Services

September 1994 - February 2018

Agent for a court appointed public guardianship agency.

Duties include advocacy, assistance with decision making for mentally incapacitated

adults, court appearances, and preparation and filing of motion.

Residential Staff - Cypress Center

October 1993 - September 1994

Psychiatric assistant in a short-term residential psychiatric care center and respite facility.

Position involved development and implementation of crisis oriented care plans,

conducting treatment and socialization groups, individual counseling, daily

documentation of treatment progress, and operation of the crisis phone line.

Case Manager - The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

December 1979 - May 1987

Service coordinator in a community mental health center.

Responsibilities included coordination of treatment for chronically mentally ill

individuals in various levels of community placements, development and monitoring of

annual treatment plans, crisis intervention and referral to agencies for services as needed.

Group and individual counseling was also provided.
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P GUmartin *2

Residential Coordinator - The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

April 1981 -Febniary 1982

Coordinator of all residential programs within a community mental health center.

Responsible for the development and oversight of a HUD subsidized psychiatric group

home and hiring and direct supervision of program staff.

Wrote a grant to create a transitional apartment program within residential department

Social Worker I - NH State Prison

June 1974 - October 1979

Mental health therapist and case manager within a maximum security prison.

The position began in an autonomous grant funded program providing rehabilitative

treatment to convicted felons. Upon expiration of the grant, the unit became part of the

institution and the focus became case management based. Discharge planning and prison

administrative duties were added.

Assistant Cottage Parent - NH Youth Development Center

January 1974 to June 1974

Supervisor of young offenders in the state's juvenile detention center.

Provide daily routine and structure as well as the maintaining of security.in the

institution.

Therapeutic interaction and qjpropriate role modeling while maintaining proper

boundaries.

Assistance in large group counseling.

Education:

Bachelor of Arts In Psychology- Keene State College, 1973

Bishop Bradley High School, 1969
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Guardiansfaiip Services

JOB DESCRIPTION

Position Titie: Office Manager/Benefits Administrator - MR

Responsible Tor Director or Designee

Role:

Office Manager: Responsible for the overall running of the guardianship office on a daily

basis. Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable Clerk for program. Private Pay Invoice

Clerk.

Benefits Administrator: To research, secure, protect, and maintain all benefits that wards

and clients are eligible for through State and Federal program. Supervises - Benefits

Specialist.

Essential Functions & Responsibilities:

•Guarantee that the guardianship office runs efficiently, smoothly, and in a professional

marmer daily per set protocols and procedures. Guarantees that staff associates will meet

identified deadlines, certification and training requirements, and overall program

expectations.

♦Receipt of private revenue, tracking, processing, and reporting by program and
corporation requirements in conjunction with the Director to guarantee consistency in
reporting program revenue.

♦Preparation of private pay invoices on a monthly basis by program protocols and
procedures, including tracking of payments and non-payments for additional finalization.

♦Receipt of program operational invoices fiom vendors, prqjaration and processing of
vouchers by program and corporation requirements in conjunction with the Director to

guarantee consistency flow of expenditures.

♦Primary point of contact for all financial associates to request assistance in their
understanding of all benefit programs through the Social Security Administration,
including Medicare and Medicare supplemental insurance plans, and through the
Department of Human Services, including expanded Medicaid supplemental plans,
Medicaid, APTD/Cash, Food Stamps, and Extra Help eligibility. This is in coordination
with the Director as needed. Additionally includes the application process for all
programs.

86



Office Manager/Benefits Administrator - MR

Job Description *2

♦ORGANIZATION IS ESSENTIAL.

♦Guarantee that office and phone reception is being provided in a professional manner.
♦Maintain files in an organized and retrievable manner as outlined by program policies
and procedures. Each file setup should be identical.
♦Develop a basic understanding of Guardianship Laws and Responsibilities.
♦Perform any and all other duties as deemed necessary by the Director or Designee.
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:

♦Experience: Must have office and business experience.

♦Organizational skills needed. Must have a financial skill set.

♦Ability to work in short-term, high stress situations. Ability to work independently and
with other people.

♦Education: A high school education or GED.

♦Job specific skills acquired through on-the-job training.
♦Interpersonal Skills Courtesy, tact, and diplomacy are essential elements of the job.
♦Work involves much personal contact with others inside and/or outside the organization
for purposes of giving or obtaining information, building relationships, or soliciting
cooperation. Motivation of staff associates is also essential.

♦Other Skills Ability to Icam and retain multiple regulatory guidelines and requirements.
♦Ability to work independently and with others.

♦Must have excellent observation and communications skills, both oral and written.

♦Ability to work in short-term, high stress situations.

♦Knowledge of bookkeeping procedures.

♦Computer literacy
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Office Manager/Benefits Administrator - MR

Job DescriptioD *3

Physical Requirements:

•The ability to work in conditions that arie compromising relative to the cleaning out of

assigned wards homes, storage units, etc.

*The ability to lift a minimum of 50 lbs. and/or assist other staff associates with large

furniture or other personal belongings.

*Work Environment Exposure to unfavorable conditions which may require protective

clothing.
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Guardianship Services

JOB DESCRIPTION

Position Title: Administrative Associate/Payee and Benefits Associate - DFC

Responsible To: Director or Designee

Role:

The primary responsibilities of this position are to provide support, payee, and benefit

services as solely defined.

Essential Functions & Responsibilities:

^Research files, access computer databases, etc. for the preparation of accurate annual

Reports of Persons as required by the Probate Courts including the maintenance of an

Excel Spreadsheet for tracking of filing dates for all wards.

♦Research files, access computer databases, work in conjunction with other staff
members or outside individuals in order to maintain all subsidized housing benefits for
clients and wards. Indirect supervision of administrative associate/housing duties.
♦Meet all wage reporting obligations as required by The Social Security Administration
for continuance of benefits for all clients and wards as identified by program protocols
and requirements in approved format.

♦Provide administrative support to staff members as needed or as available time will
allow. Must maintain additional payee duties in the first instance.
♦Maintain client and office files in an organized and retrievable manner.
♦Develop a basic understanding of Guardianship Laws and Responsibilities.
♦Perform any and all other duties as deemed necessary by the Director or Designee.
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:

♦Experience; Must have office and business experience.
♦Organizational skills needed. Must have a financial skill set.

♦Ability to work in short-temi, high stress situations. Ability to work independently and
with other people.
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Administrative Secretary/Payee and Benefits Associate - DFC

Job DescriptioD *2

♦Education: A hi^ school education or GED.

♦Job specific skills acquired through on the job training.

♦Interpersonal Skills Courtesy, tact, and diplomacy are essential elements of the job.

♦Work involves much personal contact with others inside and/or outside the organization

for purposes of giving or obtaining information, building relationships, or solicitiog

cooperation.
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Guardianship Service

JOB DESCRIPTION

Position Title: Administrative Assistant/Reconciliation Clerk -DMC

Responsible To: Director or Designee

Role:

♦To provide administrative support to the program to ensure availability of information
by multiple users.

♦To research files to gather information as may be required for mandatory reports and
applications.

Essential Functions & Responsibilities:

♦Reconcile and audit Bank of NH and TD Bank accounts on a monthly basis.
♦Database management including updating of addresses and other essential information
including client wages, entering account balances into the budget database, etc.
Uploading medical documents to the database. Reporting to the Courts when a ward has a
change of address as required either by mail or the new ECourt system.
♦Provide assistance as requested with processing of housing re-certifications and leases.
♦Provide assistance in researching files for the completion of Annual Reports of Person
as required by the Probate Court.

♦Maintain fully dociunented records by program protocols and procedures.
♦Maintain client and office files in an organized and retrievable manner.
♦Develop a basic understanding of Guardianship Laws and Responsibilities.
♦Other duties as requested including signing payee disbursement checks, etc.
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:

♦Experience: Must have office and business experience; bookkeeping experience is
required.

♦Education: *A high school education or GED. Accounting certificate preferred.
♦Job specific skills acquired through on the job training.
♦Interpersonal Skills Courtesy, tact, and diplomacy are essential elements of the job.
♦Work involves contact with others inside and/or outside for purposes of giving or
obtaining information, building relationships, or soliciting cooperation.
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Guardianship Services

JOB DESCRIPTION

Position Titie: Office Cleric/Receptionist -AB(PT) and PGerman (FT)

Responsible To: Director or Designee

Role:

*To serve as the first point of contact for outside parties and visitors. Perform

miscellaneous secretarial/receptionist duties in supporting the needs of others in the

organization.

Essential Functions & Responsibilities:

♦Provides office reception to visitors and answers the telephone. Directs or forwards the
visitor or caller to the proper party or takes messages when appropriate.
♦Manages the phone system and fax machine, sending faxes for other departments as
needed; sets procedures for use of phone system and fax machine, programs machines,
and resolves equipment problems. General office support.
♦Receives and sorts incoming mail for distribution to the appropriate associate. Ensures
that mail requiring signature and return is processed in a timely manner.
♦Maintains general and administrative files and records. Uploads documents to program
database for use by internal parties.

♦Performs other job-related duties as assigned.
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:

Experience: Three months to twelve months of similar or related experience.
Education: A high school education or GED.

♦Job specific skills acquired through on the job training.

♦Interpersonal Skills Excellent communication and customer service skills required.
♦Ability to work independently and with others.

♦Work normally involves contacts with persons beyond immediate associates generally
regarding routine matters for purposes of giving or obtaining information which may
require some discussion. Outside contacts take the form of service to the public
(customers or vendors) requiring ordinary courtesy in providing assistance and

information.
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Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
30 Exchange Street

Berlin, NH^03570

603-837-9561

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $115,000

Dawn Ferringo Division Director/Prevention Services $49,500

Donna Keddy Program Director $59,862

Jayne McCabe Associated Director/Staff Guardian $48,450

Sandi Caron Staff Guardian $29,120

Sherri Litchfield '  Staff Guardian $29,120

Marie Brockway Staff Guardian $29,120

Katie Mooney Estate Staff Guardian $35,190

Patrick Gilmartin Staff Support Coordinator $27,040

Administrative Staff

Meredith Robinson Office Manager/Benefits Administrator $31,500

Diane F. Cross Administrative Secretary $29,120

Diane M. Caruso Administrative Associate - 30 hours $15,912

Pauline German Receptionist/Whitefield Staff-35 hours $19,110

Andrea Baird Receptionist/Concord - PT-20 hours $9,495



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD, NH OSSOl-1806

60S-271-6610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access; 1-800-736-2964

www.Dh.fov/nbdcK:

Helen E. Honks

Conunissioner

Robin H. Maddaus

Director

May 18,2018

His Excellency, Governor Chrislopher T. Sunimu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

G&C

Pending

Approved —IqOo

REOUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Corrections to enter into a contract with Tri-County Community
Action Program, inc. (VC# 177195), 34 Jefferson Road, Whilefield, NH 03598, in the amount of S26,304.00. for
the provision of Guardianship Services effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval for the period
beginning July I, 2018 through June 30, 2021, with the option to renew for one (1) additional period of up to two
(2) year(s) subject to Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% General Funds.

Funding for this contract is available in account, Medical-Dental: 02-46-46^65010-8234-101-500729, as follows
with the authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the State fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed
and justified. Funding for SFY 2020 and 202) is contingenl upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds.

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Account Description SFY 2019 SFY 2020 SFY 2021

02-46-46-465010-8234-101 -500729 Medical Providers 6,570.00 8,784.00 10,950.00

Total Contract Amount: $26,304.00

EXPLANATION

This Contract is for the provision of guardianship and protective services to safeguard the liberty and well being
of persons who because of functional limitations have suffered, are suffering, or arc likely to suffer substantial
harm due lo an inability to provide for personal needs, food, clothing, shelter, healthcare, safely or an inability to
manage their properly or financial affairs. Guardianship and protective services under this contract arc to be
provided lo persons at risk of harm to person or estate whom the Slate of New Hampshire has responsibility to
safeguard pursuant to RSA 21-H:8.

Die RJT was posted on the New Hampshire Department of Corrections website:
htip://ww\s'.nh.gov.nhdoc/business/rfb.htmi for six (6) consecutive weeks and notified one (I) potential vendor of
the RFP posting. As a result of Uic issuance of the RFP, one (1) potential vendor responded by submitting their
proposal. After the review of the proposal and in accordance with the RFP Terras and Conditions, the New

Promo(ing Public Safety through tnicgrity. Respect. Professionalism, Collaboration and Accountability



Hampshire Dq)artnicDt of Corrections awarded the coolract, in the amount of $26,304.00, to the incumbent. Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc..

This RFP was scored utilizing a consensus methodology by a four (4) person evaluation committee for the
purposes of preserving the privacy of the evaluators. The evaluation committee consisted of New Hampshire
Department of Corrections employees: Paula Mattis, FACHE, Director, Medical & Forensic Services, NH
Department of Corrections, Bemie Campbell, BS, FT, Deputy Director, Medical & Forensic Services, NH
Dq)aitment of Corrections, Joyce Leeka, Operations Administrator, NH Department of Corrections and Jennifer
Lind, Contract/Grant Administrator, NH Department of Corrections.

Respectfully Submitt^

len £.

Commissioner

Protnoting Pubiic Safety through btegrity. Re^MCt. Pipfessioaalisra. CoUabontion and AccountabtUty



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1806 Robin H. Maddaus

CONCORD, NH 03802-1806 Director

608-2714610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access: 1-800-786-2964

www.nh.gov/nbdoc

RFP Bid Evaluation and Summary
GuardiRDsbip Services
NHDOC 18-04-GFMED

Proposal Receipt and Review:

•  Proposals will be reviewed (o initially determine if minimum submission requirements have been met.
The review will verify that the proposal was received before the date and lime specified, with the correct
number of copies, the presence of all required signatures, and that the proposal is sufficiently responsive
to the needs outlined in the RFP to permit a complete evaluation. Failure to meet minimum submission
requirements will result in the proposal being rejected and not included in the evaluation process.

•  The Department will select a group of personnel to act as an evaluation team. Upon receipt, the
proposal information will be disclosed to the evaluation committee members only. The proposal will
not be publicly opened.

•  The Dqiartment reserves the right to waive any irregularities, minor deficiencies and informalities that it
considers not material to the proposal.

•  The Department may cancel the procurement and make no award, if that is determined to be in the
State's best interest.

Proposal Evaluation Criteria:

•  Proposals will be evaluated based upon the proven ability of the respondents to satisfy the requirements
of this request in the most cost-effective manner. Specific criteria are:

a. Total Estimated Cost - 45 points
b. Organizational Resources and Capability - 25 points
c. Program Structure/Plan of Operation - 20 points
d. Financial Stability - 10 points

•  Awards will be made to the responsive Vendorfs) whose proposals are deemed to be the most
advantageous to the State, taking into consideration all evaluation factors in section 31 of NHDOC 18-
04-GFMED Guardianship Services RFP.

a. The contract will be awarded to the Bidder submitting a response based on the demonstrated
capabilities and skills in relation to the needs of the services identified in the RFP without
reducing the current functions of the Department and as long as the Vendor's Total Estimated
Cost, Organizational Resources and Capability, Program Structure/Plan of Operation and
Financial Stability are acceptable to the C^artment.

Evaluation Team Members:

•  Paula Mattis, FACHE, Director, Medical & Forensic Services, NH Department of Corrections
•  Bemie Campbell, BS, FT, Deputy Director, Medical & Forensic Services, NH Department of Corrections
•  Joyce Leeka, RHIA, Operations Administrator, Medical & Forensic Services, NH Department of Corrections
•  Jennifer Lind, MBA, CMA, Contract/Grant Administrator, Administration, NH Department of Corrections

Promoting Pul>lie Snfety througfi iDlegrily, Rnpcrt, Profetsienalism, CoUabontton and Accountability

Sttte «/NH, Dtptrtment of Corrtctions RFP lt-04'CFMED, dosing date: 3/2/20!t
Division of Medical A Forensic Services



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1806

CONCORD. NH 03S02-1806

603-271-6610 FAX: 1-888-908-6609

TDD Access: 1-800-786-2964

www.nh.cov/nhdoc

RFP Scoring Matrix
Guardianship Services
NHDOC 18-04-GFMED

Helen M. Hanks

Commissioner

Robin H. Maddaus

Director

Respondents:

Tri'County CAP, Inc.
30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570

Scoring Matrix Criteria:

•  Proposals were evaluated based on the proven ability of the respondents to satisfy the provisions set forth in
the Scope of Services in the most technical and cost-effective manner.

1. Total Estimated Cost - 45 points
2. Organizational Resources and Capability - 25 points
3. Program Structure/Plan ofOperation-20 points
4. Financial Stability - 10 points

NHDOC 18-04-G"THED RFP ScoriaZ Matrix

Evaluation Criteria
RFP Weight
Point Value

Tri-County CAP, Inc.

Total Estimated Cost 45 45

Organizational Resources and Capability 25 22

Program Structure/Plan ofOperation 20 17

. Financial Stability 10. 10 .

Total 100 94

Contract Award:

Tri-County CAP. Inc.
30 Exchange Street
Berlin. NH 03570

Promoting Publk Safety through Integrity, Respect, Prorettlonalism, Collaboration and AecounubiUly

RFP t8-04-CFM£D. dcsing date: 3/2/lOttState ofNH, Department ofCorrtetlons
Division of Medical A Forensic Services



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS Co^s "o"*!'
DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1606 Robin H. Maddaut

CONCORD, NH 03802-1806 Director

608-271-5610 FAX: 1-66S-908-6609

TDD Access: 1-800-786-2964

www.Dh.gov/nbdoc

RFP Evaluation Committee Member Qualifications
Guardianship Services
NHDOC 18-04-GFMED

Paula Mattis FACHE. Division Director, Medical & Forensic Services:

Ms. Mattis recently joined the NH Dqiaitment of Corrections serving as the Non-Medical Director, Division of
Medical & Forensic Services. Her professional history includes seven years as Administrator of Community
Integration at the State of New Hanq)shire, New Hampshire Hospital, four years as Chief Operating Officer and
three years as Acting CEO. Prior to this appointment, Ms. Mattis was President and Chief Executive Oflicer of
the Animal Rescue League of New Hampshire. Ms. Mattis received her Bachelor of Arts degree with honors in
Psychology (major) and Sociology (minor) from the University of Texas and a Master's of Social Work,
specializing in Community Mental Health fitim the University of Illinois.

Bernie Campbell. BS, FT. Deputy Director. Medical & Forensic Services:

Ms. Campbell is the Deputy Director for the Division of Medical & Forensic Services for the NH Department of
Corrections. In this capacity, Ms. Can^bell's role is to administer and supervise allied health services for the
Division of Medical & Forensic Services and is responsible to ensure public and institutional safety for all sites
through staff and contract monitoring and evaluation. Ms. Carr^bell is a graduate of UMass Lowell and has
involvement with the Dq}artment for over twenty-eight years, most recently in the capacity of Director of
Rehabilitation Services. Ms. Campbell's past experience has included ownership of a physical therapy clinic as
well as vast acute care hospital experience.

Joyce Leeka, RHIA. Medical Qperatiops Administrator. Medical & Forensic Services:

Ms. Leeka is the Operations Administrator for the Medical and Forensic Services Division for the NH Department
of Corrections. In this capacity Ms. Leeka is the subject matter expert for Health Information Management. This
includes medical privacy (HIPAA), record management, Electronic Health Records and medical coding and
billing to include the new ICD-IO-CM system. Ms. Leeka is the Utilization Management Administrator for
medical ancillary services and the Division's Contract Administrator. Ms. Leeka is a graduate of the University
of Central Florida and has held positions of HIM Director, QI/UM Director and UM Coordinator in a variety of
-hospitals on both the east and west coasts. Ms. Leeka has also worked as a consultant in the areas of QI and long-
term care. Ms. Leeka has past experience teaching ICD-9 coding, medical terminology to business office staff,
DRG orientation to nursing staff and coordinated hospital-wide discharge planning activities.

Pr«RMtiiig Public Safety ihroucb Inlefrily, Reipcct, ProfetsionaUsm, CoUaborallon lod AccountablKly

Slare.9f NH, Department ofCorrections RFP lt-04-CFMED. dosinf date: 3/2/2919
Division of Medical di Forensic Services



Jennifer Lind. MBA. CMA> Contract/Grant Administrator. Adroipistration;

Ms. Lind has served as the Contract and Grant Administrator since 2010. Ms. Lind is responsible for the
development of the Department's request for proposals (RFPs), contracts and grants maiiagemcnt. Ms. Lind's
cuirent responsibilities include all aspects of the RfP delivery from project management, data collection, drafting
and cross function collaboration; procurement functions and management of the Department's medical,
programmatic and maintenance contracts and provides managerial oversight to the Grant Division for the
Department. Prior to Ms. Lind's promotion to the Contract/Grant Administrator, she held the Program Specialist
IV, Contract Specialist position and the Grant Program Coordinator position of the Department. Prior to her
employment with the Department, Ms. Lind held the position of Assistant Grants Administrator at the Community
College System of New Hampshire for ten years. Ms. Lind received her Bachelors of Science in Accounting
from Franklin Pierce College and a Master's of Management with a Healthcare Administration concentration
from New England College. Ms. Lind has supplemented her education from prior experience in the pre-hospital
care setting and has maintained her Certified Medical Assistant license since 1998.

Premollng Public Safety Ibrousb lnlcsrity<-Re»pect, Profcttlonalism, CoUaboniUon and Accountability

Stare of NH, Department ofCorreetions HFP lt-4>4-CFMED, dosing date: 3/2/2011
Division of Medical A Forensie Services



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS Co^s"o«/
DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX 1806 Robio H. Maddaus

CONCORD, NHOSSOM806 Director

608-271-6610 PAX: 1-88-908-6609

TDD Access: 1-800-766-2964

www.nh.|^ov/doc

Bidders List

Guardianship Services
NHDOC 18-04-GFMED

Xri-CouDty Community Action Program, Inc.
Main:

30 Exchange Street
Berlin, NH 03570
Satellite:

34 Jefferson Road

Whitefield, NH 03598
Jeanne Roblllard, CEO

Contact: Donna Keddy
(o) 603-837-9561
(e) dkeddv@tccguardianshiD.org
(w) www.tccaD.org

Premodag Public Safety through Inlegiily, Respect, Professlenalhtn, CeUaberallen and Acceuntablllly
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FORM NUMBQl P-37 (version 5/8/ISy

1.

Notice: This ftgreeoKDt and aO of its attachnrots shall become pubbc upon subtnssion to Governor and
Executive CouncQ for approval AnyinfoTTnation that is private, confidential orproprictaiy mist
be cleariy identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AC31EEMENT

The State of New Hanopshire and theContiactor hereby mituaOy agree as foUows:

G3ENERAL PROVISIONS

mBNTIFlCATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Dqiaitment ofCorrectioos

12 State Agency Address
P.O. Box 1806, Concord, NH 03302
105 Pleasant Street. Concord, NH 03301

13 Contractor Name

Tri^unty Coamuity Action Program, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

30 Bcchange Street, Berlin, NH 03570

1.S Contractor Phone

Nuinbcr

603-837-9561

1.6 AccountNumber

02-46-46-465010-8234-101-

500729

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2021

1.8 Price Unitation

$26204.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Helen E Hanks. Commssioner

f\

1.10 State Agency Telephone Nuiii>er
603-271-5603

1.11 ContiactorEknature 1 ( \ 1.12 Name andTitle of Contractor Signatory
Jeanne L RobiOard. Chief Emcutive Officer

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of KlCw County of Cc^

On the undersigned officer, personally appearedthe person identified in block 1.12, orsatislactorily
name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that a/he executed this document in the capacity

indica»^^loclMV12.
1.13.gA£(rg(7HiifllflTmHiy,WSbc or Justiceof the Peace
=  expires *. E ,/y ̂
1 ; NOV. 22,2022 : 2--^^

1.132 Of Justice ofthe Peace

hnsVen£'^Ai^e
1.14 /State Agency^igodhire

^LiiLjL^MhvJ4/3 Da.c:,<r//<r//"8'
1.15 Name andTHle of State Agency Signatory

Helen E. Hanks, Conunlssloner

-4^ Approval B^tKcBIJft D^artment of Administfation.Division ofPersonnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, Ob:
)

1.17 ApprovalbytheAttomeyGeneral (Fom^ SubstanceandExecution) ('<yopp/(cob/e^

'd-ztlIS
1.18 Jkippraj^^bytheGogpfnorandBccutive CouncD (if applicable)

r  BWnV SECRETARY OF STATE Jun oe 2018
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONHUCTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The SUte of New Hanpsbire, actiog
through thcagcncy identified in block 1.1 ("State*^), engages,
conuactortdentiried in block 13 (^^ntractor") toperfom\
and the Contractor sbaOperfono, tbewoik or caieofgoods,or
botb, identified and more particularly descrftiedin tbe attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFBCnVE DAlEyCOMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provbbnofthts Agreement to the
cootiaiy, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
ENBCutrve Council ofthe State of New Hanpshiie, if
applicable, this Agreement^ and aQ obhgatkms ofthe parties
hereundcr, shall become effective on the date the Governor

and Becutive Council approve this Agreement as indicated to
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become efiective on the date the
Agreement is signedby the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
33 IftheCootjactcrcomncnces the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shaD be performed at tbe sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shaD have no HabiHty to the
Contractor, inctuding without limctatioo, any r^hgation to pay
the Contractor for any costs mcurred or Services performed.
Contractornust cooplete aD Services by (heCbnpletioo Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONOmONAL NATURE OF AOIE^ENT.

Notwithstanding any provision ofthis Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercunder, tnchiding,
without hnitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event sbaU the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess ofsuchava2able appropriated
funds. In the event ofa reduction or termmatioa of

appropriated funds, the State shaBbave the right to withhold
payment until such fiinds become avaOable, if ever, and shaD
have therigbt totemmate this Agreement immediately upon
giviDgtheContnctorDoticeofsuchtermiQatioo. TheState
shall not be required to trans fer funds fiom any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 In the event funds in thai

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE UMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and tens of
payment are identified and more paiticuhriy descrfoed in
EXHIBrr B which is incorporated herein by reference.
53 The payment by the State ofthe contract p^ sbaO be the
only and the conplete reini>urscn]ent to the Contractor for bD
expenses, ofwhatever nature mcurred by the Contractor in the
perfomnnce hereof and shaD be the only and the conpletc
coopeiisalioo to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than tbe contract
price.

53 The State reserves the right to ofiset fiom any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor underthis Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or pemxtted by NJi RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7< oranyotherprovisioooflaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding uneipectedcircuffistances, in
DO event shall tbe total of aO payments autborizBd, or actually
irade hereunder, exceed the Price Linatation set forth in block
U.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WHH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPL0YME3VT
OPPORTWITY.

6.1 In connection with the perfonmnce ofthe Services^ the
Contractor shall comply w^ aD statutes, hws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or imnicipal authorities
which iopose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
bchiding, but not iimtted to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure thatpersons with conminication
disabilities, mckiding vision, hearing and speech, can
commmicate with, receive infonmtion fiont and convey
infonmtioD to the Contractor, b additioo, the Contractor
shaD coiqpiy with aD applicable copyrigbtlaws.
63 During the term ofthis Agreement, the Contractor shaO
QOldiscrimmatc against en^loyees or applicants for
enployment becauseofrace, color, rehgion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, ornational oiigia and win
affirmatrve action toprevent suchdiscrinxaatioD.
63 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies ofthe
United States,the CootraclorshaO compty with all the
provbionsofBecuttve Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Oppoitunity"^ as supplemented by the
regulations ofthe United States D^artment of Labor (41
CFJL Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelmes
astheStateofNcwHangishjre or the United States issueto
mylenCTt theseregubtioru.ThcContiactor furtheragrecs to
pcmxt the State or United States access to any ofthe
Contractor's books, records and accounts for thepurposeof
uccitainmg compliance with aD rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and condkions ofthis Agreement

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 The ContractorshaD at its own expense provide aD •
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that aD personnel engaged in the Services shaO be
qualified to perform the Services, and shaD be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under aD applicable
bws.

73 .Unless otherwise authorized m writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period ofsix (6) months ailer the
Conpletion Dale in block 1.7, the ContractorshaD not hire,
and shaD not permit anysubcontractororotherpersoo, firm or
corporation ̂ th v^om it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, aoyperacowbo is a State
employee or ofificial, who is materially involved in the
procurement, admmbtratioo or perfonmnce ofthis
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'AgreemcDt. This provbtoo shall survivetenimatioa oftbis
Agreement.
7J The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, orbb or
her successor, sbaD be the State's representative. In the event

ofany dbpute concerning the bteipretatioo of thb Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decbion shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following actsorombsions ofthe
Contractor shaD constitute an event of defaub berettnder

("Event ofDefault"):

8.1.1 fiuhire to perform the Services satb&ctorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required bereunder, and/or
8.IJ failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
ofthb Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occuireoce of any Event of Deftuh, the State
nay take any one, or more, or aU, of the foQowmg actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
ofDe&ub and requiring it to be remedied wbbin, m the
absence ofa greater or lesser specification of tone, thirty (30)
days fiam the date of the notice; and if the Event of Deftub b
nottimeiy remedied, terminate thb Agreeraeot, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice oftennnatioo;
$22 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
ofDefauh and suspendingaD payments to be made undertbb
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwbe accrue to the Cbntnctor during the
period fiom tbedateofsucb notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Defaub

shall neverbe paid to the Contractor,
8.2J set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason ofany
Event of Deftub; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agieeumt as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENnALITY/

PRESQIVATION.

9.1 As used in thb Agreement, the word "data"shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance oC or acquired or developed by reason of^ thb
Agreement, inchrding, but not tinited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys,imps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordmgs, Pretoria! reproductions,drat^gs, analyses,
graphic representations,con|)UterprogranB. coofruter
printouts,notes,letters, memoranda, papers,and documents,
all whether finbbcd or unfinbbed.

92 AD data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under thb Agreement, sbaD be the property ofthe State, and
shall be returned to the State upon detrand or upon
terrrenation of thb Agreement for any reason.
93 Confidentiality ofdataihaD be governed by Nil RSA
cbapter91>A or other exbting law. Dbclosure ofdata
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early temmation of
thb Agreement for any reason other than the completion ofthe
Services, the Contractor shaO deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Tetmination Report") describing in
detail aD Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and includiDg the date oftermmatioo. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Temination
Report sbaO be identical to those of any Final Report
descrfted in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11.CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE In

the performance of thb Agreement the Contractor b in aU
respects an mdependent contractor, and b neither an agent nor
an enployee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, enfiloyees, agents ormembcrs shaD baveauthority to
bind the Stale or receive any benefits, workers' condensation
or other emohmmts provided by the State to its etqptoyees.

12. ASS IGNMETTT/DELEGATION/S UBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor sbaD notassign.or otherwbe transfer any
interest in thb Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shaD be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent ofthe Slate.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shaO defend,

mdemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, fiom and against any and aD lossessufferedbythe
State, its officers and employees, and any and aO claims,
habihties orpenalties assertedagainsttheState, its officers
and enpbyees.by or on behalf of any person, on accoimtof^
based or resultmgfroiix arising out of(or which may be
claimed toarbe outof) the actsorombsions ofthe
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shaD be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign mmioity of the State, which imiiiDity b hereby
reserved to the State. Thb covenant in paragraph 13 shaD
survive the temination of thb Agreement.

I4.INSIIUNCE:.

14.1 The Ointractor shaQ, at its sole eipcnse, obtain and
OBintain in force, and shaD require any subcontractoror
assignee to obtain and ob intain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive generalHabOity insurance againstaO
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
ofnot less than Si,000,OOOper occurrence and S2,000.(}<X)
aggregate; and
14.13 spectalcauseofloss coveragefoim covering all
property subject to subparagrq)b 92 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property,
143 The policies descrD>ed in subparagraph 14.1 herein sbaD
be on policy forms and endorsements ̂ proved for use in the
State ofNew Haspshire by the Nil Depaitmeot of
Insurance, and bsued by insurers licensed in the State of New

Page
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143 The Coatnctor shall furnish to the Cootiacting 0£Bcer
identified in block 1^, or his or her successor, a ceTtjfictte(s)
of insurance for aD insurance required underthis Agreement.
ContractorshaD also furnish to the Contracting OflBccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) ofmsurance required under thb
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the ejq)irBtioo
date ofeach ofthemsurancepohcies. Tbecertificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shaD be attached and are
incoiporated herein by reference. Each ceftificate(s) of
insurance sbaD contain a clause requtring the insurer to
provide the Contracting OflBccr identified m block 1.9, or his
orhersuccesscr.Doless than thirty (30) days prior written
notice ofcanceDatioo or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
orexenpt fron\ theiequirearDts ofNil. RSA chapter281-A

{'Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent tbeContractor is subjectto the
requirements cfNJl RSA chapter 281-A, Oontiactor sbtO
mamtain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, paymentofWorkers'Compensation in
connection with activities wbich the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agrecmeut. ContractorshaD
furnish the Contiactmg OflBccr identified in bbck 1.9, or his
orher successor,proofofWorkers' Conpensation in the
tnaimer described in Nii RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable reoewal(s) tbereot which shaD be attached and are
tncorporated herein by reference. The State sbaO not be
responsible for payment of any Woikers' Conpensation
prenmuns or for any otherclakn or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractororenployee of Contractor, which naght
arise underapplic^le State of New Haiipshire Workers'
Conpensatioo laws m connection with the performance of the
Services underthis Agreement.

16.WAIVEK OF BREACH. No ftOure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereofafter any Event of Defiiuh shaO
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequentBventofDe&uIt. No erpress
failure to enforce any Event of De&uh sbaD be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and aO of the
provisions hereofupon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17.NOTICE Anynoticebyapartyheretototheotherparty
shaD be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified maQ, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post O&e addressed to thepailies at the addresses
given in blocks 13 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrament in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver ordiscbargeby the Governor and
Erecutive CouncD of theStateof New Haitpshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State bw, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AOIEEMENT AND lERlVfi.

This Agreement shaD be construed in accordance with the
bws oftbe State of New Hanpshire, and Is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the paities and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agrecmeut
is the wording chosen by the paities to opicss their nutual
btent, and no rale of construction shaD be ̂ pbed against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. Tbeparties heretodonotintcnd to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shaD in no way be held to erpbki, modify, anpHfy or
aid b the bteipretation, construction ormeanbg of the
provisions ofthb Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVSlOhK. Additbnalprovbionsset
forth b the attached EXHIBIT C are bcoiponted hereb by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In theeventanyoftbeprovbbnsof
thb Agreement are held byacourtofconpetentjuibdictioc to
be contrary to any state or federal bw, therermbbg
provbions of thb Agreement wiD remab b fuD force and
efiect.

24. ENTIRE AGSIEEMENT. Thb Agreement, which may
be executed b a number ofcounterparts,each ofwhich shaD
be deemed an or^bal, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understandbg between the paities, and supersedes aD prior
Agreements and undeistandmgs rebtbg hereto.
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Scope of Services
Exhibit A

SECTION D: Scope of Services, Exhibit A

1. Purpose:
The purpose of this Request for Proposal is to provide guardianship services to safeguard the liberty
and well-being of persons who, because of functional limitations, have suffered, are suffering, or are
likely to suffer substantial barm due to an inability to provide for personal needs for health care,
safety or an inability to manage their property or financial affairs.

2. Terms of Contract:

A Contract awarded by the NH Department of Corrections as a result of this RFP is expected to be
effective for the period beginning July 1, 2018 or upon approval by the Governor and Executive
Council (G&C) of the State of New Hampshire whichever Is later through June 30i 2021, with an
option to renew for an additional period of up to two (2) years, only after the approval of the
Commissioner of the NH Department of Corrections aiKl the Governor and Executive Council.

3. Location of Services:

3.1. Northern NH Correctional Facility (NCF), Berlin, NH; Secure Psychiatric Unit (SPU),
Concord, NH and Southern NH Correctional Facilities: NH State Prison for Men (NHSP-M),
Residential Treatment Unit (RTU), Concord, NH; Community Corrections - Men,
Transitional Housing Units (THU), Concord and Calumet House, Manchester, NH;
Transitional Woric Center (TWC), Concord, NH; Community Corrections - Women, THU
(Shea Farm), Concord. NH and NH Correctional Facility for Women (NHCF-W), Goffstown,
NH which are marked with an "X" below:

Nortbcro Reeion - Northern NH Correctional Facility

X Northern NH CoTTCClional Facility (NCF) 138 East Milan Road Berlin. NH 03S70

Southern Reeioa - Southern NH Correctional Facilities
X NH Stale Prison for Men - (NHSP- M) 281 North State Street Concord. NH 03301

Secure Psychiatric Unit (SPU) 281 North State Street Concord. NH 033O1

Residential Treatment Unit (RTU) 28) North State Street Concord, NH 03301

X Community Corrections - Men (North End House) 1 Perimeter Road Concord. NH 03301

X Community Corrections - Men (Calumet House) 126 Lowell Street Manchcslcr. NH 03104

X Trmsitional Work Center (TWC) 27S North Slate Street' Concord. NH 03301

X Community Corrections - Women (Shea Fann) 60 Iron Works Road Concord, NH 03301

X ^NH CoTTCCtional Fadlity for Women - (NHCF-W) 317 Mast Road Gofrsiown,NH 0304S

3.2. Partial Proposals for requested services for the Northern and Southern Regional Area shall
not be accepted.

3.3. Proposals that reduce the NH Department of Corrections current functions shall not be
accepted.

3.4. Locations may be added and/or deleted after the awarding of a Contract at the discretion of
the Department and upon mutual agreement of the Commissioner of the Department of
Corrections and the Contractor.

3.5. In the event that the NH Department of Corrections wishes to add or remove facilities at
which the Contractor is to provide services, it shall:
3.5.1. Give the Contractor fourteen (14) days written notice of the proposed change; and

The Department is eurrenify building a new NH Correctional Facility for Women behind the existing NH Slate Prisonfor Men's
facility in Concord, NH: services will be tronsiiloned lo the new focUily oner opened by the Departmeni.

ProDOdog PubUc Stfcty ibrosgb lotcgrlty, Respect, ProfcisioDsUsiD, CoDsbonillon aod AccoHotsbUtt)'

State of NH, Department of Correcdons
Division of Medical d Forensk Services

RFP I8-C4'GFMED, Hosing date: 3/2/2018
Page 20 M 36
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Scope of Services
Exhibit A

3.5.2. Secure the Contractor's written agreement to the proposed changes.
3.6. Notwithstanding the foregoing, or any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in no

event shall changes to facilities be allowed that modify the "Completion Date" or "Price
Limitation" of the Agreement

4. Background:
Not all inmates/patients under the custody of the NH Department of Corrections have the ability to
make informed decisions. Specifically, public guardians arc needed for both inmates and patients for
both the person and estate as many of these inmates and patients do not have assets and do meet
public guardianship indigence standards. A growing number of residents and patients who need
guardians have no family willing or able to serve as guardians. To help address this need, the NH
Department of Corrections will require guardianship services to be available to the inmates and
patients represented by guardianship slots.

5. Current Guardian Slots:

The current estimated number of guardianship slots needed for the NH Department of Corrections is
three (3). The NH Department of Corrections anticipates the need to provide for one (I) additional
guardianship slot fw year two and three of die origina] contract period. This is based on the number
of commitments estimated for the Sexually Violent Predator Act, effective January 1, 2007, and the
increasing number of aging inmates and patients with physical, mental and behavioral issues.

6. Proposed Slots:
It is expected that the NH Department of Corrections will require additional guardianship slots above
our current status of two (2) to compensate for longer sentences associated with RSA 135-E and our
increasing chronically mentally ill population, specifically targeting the elderly.

SPY 19

7/01/18-6/30/19

SPY 20

7/01/19-6/30/20

SFY21

7/01/20-6/30/21

SPY 22

7/01/21-6/30/22

SPY 23

7/01/22-6G0/23
Slots: 3 Slots: 4 Slots: S Slots: 5 Slots: 5

7. Provision of Guardlaosbip Services:
7.1. The Contractor shall provide guardianship services to persons at risk of harm to person or

estate whom the State has responsibility to safeguard pursuant to RSA 135-C:60,
Guardianship. 171'A:10. Services for the Developmentallv Disabled and 135-E. Involuntary
Civil Commitment!

7.2. The Contractor shall provide guardianship services to include those actions that are necessary
to cany out the duties prescribed by RSA 464-A, Guardians and Conservators, and RSA 547-
B, Public Guardianship and Protection Program, including appointments as guardian, co-
guardian, conservator or tenqiorary guardian of the person and/or estate of a ward;

7.3. The Contractor shall provide guardianship services to include sufficient niunbers of staff to
adequately cany out, for all residents/patients, all duties required by statute, letters of
authority and the standards set forth in this request for proposal;

7.4. The Contractor shall not provide services to any resident/patient under any Contract that
result from this Request for Proposal without prior written approval of the NH Department of
Corrections;

7.5. The Contractor shall provide services to all residents/patients approved for services by the
NH Department of Corrections. If guardianship services arc assessed as inappropriate,
referrals shall be made to the New Hampshire Disabilities Rights Center, Inc., New
Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorneys so that an administrative appeal or other
appropriate legal actions can be taken on behalf of the residents/patients. Refen^s of persons
ProBQtlat PvMk Stfetr Cfaroitgb Integrity. Resped, ProfesfloiuUsffi, Collaboration and AcconntablUty

Sute of NH, Doponrntw ofConteOont KFP It^-CFMED. dosit^ imt: 3/2/2018
DMsiom of Mescal A Forensie Services Page 21 ofi^21 of 86

Centracter Initials:



Scope of Services
Exhibit A

for guardianship services fix)m the Secure Psychiathc Unit and the NH State Prison shall be
made throu^ the NH Department of Corrections, which shall review each referral to ensure
compliance with the principles contained in RSA 464-A;

7.6. Providing guardianship services to residents/patients, the Contractor shall adhere to the
"Code of Ethics for Guardians" and the "Guardianship Standards of Practice." Both
documents are available through the National Guardianship Association, Inc. at
www.guardianshiD.Qrg (The Department acknowledges that the Standards on monthly visits
with wards are guidelines and that quarterly or more frequent visits as required by individual
circumstances is an acceptable practice);

7.7. In providing guardianship and protection services to persons, the Contractor shall seek the
maximum degree of restrictive form of intervention consistent with the preservation of the
civil rî ts and liberties of the person serviced and with legal responsibilities. The
Contractor, with the assistance of tlte State, continually shall review and assess the status of
all persons served and shall seek less restrictive forms of interventioD where feasible and
appropriated. In any actions brought in Prc^te Court to limit or otherwise reduce the scope
of a guardianship over a person served, the State agrees that it is necessary to present die
State's position on the action proposed.

7.8. The State recognizes that the Contractor has responsibilities as an independent decision-
maker acting in a fiduciary capacity with respect to the persons to be served and the decisions
to be made on behalf of such persons shall not be directed or influenced by the State by any
action under this Agreement.

7.9. No "direct services" shall be provided to wards (RSA 547-B: 6 II). Direct services include
psychotherapy, case management, transportation, financial aid or other social services
available throu^ the Department or other governmental or nonprofit agencies; and

7.10. Complaints received by the NH Department of Corrections in reference to the services
provided under the Contract will be referred to the Contractor for investigation. Results will
be provided to the Director of Medical & Forensic Services to the NH Department of
Corrections in writing within thirty (30) days concerning the results of the investigation. A
report of all written complaints filed against the Contractor shall explain how each such
complaint was resolved.

8. Provision of Guardianship Responsibilities:
The following is a general listing of functions to be provided by the Contractor for individuals so
named by the Probate Court as wards of a Contractor. This listihg and description is not intended to
restate existing rules and regulations already in place, but rather its purpose is to clarity the
relationship of the Contractor with respect to its wards vs^o need and are receiving services in the
Secure Psychiatric Unit and prison facilities. The functions that shall be performed include:
8.1. Making decisions regarding the placement of the individual ward, utilizing the standards of

least restrictive environment and the best interests of the individual ward;
8.2. Ensuring that all legally necessary steps are taken to enable an individual ward to receive

comprehensive evaluations and comprehensive treatment and services;
8.3. Advocating for and requesting appropriate services for the individual ward utilizing the

individual service/treatment planning process following established NH Department of
Corrections standards and law;

8.4. Being able to give or wthhold consent to proposed medical care;
8.5. Being available to give or withhold consent, where such is legally necessary, for significant

clinical or legal treatment or services;
8.6. Ensuring that ward's civil rights are protected within the context of the decision the guardian

is making on behalf of a ward and refraining from unwarranted intrusion into the life of a
ward;

ProowHoa Publk Safety through Integrity, Respect, ProfesUooaUtm, Collahoratioo and AccouotahiUty -

Slate af NH, Department of Ccrrecthru RFP li-04.GFMED. doslnt Mate: 3/2/2018
DMsian af MeMka! M Farertsk Senicet pgfg 22 afhS
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Scope of Services
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8.7. Assuming responsibility for any and all other duties as are stated in RSA 464-A or as
required by the Probate Court;

8.8. All the r^ponsibiiities referenced above are contingent upon the actual authority granted to
each individual court order specifying the extent and scope of guardianship for each
individual;

8.9. Each public guardian has an affutnative obligation to become as familiar as possible with his
or her ward. Beyond the personal visits with a ward and other important and significant
people in a ward's life, this obligation can also be met through close interaction with a ward's
case manager/case counselor or other designated NH Department of Corrections personnel
who share a responsibility for providing for the needs of the individual;

8.10. Accept all guardianship service cases referred by the NH Department of Corrections. The
NH Department of Corrections shall make every attenq>t to obtain a Release of Information
form from the proposed ward and share all infonnation obtained about the client with the
Contractor except where prohibited from doing so by law. To the extent possible, be
involved in the screening process for guardianship and protection cases. If protection
services are assessed as inappropriate, referrals will be made to the New Hampshire
Disabilities Ri^ts Center, Inc., New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other aaomeys so that
and administrative appeal or other appropriate legal action can be taken on behalf of the
individual ward;

8.11. Agrees to serve the current total persons receiving guardianship and protection services plus
any new persons referred. While the NH Department of Corrections shall provide a
Contractor letter of approval for each new case assigned, the Contractor may not bill for
services until the Contractor is actually appointed as guardian by a Probate Court; and

8.12. In order to perform the stated Guardianship Responsibilities, above, guardians must be kept
aware of the facts or circumstances which may impact upon decisions. In order to make
informed decisions on behalf of their ward, the public guardians should, to the extent
possible, continually maintain significant and appropriate contact with their ward so to assure
that their efforts best reflect the personal preferences, value system and desires of the vmrd.
The guardians must seek out infonnation so that they are fully aware of all risks and benefits
of any proposed decision, as well as any alternative that may exist

9. Data Analysis & Reporting:
9.1. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports to the Division of Medical and Forensic

Services, which includes but is not limited to, die total number of residents/patients receiving
services, month, site, guardian and how many visits/interactions. This data will enable on
going analysis by the NH Department of Corrections of the most cost-effective options when
considering guardianship services.

9.2. The Contractor shall provide a Sample Report that reflects the requirements in section 9.1.,
above.

9.3. The Contractor shall provide an accurate measure of cost per person per day expenditures for
the guardianship program and provide this quarterly to the Division of Medical and Forensic
Services at NH [)epartment of Corrections.

9.4. A Final Report of advantages and disadvantages of how guardianship services are provided
include any other items in the scope of work not covered in earlier reports. The Final Report
is due thirty (30) days after the expiration date of the Contract

9.5. Meetings shall be conducted with the NH Department of Corrections and held periodically,
upon mutual agreement, during the Contract term to review the scope of work, discuss the
cost analyses, explain reports and answer questions.
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10. Other Contract Provisions:

10.1. Rules and Regulations: The Contractor agrees to comply with all rules and regulations of the
NH Department of Corrections.

10.2. Additional Facilities: Upon agreement of both parties, additional facilities belonging to the
NH Department of Corrections may be added to the Contract. This provision will require
Governor and Executive Council approval.

10.3. Contractor Employee Information: The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining a
criminal background check to include fingerprinting on alt potenti^ employees assigned by
the Contractor to provide services to NH Department of Corrections. Upon aw^ of a
Contract, the NH Department of Corrections will notify the selected Contractor the
procedures to obtain background checks and fingerprinting. Contractor and/or subcontractor
employee hiring status shall be contingent upon receipt of a background check and
fingerprinting rcportfs), finm the NH Department of Safety, and procedural review of said
reports by the NH Department of Corrections.
10.3.1. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the rig^t to conduct a procedural

review of all criminal background checks and fingerprinting reports of all potential
Contractor and/or subcontractor enq)loyees to determine eligibility status.

10.3.2. The NH Department of Corrections will notify the Contractor of any potential
Contractor/and or subcontractor employee who does not comply with the criteria
identified in Paragraph 10.3.3., below.

10.3.3. In addition, the Contractor and/or subcontractor shall not be able to hire employees
meeting the following criteria:
•  Individuals convicted of a felony shall not be permitted to provided

services;

•  Individuals with confirmed outstanding arrest warrants shall not be
permitted to provide services;

•  Individuals with a record of a misdemeanor offense(s) may be permitted
to provide services pending determination of the severity of the
misdemeanor offensefs) and review of the criminal record history by the
Director of Medical and Fomesic Services or designee of the
Department of Corrections;

•  Individuals with restrictions on out-ofistate and/or State of NH

professional licenses and or certifications;
•  Individuals whose professional licenses and/or certification have been

revoked and reinstated fiom other States and/or the State of NH;
•  Individuals on the National Offender Database;
•  Individuals with a history of drug diversion;
•  Individuals who were a former State of NH en^loyee and/or former

Contract empjpyee that was dismissed for cause;
•  Individuals previously employed with the NH Department of Corrections

without prior approval of the NH Department of Corrections; and
•  Relatives of currently incarcerated felons may not be permitted to

provide services wit^ut prior approval by the NH Department of
Corrections.

10.4. Change of Ownership: In the event that the Contractor should change ownership for any
reason whatsoever, the NH Department of Corrections shall have the option of continuing
under the Contract with the Contractor or its successors or assigns for the full remaining term
of the Contract, continuing under the Contract with the Contractor or, its successors or,
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assigns for such period of time as determined necessary by tbe Department of
Corrections, or terminating the Contract.

10.5. Contractor Designated Liaison: Tbe Contractor shall designate a representative to act as a
liaison between the Contractor and tbe NH Department of Corrections for the duration of the
Contract and any renewals thereof. The Contractor shall notify the iNiH Department of
Corrections of such named Liaison within five (5) days after the award of the Contract:
submit a Vrrittcn identification and notification to NH Department of Corrections of the
business (no personal information) irame, title, address, telephone number, fax number and
e-mail address of one (1) individual within its organization as a duly authorized
representative to wbom all correspondence, official notices and requests related to tbe
Contractor's performance under tbe Contract.
10.5.1. Any written notice to the Contractor shall be deemed sufficient when deposited in

the U.S. mail, postage prepaid and addressed to the person designated by the
Contractor under this paragraph.

10.5.2. Tbe Contractor shall have the right to change or substitute the name of the
individual described above as deemed necessary provided that any such change is
not effective until the Commissioner of the NH Department of Corrections actually
receives notice of this change.

10.5.3. Changes of the named Liaison by the Contractor must be made in writing and
forwarded to; NH Department of Corrections, Director of Medical and Forensic or
designce, P.O. Box 1806, Concord, NH 03302.

10.6. Contractor's Liaison's Responsibilities! Tbe Contractor shall designate a representative to act
as a liaison between the Contractor and the NH Department of Corrections for the duration of
the Contract The representative shall be responsible for:
10.6.1. Representing the Contractor on all matters pertaining to the Contract Such as

representative shall be authorized and empowered to represent the Contractor
regarding all aspects of the Contract and any renewals thereof;

10.6.2. Monitoring tbe Contract's compliance with the terms of the Contract and any
renewals thereof;

10.6.3. Receiving and responding to all inquiries and requests made by NH Department of
Corrections in the time fhmes and format specified by NH Department of
Corrections in this RFP and in the Contract and any renewals thereof; and

10.6.4. Meeting with representatives of NH Department of Corrections on a periodic or as-
needed basis to resolve issues which may arise.

10-7- NH Denaftment of Corrections Contract Liaison Responsibilities: The NH Department of
Corrections' Commissioner of Corrections, or designce, shall act as liaison between the
Contractor and NH Department of Corrections for die duration of the Contract and/or any
renewals thereof. NH Department of Corrections reserves the rî t to change its

^  representative, at its sole discretion, during the term of the Contract, and shall provide the
Contractor with written notice of such change. NH Department of Corrections rqiresentative
shall be responsible fon
10.7.1. Representing NH Department of Corrections on all matters pertaining to the

Contract and any renewals thereof. The representative shall be authorized and
enqiowered to represent NH Department of Corrections regarding all aspects of the
Contract subject to the New Hampshire Governor and Executive Council approval,
where needed;

10.7.2. Monitoring compliance with the terms of the Contract and any renewals thereof;
10.7.3. Responding to all inquiries and requests related to the Contract made by the

Contractor, under the terms and in the time fiames specified by the Contract and
any renewals thereof;
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10.7.4. Meeting with the Contractor's representative on a periodic or as needed basis and
resolving issues which arise; and

10.7.5. Informing the Contractor of any discretionary action taken by NH Department of
Corrections pursuant to the provisions of the Contract and any renewals thereof.

10.8. Rctwftine Requirements: The Contractor shall provide any and all reports as requested on an
as-needed basis according to a schedule and format to be determined by the NH Department
of Corrections.

10.9. Performance Evaluation: NH Department of Corrections shall, at its sole discretion:
10.9.1. Monitor and evaluate the Contractor's compliance with the terms of the Contract

and any renewals thereof;
10.9.2. The Operations Administrator or designee of the NH Department of Corrections

may meet with the Contractor at a minimum of twice (2) a year to assess the
performance of the Contractor relative to the Contractor's compliance with the
Contract;

10.9.3. Request additional reports and/or reviews that the NH Department of Corrections
deems necessary for the purposes of monitoring and evaluating the performance of
the Contractor under the Contract;

10.9.4. Inform the Contractor of any dissatisfaction with the Contractor's performance and
include requirements for ̂  Contractor to complete corrective actions within
fourteen (14) days;

10.9.5. Terminate the Contract, if NH Department of Corrections determines that the
Contractor is:

10.9.5.1. Not in compliance with the terms of the Contract;
10.9.5.2. If satisfactory corrective action in 10.9.4. is not achieved; and
10.9.5.3. Terminate the Contract as otherwise permitted by law.

10.9.6. Review reports submitted by the Contractor. NH Department of Corrections shall
determine the acceptability of the reports. If they are not deemed acceptable, the
NH Department of Corrections shall notify the Contractor and explain the
deficiencies.

10.9.7. Give the Contractor prior notice of any on-site visit requested by the NH
Department of Corrections or it agents to conduct an audit review of any records
pertaining to the Contract and any renewals thereof.

10.10. Coordination of Efforts: The Contractor shall fully coordinate their activities in the
performance of the Contract with those of the NH Department of Corrections. As the work of
the Contractor progresses, advice and information on matters covered by the Contract shall be
made available by the Contractor to NH Department of Corrections as requested by the NH
Department of Corrections throughout the cfTectivc period of the Contract and any renewals
thereof.

1 ]. Bankruptcy or losolveney Proceeding Notilkation:
11.1. Upon filing for any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding by or against the Contractor,

whether voluntary or involuntary, or upon the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or assignee
for the benefit of creditors, the Contractor shall notify the NH Department of Corrections
immediately.

11.2. Upon learning of the actions herein identified, the NH Department of Corrections reserves the
right at its sole discretion to either cancel the Contract in whole or in part, or, re-affirm the
Contract in whole or in part
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12. Embodiment of the Contract:

12.1. The Contract between the NH Department of Corrections and the Contractor shall consist of:
12.1.1. Request for Proposal (RFP), any addendums and any amendments thereto;
12.1.2. Proposal submitted by the Vendor in response to the RFP; and/or
12.1.3. Negotiated document (Contract) agreed to by and between the parties that is

ratified by a '^meeting of the minds," after careful consideration of all of the terms
and conditions, and that is approved by the Governor and Executive Coundl of the
State of New Hampshire.

12.2. In the event of a conflict in language between the documents referenced above, the provisions
and requirements set forth and/or referenced in the negotiated document noted in. 12.1.3. shall
govern.

12.3. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to clarify any contractual relationship in
writing with the concurrence of the Contractor, and such written clarification shall govem in
case of conflict with the aj^licable requirements stated in the RFP or the Vendor's Proposal
and/or the result of a Contract.

13. CanceUadoD of Contract:

13.1. The Department of Corrections may cancel the Contract at any time for breach of contractual
obligations by providing the Contractor with a written notice of such cancellation.

13.2. Should the NH Department of Corrections exercise its rî t to cancel the Contract for such
reasons, the cancellation shall become effective on the date as specified in the notice of
cancellation sent to the Contractor.

13.3. The hfH Department of Corrections reserves the right to terminate the Contract without
penalty or recourse by giving the Contractor written notice of such tennination at least sixty
(60) days prior to the effective termination date.

13.4. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to cancel this Contract for the
convenience of the State with no penalties by giving the Contractor sixty (60) day notice of
said cancellation.

14. Contractor Transition:
NH Department of Corrections, at its discretion, for any Contract resulting from this RFP, may
require the Contractor to work cooperatively with any predecessor and/or successor Vendor to assure
the orderly and uninterrupted transition from one Vei^r to another.

15. Audit Requirement:
Contractor agrees to con^ly with any recommendations arising ftom periodic audits on the
performance of this contract, providing they do not require any unreasonable hardship, which wotild
normally affect the value of the Contract.

16. Additional Items/Locations:

Upon agreement of both party's additional equipment and/or other facilities belonging to the NH
Department of Corrections may be added to toe Contract. In the same respect, equipment and/or
facilities listed as part of the provision of services of the Contract may be deleted as well.

17. Information:

17.1. In performing its obligations under the Contract, the Ck)ntnictor may gain access to
information of the residents/patients/non-adjudicated residents including confidential
information. The Contractor shall not use information developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of the Contract, except as is directly
connected to and necessary for toe Contractor's performance under the Contract.
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17.2. The Cootractor agrees to maintain the confidentiality of and to protect from unauthorized use,
disclosure, publication, reproduction and all information of the resident/patient/non-
adjudicated residents that becomes available to the Cootractor in connection with its
p^onnance under the Contract.

17.3. In the event of unauthorized use or disclosure of the inmate/patient/non-adjudicated resident
information, the Contractor shall immediately notify the NH Department of Corrections.

17.4. All material developed or acquired by the Contractor, as a result of work under the Contract
shall become the property of die State of New Hampshire. No material or reports prepared by
the Contractor shall be released to the public without the prior written consent of NH
Department of Corrections.

17.5. All financial, statistical, personnel and/or technical data supplied by NH Department of
Corrections to the Cootractor are confrdential. The Contractor is required to use reasonable
care to protect the confidentiality of such data. Any use, sale or offering of this data in any
form by the Contractor, or any iiKfividual or entity in the Contractor's charge or employ, will
be considered a violation of the contract and may result in contract termination, to addition,
such conduct may be reported to the State Attorney General for possible criminal
prosecution.

18. Pubtic Records:

NH RSA 91-A guarantees access to public records. As such, all responses to a competitive
solicitation are public records unless exempt by law. Any information submitted as part of a bid in
response to this Revest for Proposal or Request for Bid (RFB) or Request for Information (RFI) may
be subject to public disclosure under RSA 91-A, httD://www.eencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/htmlA^I/91 -
A/91-A-mre.htm. In addition, in accordance with RSA 9-F:l,
http://www.eencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/I/9-F/9'F-1 .htm. any contract entered into as a result of this
RFP (RFB or RFI) will be made accessible to the public online via the website: Transparent NH
http://www.nh.eov/transparentnh/. Accordingly, business financial information and proprietary
information such as trade secrets, business and financial oKxlels and forecasts, and proprietary
formulas may be exenqjt from public disclosure under, RSA 91-A:5, IV,
httD://www.eencourt.state.nh.us/rsa/html/VI/91-A/91-A-5.htm. If a Bidder believes that any
information submitted in response to a Request for Proposal, Bid or Information, should be kept
confidential as financial or proprietary information, the Bidder must specifically identify that
information in a letter to the State Agency. Failure to comply with this section may be grounds for
the complete disclosure of all submitted material not in compliance with this section.

If any information being submitted in response to this request for proposal should be kept confidential
as financial or proprietary information; the contractor must specifically identify that information in a
letter to the agency and mark the information within the proposal as such.

Marking the entire Proposal or entire sections of the Proposal (e.g. pricing) as confidential will
neither be accepted nor honored. Notwithstanding any provision in this RFP to the contrary. Contract
pricing shall be subject to disclosure upon approval of a contract by the Governor and Executive
Council.

Generally, each Proposal shall become public information upon the approval of Governor and Council
of the resulting contract, as determined by the State, including but not limited to, RSA Chapter 91 -A
(Right to Know Law). Tlie State will endeavor to maintain the confidentiality of portions of the
Proposal that are clearly and properly marked confidential. If a request is made to the State to view
portions of a Proposal that the Contractor has properly and clearly marked confidential, the State will
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notify the Contractor of the request and of the date and the Stale plans to release the records. A
designation by the Contractor of information it believes exempt does not have the effect of making
such information exen^t. The State will determine the information it believes is properly exempted
from disclosure. By submitting a Proposal, Contractors agree that unless the Contractor obtains a
court order, at its sole expense, enjoining the release of the requested information, the State may
release the requested information on the date specified in the State's notice without any liability to the
Contractorfs).

19. Contractor Personnel:

19.1. The Contractor shall agree that en^loyees of the Contractor shall perform all services
required by the Contract. The Contractor shall guarantee that all personnel providing the
services required by the Contract are qualified to perform their assigned tasks.

19.2. The Department shall be advised of, and approve in writing at least ten (10) days in advance
of such change, any permanent or temporary changes to or deletions the Contractor's
management, supervisory, or key professional personnel, vidio directly impact the deliverables
to be provided under the Contract

20. NotificatloD to the Contractor:

The NH Department of Corrections shall be responsible for notifying the Contractor of any policy or
procedural changes affecting the contracted services at least thirty (30) days before the
implementation of such policy or procedure. The Ck>ntractor shall implement the changes on the date
specified by the Department.

21. Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003:
Contractor must comply with the Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003 (Federal Law 42
U.S.C. 15601 et seq.), with ail applicable Federal PREA standards, and with all State policies and
standards related to PREA for preventing, detecting, monitoring, investigating, and era^cating any
form of sexual abuse within facilities/programs/offices owned, operated, or contracted. Contractor
acknowledges that, in addition to self-monitoring requirements, the State will conduct compliance
monitoring of PREA standards which may require an outside independent audit

22. Administrative Rules, Policies, Regulations and Policies, Procedures and Directives:
Contractor must comply with any applicable NH Department of Corrections Administrative Rules,
Policies, Regulations and Policy and Procedure Directives (PPD's) to include but not limited to PPD
5.08: Staff Personal Property Permitted In and Restrictedfrom Prison Facilities located as a separate
link: bttD://www.nh.eov/nhdoc/busincss/rfo bidding tools.htm

23. Special Notes:
23.1. The headings and footings to the sections of this document are for convenience only and shall

not affect the interpretation of any section.
23.2. The NH Department of Corrections reserves the right to require use of a third party

administrator during the life of the Contract and any renewals thereof.
23.3. Locations per contract year may be increased/decreased and or reassigned to alternate

facilities during the Contract term at the discretion of the E)epartmeoL Locations may be
added and/or deleted after the awarding of a Contract at the discretion of the Department and
upon mutual agreement of the Commissioner of the NH Department of Corrections and the
Contractor.

23.4. In the event that the NH Department of Corrections wishes to add or remove facilities at
which the Contractor is to provide services, it shall:
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23.4. t. Give the Contractor fourteen (14) days written notice of the proposed change; and
23.4.2. Secure the Contractor's written agreement to the proposed changes.

23.5. Notwithstanding the foregoing, or any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in no
event shall changes to facilities be allowed that modify the "Completion Date" or "Price
Limitation" of the Agreement.

23.6. Any change in the Contract including the Contractor responsibilities and NH Department of
Corrections responsibilities described herein, whether by modification, amendment and or
supplementation, must be acconplished by a foimal Contract amendment signed and
approved by and between the duly authorized representatives of the Contractor and the NH
Department of Corrections approved by the Governor and Executive Council.

23.7. Partial Proposals for the requested Guardianship Services for the NH Department of
Corrections shall not be accepted.

23.8. Contractor shall provide, for the life of the Contract and any renewals thereof, the minimum
General Liability coverage to be no less than $1,000,000.00 per each occurrence and
S2,(X)0,000.00 general aggregate.

23.9. Contractor shall provide, for the life of the Contract and any renewals thereof, proof of
Workers* Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance.

23.10. Contractor shall provide proof and identify limits and expiration dates of General Liability,
Excess Umbrella Liability coverage, Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability,
Professional Liability, Malpractice Liability and Business Owners Policy (if applicable).

The remainder of this page Is intentionaUy blank.
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2. Fee Structure for Guardianship Services:
2.1. Estimated Budget Schedule, below, to be completed by the Contractor.

2.2.

SPY 19

o
o

3 $ 6.570.00

'•SPY 20 $  6.00 4 J 8,784.00

SPY 21 $  6.00 5 $10,950.00

SPY 22 S  6.00 5 $10,950.00

SPY 23 $  6.00 5 $10,950.00

NOTE: * The Contractor shall indicate the total number of sloU they can provide artnually;
** Sute Fiscal Year 20 is a leap year (366 days); and

The chart, above, may be adjusted by the NHDOC to reflect contract proctuements.

Contract Period Estimated Yearly Costs:

2.2.1. Estimated Total Cost Year 1: S  6,570,00

2.2.2. Estimated Total Cost *Ycar 2:
^  8,784.00

2.2.3. Estimated Total Cost Year 3:
S  10,950.00

2.2.4. Contract Period Estimated Total Cost: $ ^ ̂ ' 304 . 00

2.3. Possible Extension Period Yearly Costs:

2.3.1. Estimated Total Cost Year 4: S  10,950.00

2.3.2. Estimated Total Cost Year 5:
^  10,950.00

2.3.3. Possible Extension Period Total Cost: $ 48, 204 .00
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3. Method of Payment:
3.1. The monthly fee for service payment due to the Contractor by the NH Department of

Corrections shall be made in the month following the month in which services were
performed and shall be based on the contracted cost per person per day rate. This cost per
person per day rate will be extended throu^ the date in which the client dies or is terminated
from services.

3.2. The monthly fee for service shall be calculated as follows:
'  3.2.1. Multiplying the cost per person per day rate times the total number of days of

service provided during the month to each eligible inmate/patient under the
Contract.

3.2.2. Services are to be invoiced monthly commencing thirty pO) days after the start of
service. Due dates for monthly invoices will be the 15 following the month in
which services are provided.

3J.3. The original invoice shall detail how reimbursement is due for the month, which
services were performed, and shall calculate to a total dollar figure. The form shall
contain:

•  Identification of the service month;
•  Contract number and period;
•  Statistics which document the number of inmates/patients on the Contractor's

caseload during the service month. The statistics shall be recorded on part two
(2) of the form and shall specify the number of persons serviced by type of
services, the names of cases add^ or closed during the month. Orders for new
guardianship appointments shall be attached to the statistics as soon as they
become available. Inmates/patients added during the service month for which
the prior approval has not been obtained, but for who the Contractor is seeking
reimbursement, must be formally authorized to receive services before they are
calculated into the authorized payment due for the service month. A brief
explanation shall be provided for any client for whom services have been
terminated; and

•  Calculation of the total authorized payment due for the service month.
3.3. Original invoices shall be sent to the NH Department of Corrections, Financial Services, or

desi^ce, P.O. Box 1806, Concord, NH 03302 for tq)proval. The "Bill To" address on the
invoice shall be: NH Department of Corrections, P.O. ̂ x 1806, Concord, NH 03302-1806.

3.4. Once approved by the Division of Medical & Forensic Services, the ori^al invoices shall be
forwarded to the Department's Bureau of Financial Services for processing and issuance of
payment.

3.5. The NH Department of Corrections may make adjustments to the payment amount identifted
on a Contractor's monthly invoice. The NH Department of Corrections shall suspend
payment to an invoice if an invoice is not submitted in accordance with the instructions
established by the NH Department of Corrections.

3.6. The NH Department of Corrections Bureau of Financial Services may issue payment to the
Contractor within thirty (30) days of an approved invoice. Invoices shall be itemized by
facility and contain the following information:

\  3.6.1. Organization/Agency/lndividual Name;
3.6.2. Invoice Date and Number;
3.6.3. Contract Period and Service Month;
3.6.4. Number of Case Loads per Contract Period Rate & Total Due;
3.6.5. Name of Wards (inmates/patients) who received services;
3.6.6. Name of Wards added during billed Service Month; and

PrOBwdng PabUe Safety tbroagb Inttxiity, Respect, PrafesdoitaUsm, CeDaboraUoa Sftd AcconntibilHy
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Estimated Budget/Method of Paynieot
Exhibit B

3.6.7. Name of Wards removed from caseload.

3.7. Payment shall be made to the name and address identified in the Contract as the "Contractor"
unless: (a) the Contractor has authorized a different name and mailing address in writing or;
(b) authorized a different name and mailing address in an official State of New Hampshire
Contractor Registration Application Form; or (c) tmless a court of law specifies otherwise.
The Contractor shall not invoice federal tax. The State's tax-exempt certificate number is
026000618W.

3.8. The Contractor shall follow the State's Fiscal Year Calendar for budgeting purpose. Year
one (1) shall commence on July 1, 2018 and end on June 30,2019.

3.9. The Contractor also agrees that full payment for the final month of the Contract period shall
not be made by the Department until the Contractor submits the original invoice for the final
month of the Contract period and receives the Final Report as described in section 9.4.,
Exhibit A.

3.10. Reimbursement for services for persons who have not been screened by the Department will
not be reimbursed under the Contract. In instances where guardianship appointments are
made without approval granted from the Department, reimbursement for guardianship
services may be possible when satisfactory documentation can be presented that such
circumstances occurred and reasonable efforts were made to decline such appointments.
Such documentation shall be included to an original invoice. If the documentation provided
is satisfactory, the Department may make payments for appointments made without approval
as long as wards are persons for whom the State has a responsibility to safeguard pursuant to
RSA21-H:8.

4. Appropriation of Funding
4.1. The Contractor shall agree that the funds expended for the purposes of the Contract must be

appropriated by the General Court of the State of New Hampshire for each State fiscal year
included within the Contract period. Therefore, the Contract shall automatically terminate
without penalty of termination costs if such funds are not fiilly appropriated.
4.1.1. In the event diat funds are not fully ̂ )propriated for the Contract, the Contractor shall

not prohibit or otherwise limit the NH Department of Corrections the right to pursue
and contract for alternate solutions and retries as deemed necessary for the conduct
of State government affairs.

4.1.2. The requirements stated in this paragraph shall apply to any amendments, thereof, or
the execution of any option to extend the Contract

The remainder of this page is iDteotionally blank.
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Special ProYlsioDs

Exhibit C

SECTION F: Special Provis ions, Exhibit C

1. Special Provisions:
Per NHDOC RFP 18-04-(3^MED, Scope of Services, Exhibit A, Paragra|4i IZ EmboditQent of the
Cootract, p. 27 of 36, si^paragraph 12.1 "The Contract between the NH [>epartinent of Corrections
and the Oxitractor shaO consist of:

12.1.1. Request for Proposal (RFP), any addendums and any amendments thereto;
12.1 .Z Proposal submitted by the Ven^ in response to the RFP; and/or
I2.I.3. Negotiated document (Contract) agreed to by and between the parties that is ratified by a

"meeting of the minds," aRer careful consideratkm of all of the terms and conditions, and that
is a^jroved by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of New Han^hire."

2. Contractor's Proposal:
Delete the following paragraph of the Contractor's Proposal, p. 10-11, "Acceptance by Contractor":

'Tri-County CAP, Inc., OuardiaDshp Services wtD provide services to all persons approved by the
Department of CorrectioQS. The program reserves the right to consult with tte DOC regarding rate or
cmitract status of an estate ward wben^ it is clear that the expenses and cost associated with the
estate ippomtmcnt wiD exceed the reimbursement rate. Akhougfa TCC/GS wants to work
cdlaboratively with the DOC, the program cannot sustain finaiKial loss such that it would jeopardize
the financial integrity of the program. The program w21 not provide services to any person un^ ai^
contract that results firom the RFP without the prior approval of the DOC. The program wiD malfr-
every reasonable effort to verify diat the DOC has screened and approved for services all individuals
for whom payment is antic^ted under the contract prior to accepting an appointment for an
individuaL"

and insert in its place:

'Tri-County CAP, Inc. Ouardiansh^ Services wiD provide services to aD persons whose guardiansh^
submission by die NH Department of Corrections (NHDOC) has been approved 1^ the Probate Court
and assigned to Tri-County CAP, Inc. Under this Contract, guardiansh^ services are ftx- the person
cnly and are reindnirsed with the contracted per diem rate. Any person covered by this Contract
whose status changes fiom the contracted rate to private pay status, shaD be removed firom the terms
of this Oxitract and guardiaoshp services reimbursemeiit would be paid fiom an estate ward
appointment. It is the responsibiiity of Tri-County CAP, Inc. to identify estate ward status on any
person covered by this Cootract and initiate a Petition for Estate Guardianship with the Probate Court
Once appointed, Tri-County CAP, Inc. wiD provide appointment documentaticm to tbe NHDOC for
removal of tbe individual fit>m tbe Contract to private pay status. Upon Probate Court's appointment
of guardiansh9 to Tri-County CAP, Inc., die NHDOC confirm tbe af^xiintment with Tri-County
CAP, Inc. The NHDOC wiD provide Tri-County CAP, Inc. aD infonnation the guardian requires to
perform the required services."

The remainder ofthis page is inteotionaHy blank.
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1. William M. Gardner. Secrcian' of Slate of Ihc State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COLfNTY COMMUNITY

ACTION PROGRAM. INC. (TRJ-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in

New Hampshire on May 18. 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTicc have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63020

Certificate Number: 0004079930

m Oj?
Ar

S
o

09

IN TESTIMONY UT4ERE0F.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I llh day of April A.D. 2018.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



QuickStait Page 2 of 4

Business Information

Business Details

TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY

Business Name: ACnON PROGRAM, INC. fTRI-

COUNTY CAP)

Domestic Nonprofit

Corporation
Business Type:

Business Creation

Date:

Date of Formation in

Jurisdiction:

Principal Office

Address:

Citizenship / State of

Incorporation:

05/18/1965

05/18/1965

30 EXCHANGE ST. BERUN,

NH. 03570, USA

Domestic/New Hampshire

Duration: Perpetual

Business Email: sandypdtricl((§>tccap.org

Notification Email: NONE

Business ID: 63020

Business Status: Good Standing

Name in State of
N

Incorporation:
ot Available

Mailing Address: 30 Exchange Street, Berlin, NH,

03570, USA

Last Nonprofit

Report Year

Next Report

Year

2015

2020

Phone #: 800-552-4617

Fiscal Year End

Date:
NONE

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code

1  OTHER / CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION

Pag« 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1

NAICS Subcode

https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/BusinessInformation?businessID=52615 5/2/2018



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1. Gary Coulombe. do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of Tri-CountvCommunitv Action Program. Inc.
(Agency Name)

2. The following Is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of
I

the Aoencv duly held on February 27"'.2Q18:

(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Chief Executive Officer

(Title of Contract Signatory)

Is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not l>een amended or revoked, and remain in full force ar>d effect as of

the 8th dav of May 2018.

(Date Contract Signed)

4 Jeanne L. Roblllard. is the duly elected Chief Executive Officer
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

(Signature <5rthe ETected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Coos

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 6th dav of May, 2016.

By GaryCoulflfff^
(Name^jp^^^Mi^Ci^r of the Agency)

MY ''rQ%
SSe: COMMISSION
I  ; EXPIRES •• S
=  ; NOV. 22,2022 ; =

(NdfAf^y SEAL) i

flf November 22. 2022

■I
(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

//

NH OHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Marxagemertt
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1.2005



A^jORD' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (aamonnrvv)

2/36/2018

TNtS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTinCATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If tha caftlficata holdar It an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tht poilcyfiot) nuist be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, tub)ect to
the terms and cortdltlons of the policy, certain policies may require an ei^orsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsements).

Fftooucee

PIAZ/Croea laeurance

1100 Bin Street

Hancheoter RB 03101

Karen Shaughneeay

fflr*iL Piffi- (603)669-3218 Euc Ho>;
kahaugfaneeoyBcroesagency. con

WSUKEWSIAFFOMMNO COVERAGE NAICS

MSURERATechnoloov Ine. Co. 42376
stsufteo

Trl-Cousty CosBMnity Action Prograa, Inc

30 Exchange Street

Berlin RB 03570

wsuRER B .Sfesco Ine. Co. 25011

srsuRCRC-AaOuard Ine Co 42390

MSURERD;

HtURCRE:

SISURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:!?-18 XI! linaa REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDOtG ANY REQUIREt«NT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXaUStONS AND CONOmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

itSR

Lin TYFCOFSaURANCe POUCT NUMBER
..PPUCYEFF POUCY EXP

nmoorrvYvi UMTTB 1

A

z COMMERCIAL GlUCRALLMMUTY

}E OCCUR

TPPliaSTSl 7/1/3017 7/1/2010

EACH OCCURRENCE S  1,000,000

1 CUUMSMAI DAMAOE iDMLinLD
t  100,000

MED EXP (Any one PNMA) t  5,000

PERSONAL 1AOV INJURY 1  1,000,000

GEA AGGREGATE LMTT APPLIES PER:

POLKrvOSIg |T|loc
OTHER:

GENERAL AOGREOATE t  3,000,000

PR00LJCT8 • COMIYOP AGO S  3,000,000

t

A

lAUTOUCeU UABIUTY

TPFiaiSTSl 7/1/2017 7/1/3010

ULUUMeD&lM&LELIUIT
rPaenMrnn >  1,000,000

X ANY AUTO
1

WEDU.ED
rros
INOWNEO
rrcs

BODLY BLWRY (Pw pewn) S

—

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HAED AUTOS

S(
AL
NC
AL

BOOtY NJURY (Per ecddenO S

PROPERTY 1 lAMAGE
(Pereedden 1

Undefhwired motarM *  1,000,000

B

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

z OCCUR

CLA»e4WDE

IRnQ5(S713 7/1/2017 7/1/3010

EACH OCCURRENCE S  2.000.000

_x_ AGGREGATE s  2.000.000

1 DEC 1 * 1 RETENTIONS 10.000 1 1 t

C

WrORKERS COttFCNSATION

AND EHFLOVDtr UABRjrr

ANY PROFR»eTOR*»ART>CRIEXECUnVE | ]
OFFCERMQAER ExauOEOT T 1
pimSRary Irt NH)
1VM, SMoee under
OCSCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bNow

N/A

TKNcosoac)

<3«.| as

X. Hattbewe. R. Urbea S

H. Betcb exeloded

7/1/2017 7/1/2010

X PER I IOTH-
* STATUTE 1 1 FR

EJ. EACH ACOOENT t  500.000

EJ. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEI s  500.000

EJ-DISEASE • POUCY UMfT t  500,000

A Profaaeiooal Liability TPFliaSTSl 7/1/2017 7/1/3010 PetOccwrenoa 91.000,000

Aeone«e <3,000,000

oeSCROmON OF CFERATIOKSf LOCATIONS/VEMtCies (ACOR01»1. AddWawl RtnwU HtnaiN. iiwy be ■mrhit Biiwfe fee l» feeuftfl
Refer to policy for excluaionary endoreemente end epecial provisione.

State of Mew Bajspshlre
MB Dept. of Corrections
PO Box 1B06
Concord, MB 03302-1606

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCCS BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WTTH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENT ATlVe

T Franggbs/JSC

ACORO 2S (2014/01)
tNS02Soni«nit

The ACORD name and logo ara registarod marXa of ACORD



New Hampshire DepartmeDt of Corrections
Division of Administration

Contract/Grant Unit

Comprehensive General Liability Insurance Acknowiedgement Form

The New Hampshire Office of the Attorney General requires that the Request for Proposal (RFP) package inform
all proposal submitters of the State of New Hampshire's general liability insurance requirements. The limits of
liability required are dependent upon your corporation's legal formation, and the annual total amount of contract
work with the State of New Hampshire.

Please select only ONE of the checkboxes below that best describes your corporation's legal formation and
annual total amount of contract work with the State of New Hampshire:

Insurance Requirement for (1) • SOl(c) (3) contractors whose annual gross amount of contract work
with the State does not exceed $500,000, per RSA 21-1:13, XIV, (Siqjp. 2006): The general liability insurance
requirements of standard state contracts for contractors that qualify for nonprofit status under section 501 (cX3) of
the Internal Revenue Code and whose annual gross amount of contract work with the state does not exceed
$500,000, is comprehensive general liability insurance in amounts of not less than $ 1,000,000 per claim or
occurrence and $2,000,000 In the aggregate. These amounts may NOT be modified.

□ The contractor certifies that it IS a 501(c) (3) contractor whose annual total amount of contract work
with the State of New Hampshire does not exceed $500,000.

Insurance Requirement for (2) - All other contractors who do not qualify for RSA 21-1:13, XIV, (Supp.
2006), Agreement P-37 General Provisions, 14.1 and 14.1.1. Insurance and Bond, shall apply: The Contractor
shall, at its sole expense, obtain and maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to obtain
and maintain in force, both for the benefits of the State, the following insurance: comprehensive general liability
insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per
claim and $2,000,000 per incident or occurrence. These amounts MA Y be modified if the State of NH determines
contract activities are a risk of lower liability.

□ (2) The contractor certifies it docs NOT qualify for insurance requirements under RSA 21-1:13, XIV
(Supp. 2006).

Please indicate your current comprehensive genera] liability coverage limits below, sign, date and return with
your proposal package.

$  ̂ PerQaim ^ Per Incident/Occurrence $ General Aggregate

■Xfi.>W (Officer 6^6-18
Date& T t e

This acknowledgement must be returned with your proposal.



COMMUNITY

CTION
TRI-COUNTY CAP

Serving Coos. Carroll S Grsrton County since 19&5

May 8^ 2018

Ms. Jennifer Lind, MBA, CMA

Contract Administrator

105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

RE: Insurance coverage

Dear Ms. Lind,

Please let this letter serve as verification that Tri-County Community Actions Program, Inc.
maintains all required insurance coverage. Tri-County CAP's current insurance policies are
scheduled to renew effective 7/1/2018. Tri-County Cap will maintain the same insurance coverage
that are currently in place. There will be no break in service or lapse in coverage.

All of us at Tri-County CAP look forward to continuing our successful staffing partnership with New
Hampshire D.O.C. Ifyou have nay questions, please contact me at 603-752-7002, extenstion 207 or
by email atirobillard@tccan.Qr^

Sincerely,

Jeanne L. Robillard

Chief Executive Officer

CEO: Jeanne L. Robillard CFO: Randall S. Pilotte
30 Exchange Street, Berlin NH 03570 P: 603-752-7001
www.tccap:org FB@TriCountyCommunityActionProgram



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

ADMINISTRATIVE RULES

COR 307 Items Considered Contraband. Contraband shall consist of:
a) Any substance or item whose possession in unlawful for the person or the general public

possessing it including but not limited to:
(1) narcotics
(2) controlled drugs or
(3) automatic or concealed weapons possessed by those not licensed to have them.

b) Any ftrearm, simulated firearm, or device designed to propel or guide a projectile against a
person, animal or target.

c) Any bullets, cartridges, projectiles or similar items designed to be projected against a person,
animal or target.

d) Any explosive device, bomb, grenade, dynamite or dynamite cap or detonating device
including primers, primer cord, explosive powder or similar items or simulations of these
items.

e) Any drug item, whether medically prescribed or not, in excess of a one day supply or in such
quantities that a person would suffer intoxication or illness if the entire available quantity
were consumed alone or in combination with other available substances.

f) Any intoxicating beverage.
g) Sums of money or negotiable instruments in excess of $100.00.
h) Lock-picking kits or tools or instruments on picking locks, making keys or obtaining

surreptitious entry or exit
i) The following types of items in the possession of an individual who is not in a vehicle, (but

shall not be contraband if stored in a secured vehicle):
j) Knives and knife-like weapons, clubs and club-like weapons,

(1) tobacco, alcohol, drugs including prescription drugs unless prior approval is
granted in writing by the facility Warden/designee, or Director/designee.

(2) maps of the prison vicinity or sketches or drawings or pictorial representations of
the facilities, its grouiKls or its vicinity,

(3) pornography or pictures of visitors or prospective visitors undressed,
(4) cell phones and radios capable of monitoring or transmitting on the police band in

the possession of other than law enforcement officials,
(5) identification documents, licenses and credentials not in the possession of the

person to whom properly issued,
(6) ropes, saws, grappling hooks, fishing line, masks, artificial beards or mustaches,

cutting wheels or string rope or line impregnated with cutting material or similar
items to facilitate escapes,

(7) balloons, condoms, false-bottomed containers or other containers which could
facilitate transfer of contraband.



COR 307.02 Contraband on prison grounds is prohibited. The possession, transport, introduction, use,
sale or storage of contraband on the prison grounds without prior approval of the commissioner of
corrections or his designec is prohibited under the provision of RSA 622:24 and RSA 622:25.

COR 307.03 Searches and Inspections Authorized.

a) Any person or property on stale prison grounds shall be subject to search to discover
contraband...

Travel onto prison grounds shall constitute implied consent to search for contraband. In such
cases where implied consent exists, the visitor will be given a choice of either consenting to
the search or immediately leaving the prison grounds. Nothing in this rule however, prevents
non-consensual searches in sitiutions where probable cause exists to believe that the visitor is
or had attempted to introduce contraband into the prison pursuant to the law of New
Hampshire concerning search, seizure and arrest.

b) All motor vehicles parked on prison grounds shall be locked and have the keys removed.
Custodial personnel shall check to insure that vehicles are locked and shall visually inspect
the plain- view interior of the vehicles. Vehicles discovered unlocked shall be searched to
insure that no contraband is present. Contraband discovered during searches shall be
confiscated for evidence, as shall contraband discovered during plain-view inspections.

c) All persons entering the facilities to visit with residents or staff, or to perform services at the
facilities or to tour the facilities shall be subject to having their persons checked. All items
and clothing carried into the institution shall be searched for contraband.

■Vannc l .^oV?AWriA
Name

imess Name

6-8'Vfe
Date

Date



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULES OF CONDUCT FOR PERSONS PROVIDING CONTRACT SERVICES

1. Engaging in any of the following activities with persons under departmental control is strictly
prohibited:

a. Any contact, including correspondence, other than in the performance of your
services for which you have t^en contracted.

b. Giving or selling of anything
c. Accepting or buying anything

2. Any person providing contract services who is found to be under the influence of intoxicants or
drugs will be removed fiom facility grounds and barred from future entry to the NH Department
of Corrections property.

3. Possession of any item considered to be contraband as defined in the New Hampshire code of
Administrative Rules, COR 307 is a violation of the rules and the laws of the State of New
Hampshire and may result in legal action under RSA 622:24 or other statutes.

4. In the event of any emergency situation, i.e., fire, disturbance, etc., you will follow the
instructions of the escorting staff or report immediately to the closest available staff.

5. All rules, regulations and policies of the NH Department of Corrections are designed for the
safety of the staff, visitors and residents, the security of the facility and an orderly flow of
necessary movement and activities. If unsure of any policy and procedure, ask for immediate
assistance from a staff member.

6. Harassment and discrimination directed toward anyone based on sex, race, creed, color, national
origin or age are illegal under federal and state laws and will not be tolerated in the work place.
Maintenance of a discriminatory work environment is also prohibited. Everyone has a duty to
observe the law and will be subject to removal for failing to do so.

7. During the performance of your services you are responsible to the facility administrator, and by
your signature below, agree to abide by all the rules, regulations, policies and procedures of the
NH Department of Corrections and the State of New Hampshire.

8. In lieu of Contracted staff participating in the Corrections Academy, the Vendor through the
Cotnmissioner or his designees will establish a training/orientation facilitated by the Vendor to
supplement this requirement and appropriate orient Vendor staff to the rules, regulations, polices
and procedures of the Department of C^fijections a|Kl Ae State of New Hampshire.

-Vrinnr l,..UcK\WJ ^
Name SimSS Date

Witness Name ^ jSi^ture Date



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION AGREEMENT

I understand and agree that all employed by the organization/agency I represent must abide by all rules,
regulations and laws of the State of New Hampshire and the NH Department of Corrections that relate to
the confidentiality of records and all other privileged information.

I further agree that all employed by or subcontracted through the organization 1 represent are not to
discuss any confidential or privileged information with family, fiiends or any persons not professionally
involved with the NH Department of Corrections. If inmates or residents of the NH Department of
Corrections, or, anyone outside of the NH E>epartment of Corrections' employ approaches any of the our
organization's employees or subcontractors and requests information, the staff/employees of the
organization I represent will immediately contact their supervisor, notify the NH Department of
Corrections, and file an incident report or statement report with the appropriate NH Department of
Corrections representative.

Any violation of the above may result in immediate termination of any and all contractual obligations.

Name Sirna^^ f ~ Date

Witrtess Name {J ^igi^ture Dale



NH DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCtATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera] Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
conq)ly with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the
Standards for Privacy and Sectnity of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164. As defined herein, "Business Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of
the Contractor that receive, use or have access to protected health infonnation under this Agreement and
"Covered &itity" shall mean the State of New Hanq)shire, Department of Health and Human Services;

(1) Definitions

"Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

b. "Data Afpre^ation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

c. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term liealth care operations" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

d. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portd)ility and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-
191.

e. 'Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and shall
include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

f. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Dqiartment of Health and
Human Services.

g' "Protected Health Information** shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health information"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business Associate from or
on behalf of Covered Entity.

b. "Reouired bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term 'Yequired by law" in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

i. "Secietaiv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

j. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under 45
C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time.

121 Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information
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a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health InformatioD (PHI)
except as reasonably necessaiy to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any m«nnw that would constitute a violation of
the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
(i) for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
(ii) as required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
(iii) for data aggregation purposes for the health care (^>eration5 of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from the
third party that such PHI will be held confrdentially and used or further ̂ sclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the diird party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party
to immediately notify Business Associate of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it
has obtained Imowf^ge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the basis
that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity
to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosiue, the
Business Associate shall rcfrnin from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions on the uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and
Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose
PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obllgadons and Activftfes of Baslnesg Aimdate

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any use
or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving Covered
Entity data, of which it becomes aware, within two (2) business days of becoming aware of such
unauthorized use or disclosure or security incidenL

b. Business Associate shall use administrative, physical and technical safeguards that reasonably and
appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of protected health information, in
electronic or any other form, that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits under this Agreement, in
accordance with the Privacy and Security Rules, to prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other than as
permitted by the Agreement

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business Associate
on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance
with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use and
disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the
Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be
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receiving PPII pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnificatioD from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard provision # 13 of this Agreement for the purpose of
use and disclosure of protected health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request frnm Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements, policies
and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of emd)ling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate's conq)liance with the terms of the Agreement

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered
Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements uiuler 4S CFR Section 164.524.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request fit^m Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate shall
make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to
enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosiires

as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR S^on 164.528.

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accoimting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate ^11 make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request to
Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered ̂ tity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and die Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead req>ond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

k. Within ten (10) business days of tennination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate
shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or received by
the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes
of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise
agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the Agreement,
to such PHI and limit further uses aiKl disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or
destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole
discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall
certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.
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b. Covered Entity shaU promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of permission
provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by Business Associate
under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on die use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate
the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may eidier immediately terminate

the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure die alleged breach widiin a
timeframe qiecified by Covered &tity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cine is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report die violation to the Secretary.

(6) fitisceUaneous

a. Definitioos and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall
have the same meaning as those tenns in the Privacy and Security Rule, as amended fiom time to
time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the
Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary
to amend the Agreement, fixim time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with
the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal
and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to
permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

e. Segregation. If any terni or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms
and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3.d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.

IN WITOESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this HEALTH INSURANCE
PORTABlLITy AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT.
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NH Department of Corrections

Sute of New Haoqjshire Ageocy Name

QUO"
Si^DiBture of AutSerf^ ReRepresentative

Helen E. Hanks

Coannlssioner

d4-

Tr\-r.ajr\^u O.P>?
Contractor Name \J

epresentadve Sitor

Authorized DOC Representative Name

Authorized DOC Representative Title
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Authorized Contractor Rq)re$eotative Name
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Authorized Contractor Representative Title

Date
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION

P.O. BOX isoe

CONCORD. NH OSSOMSOe

60S-271-6610 FAX: 1-886-908-6609

TDDAceeti: 1-800.7SS-2964

www.nh.gov/nbdoc

PRISON RAPE ELIMINATION ACT

Helen E. Henke

Conuniesioner

Robin Maddaus

Director

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

The Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003 (with Final Rule August 2012) is a federal law
established to address the elimination and prevention of sexual assault and sexual harassment within
correctional systems and detention facilities. This Act applies to all correctional facilities, including
prisons, jails, juvenile facilities and community corrections residential facilities. PREA incidents involve
the following conduct:

•  Resident-on-resident sexual assault

•  Resident-on-resident abusive sexual contact

•  Staff sexual misconduct

•  Staff sexual harassment, assault of a resident

The act aimed to curb prison rape through a "zero-tolerance" policy, as well as through research and
information gathering. The NH Department of Corrections has zero tolerance relating to the sexual
assault/rape of offenders and recognizes these offenders as crime victims. Due to this recognition and
adherence to the federal Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) of 2003, the NH Department of Corrections
extends the "zero tolerance" to the following:
•  Contractor/subcontractor misconduct

•  Contractor/subcontractor harassment, assault of a resident

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of Corrections, 1 acknowledge that 1 have
been provided information on the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 Public Law 108-79—Sent. 4.
2003 and have been informed that as a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of
Corrections, sexual conduct between Contractor and/or Subcontractor and offenders is prohibited. • Sexual
harassment or sexual misconduct involving an offender can be a violation of NH RSA 632-A:2, 632-A:3
and 632-A:4, Chapter 632-A: Sexual Assault and Related Offenses, and result in criminal prosecution.

As a Contractor and/or Subcontractor of the NH Department of Corrections, I understand that 1 shall
inform all employees of the Contractor and/or Subcontractor to adhere to all policies concerning PREA,
RSA 632-A:2, RSA 632-A:3, RSA 632-A;4 and departmental policies including hJHDOC PPD 5.19 -
PREA: NHDOC Administrative Rules. Conduct and Confidentiality Information regarding my conduct,
reporting of incidents and treatment of those under the supervision of the NH Department of Corrections.
(Ref. RSA Chapter 632-A, NHDOC PPD 5.19 and Administrative Rules, Rules of Conduct for Persons
Providing Contract Services, Confidentiality of Information Agreement).

Name (print): JpfXrvn^ Lb Dale: 5-8->B
(Name of Contract Sign

Signature:

of Contract Signatory)
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Leone, ,
McDonnell
& Roberts

To the Board of Directors of PxffEaioNAiAiSfjaxrKix
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. certtfieo public a(X^mxnts
Berlin, New Hampshire vpolfqoro • NORTH CONVW

DOVER • CONCORD

SIRA7HAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization), which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 2017 and 2016. and the related
consolidated statements of activities, cash flows and functional expenses for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated finandal statements.

Managemenfs Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
finandal statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this indudes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors* Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated finandal statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to finandal audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures In the consolidated finandal statements. The procedures seleded depend on the
auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated firiandal statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considere internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements refemed to above present fairly. In all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and Its consolidated cash flows for the years
then ended, and the changes in Its net assets for the year ended June 30, 2017, In accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative information

We have previously audited Trl-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate's 2016
consolidated financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
consolidated financial statements in our report dated November 16, 2016. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2016, Is consistent. In all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements
from which it has been derived.

C^er information

bur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a wttole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost f^inciples, arid Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, Is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements. The Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied In
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, Including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance v^th auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects. In relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated
November 10, 2017, on our consideration of Trl-County Community Action Program, lnc,'s
Internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s Internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an Integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Govemment Auditing Standards In considering Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s
Internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

November 10, 2017
North Conway, New Hampshire



CONSOLIDATEO STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSmON

JUNE 30. 2017 AND 2016

A95ETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equlvatents
Accounts receivabie

Pledges receivable
Inventories

Prepaid exper^ses

2017

$  505,700
1,326,994

205,804
65.641
45.345

2018

$  589,806
1.248,318
229,419
88.860

Total current assets 2.149,484 2.197.415

PROPERTY

Property, plant, end equipment
Less accumulated depredation

13,544,469
(6.317,470)

13.388,060
(5.052.926)

Property, net 8,226,999 8.335.134

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

Bunding refinance costs, net
942,687

13.691

787.761
14.478

Total other assets 956.278 802,239

TOTAL ASSETS $ 11.332.761 $ 11.334.788

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABIUTtES

Demand note payable
Cunent portion Of long term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Other liabBtties

$  671.434
587.809
4.057

516,447
242,645
196,882

107,627
197,548
646,311

$  883,867
197,181
2.718

675,526
294,243

.  176,185

93,764
233,329
510.910

Total current llat)llitles 3,171,660 3.047.723

LONG TERM DEBT

Lortg term debt, net of current portion
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

6,254,436
12,670

5,866,916
11.766

Total liabilities 6.438.766 8,926,395

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
2.191.395

702.600

1.630,450

777.943

Total net assets 2,893,995 2.408.393

TOTAL UABIUT1ES AND NET ASSETS $ 11,332.761 $ 11.334.788

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOUOATEO STATEMENT Of ACHVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2017

TTIinmiVK TEMIO'mimrfucw uwairMM i rre iWItJWIWMKJW

Tamporarlly 2017

Unraatrlotad Raatrfctad Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant and oontrocts . $  12,336,663 5  305,694 $ 12,644.557
Program MvUng 1,636,901 60,686 1.708.487
Utmty proflrama 972.356 - 972.350
Irt-kM conttiuOona 436.674 . 436.674

Contilbutions 486.754 10.061 497.735
Fundraiaing 42,421 - 42.421
Rantal Inoorna 647,360 . 647.380
tntaraat Inoome 270 . 270

Loaa on dtepoaal of proparty (16,665) . (16,685)
Forcfvaneaaofdabt 26,912 ■ 26.012
Otharravanua 4.461 - 4.4fi1

Total ravanuaa and ottwr tupport 16,777.610 366.261 17.163.771

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 461.604 (461.604) -

Total ravanuaa, olhar aupport, end

nat aaaeta relaaaad from restrtcflona 17.239.114 (75.343) 17.183.771

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Program Sarvtcaa:
AgartcyFund 825,617 625,517
Head Start 2,312.665 2,311665
Ouardlanahip 735.925 735.928
Tianaportatton 1,063,996 1,063,006
Voluntaer 121,543 121,643
Wodcforoa Oavalopmanl 402,576 402,575
Aicohot and OtNar Drugs 1,165,000 1.165,000
Carroll County Denial 542,920 642,020
Carroll County Raatoratlva Jusflca • .

Support Canter 265,052 286,052
Horrwlaei 654,509 554,609
Energy and Community Davalopmant 6.276.670 6.276.670
Eidar 1,026.070 1.026,070
Houaino Sarvlcaa 167.526 167.526

Total program aarvloaa 15.459.671
■ 16.469.671

Supporting AdMdea:

Ganaral and admMatradva 1.213,426 - 1.213.425

Fundralsing 4.673
- 4.873

Total supporting actMUaa 1.216.296 ■ 1.216.208

Total functlonsi ojgwnaaa 16.676.169 - 16.678.169

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS 660,945 (75.343) 486,602

OTHER INCOME

Gain on Intaraat rate swap • -

TOTAL CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 660,945 (75.343) 465,602

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1.630.450 777.043 2,408.303

2010

Total

I 12.604,401
1,761.600
U79.740

313,824

267.032
37,201

600.033
272

(176,032)

^  J21

16,800,162

16,800.162

770,067

2,176,667
735,473

1,074,006
101.098
366,206

1.086,057
513,410
47,643

276,766
614,621

6.088,601
1.126,651
161.727

15,046,983

1.236.420

lilSl

1J37.620

17.186.603

(296,441)

7.365

(280,066)

2.897.440

NET assets, end OF YEAR S  2,191.395 $ 702,600 I 2,893,905 % 2,408,303

NotM to Conaolidatad nnanctat Statemants
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CONSOUDATEO STATEMENTS Of CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENRFp jume 3fl. 2017 AND M16

2017 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVfTtES

Change In net assets S  466,602 $  (289,056)
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Oepredaflon erxf amortization 492,141 472,188
OorMtlon of property artd equipment (224,685)
Loss on disposal of property 16,685 175.932
Forglveneesofdebt (25,912)
Gain on Intarest rate swap . (7,385)

(Increese) decrease In assets:
Accounts reoelvable (78,676) (234,044)
Pledges receivable 23,615 18,335
Inveritorles 23239 27270
Prepaid expenses (4,353) (10,314)
Restrlctad cash (154,926) (247,366)

(Decrease) increase In UablllUes:
Accounts payable (157,079) 3,744
Accrued compensated absarwes (51,698) (37.781)
Accrued salaries 20,697 41,363
Accrued expenses 13,663 (13,710)
Refundable advarwes (35,781) 41,986
Other liabilities 134,401 230.436

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTn/fTES 477,133 171.598

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVTTIES

Proceeds from disposed of property 26,750 75,000
Purchases of properly and equipment (181.113) (116.320)

NCT CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVmES (154.363) (41.320)

C ASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -

Net (repayment) advance on demand note payable (192,432) 191,660
Repayment of long-term debt (210,808) (219.778)
Repayment of capital lease obligatlone (3,636) (1.302)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCrNQ ACTrVTHES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE M CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

MFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for
Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACnVITIES:

Purchase of property and equipment fInatKed by long-term debt

Purchase of property and equipment flnarwed by capital lease

LIrre of credit converted to lor^i term debt

(406.676)

(64,106)

589,806

506.700

14,867

8.689

(».420)

100,856

488.950

669,606

S  208.781 % 184.941

45,689

15,776

28,046

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TRI-COUNTY COMMUNmr ACTION PROGRAM. INC. AND AFFIUATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2017 AND 2016

N0TE1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements Include the accounts of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and Its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated. because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All signfficant intercompany Items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic, financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a. New Hampshire non-profrt corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various, federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) was Incorporated under the
laws of the State of New Hampshire for the acquisition, construction and operation
of community based housing for the Elderiy.

Nature of activities

The Organization's programs consist of the following:

Agency

Tri-County CAP Administration provides centra! program management
support and oversight to our many individual programs. This includes
planning and budget development, bookkeeping and accounting, payroll
and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support, management
support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc., Board of Directors and Its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization's real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which Include in addition to Early learning, Health and
Family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goaisi such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.
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Programs support and strengthen parent-child relationships as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff wortc as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development

Tfi County Community Action Head Start serves 217 children In Carroll,
Coos & Graflon counties in 9 locations with 12 center-based classrooms
and 1 home based option.

Guardianship

The, Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian
services, for the vulnerable , population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally III, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer's, dementia, and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or,friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves 407
individuals.

Transportation

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization's fleet of 19
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the ger^ral public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Volunteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 400 volunteers, ages 55 and older. These volunteers
share their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit
and public agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 53,000 hours yearly.

Workforce Development

The Organization Is assisting transitional and displaced workers as they
prepare for new jobs, and also assisting currently-employed workers to
gain the skills required for better jobs.

The Organization is helping to implement New Hampshire's Unified State
Plan for Workforce Development, in line vrith the federal Workforce
investment Act. Workforce training programs, with training facilities in
three towns, provide temporary assistance for needy family (TANF)
recipients with 20-30 hours per week of training in the areas of employment
skills, computer skills, and business experience, and also place
participating TANF recipients In community-based work experience sites.



Alcohol & Other Drugs (AOD)

Services provided through the AOD program Include assisting the
alcoholic/addicted person on the road to recovery, through three phases:
Crisis Intervention. Sobriety Maintenance, and Assessment and Referral to
appropriate treatment facilities.

The Residential Treatment Programs (Friendship House) provide
chemically dependent Individuals with the fundamental tools of recovery.
Including educational classes, group and Irxllvidual counseling, work ar>d
recreational therapy, and attendance at in-house and community-based
alcoholics anonymous and narcotics anonymous meetings. The AOD
program also offers assistance with Its Impaired driver programs.

The Friendship House. In December of 2014. had approxlmateiy $130,000
worth of Investments and Improvements due to assistance from Public
Services of New Hampshire. There were $18,847 and $92,748 of pre-
deyelopment capitalized expenses in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

See Note 17 for subsequent events.

Carroll County Dental

The Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers high quality oral health
care to children with NH Medlcaid coverage. The Organization also serves
uninsured and underinsured children and adults using a sliding fee scale
that offers Income-based discounts for care. The Center accepts most
common dental insurances for those who have commercial dental

insurance coverage. A school-based project of the Dental Center. School
Smiles, offers oral health education, screening, treatment and referrals for
treatment to over 1.000 children in 9 schools In the vicinity of the Center.

Carroll County Restorative Justice

The Organization's restorative justice program provides comprehensive
alternatives to traditional court sentencing and dispute resolution within the
framework of Balanced and Restorative Justice. Two key components of
this process are personal accountability for one's actions (diversion) and
alternative conflict resolution (mediation). Services are provided by Iri-
house staff, volunteers, and partnered relations with other tocal service
providers. The division was discontinued in January 2016.

Support Center

The Organization's Support Center at Burch House provides direct service
and shelter to victims and survivors of domestic and sexual violence and
stalking In Northern Grafton County. Support Center services are
accessible 24 hours a day, 365 days a year. They include: crisis
Intervention: supportive counseling; court, hospital and policy advocacy
and accompaniment; emergency shelter; support groups; community
education and outreach: violence prevention programs for students;
Information, referrals and assistance accessing other community
resources.
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Hometess

Homeless services include an outreach Intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing: The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides, some housing , rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

£nerav Assistance and Outreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency ser>^s. The offices provide infomnation to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.

LoW'Income Weatherization

The NH Weatherization Program helps low-Income families, Elderly,
Disabled, Small children and Individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
vmile improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates Local NH jobs.

Elder

The Organization's Elder program provides senior meals In 15 community
dining sites, home-delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County ServlceLink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicald assistance, long-term care counseling services, and careglver
supports.

Housing Services

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. Is subject to a Project Rental Assistance
Contract (PRAC) >Mth the United States Department of Housing and Urtan
Development, and a significant portion of their rental income Is received
from the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The Organization includes a 12 unit apartment complex In Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and Is regulated by the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) with respect to the rental charges and
operating methods.
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The above. Organization has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under
guidelines established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Uniform. Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part

.  . 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and. Audit .
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 Capital Advance is
considered to be a major program.

Method oif accounting
The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc. have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America, as
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than contributions,
and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the date of receipt or
payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the FASB In Its
Accounting Standard Codification No. 958 Financial Statements of Not-For-F^ofit
Organizations. Under FASB ASC No. 958, the Organization is required to report
Information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes
of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, artd
permanently restricted net assets.

The Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 and
2016. The Organization had temporarily restricted net assets of $702,600 and
$777,943 at June 30,2017 and 2016. respectively.

ftestricted and unrestricted support
Contributions received are recorded aS unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor restrictions. Support that Is restricted is reported as an increase In
temporarily or permanently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires (that Is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported In the statement of activities as
net assets released from restrictions.

Unrestricted net assets include revenues and expenses and contributions
which are not subject to any donor imposed restrictions. Unrestricted net
assets can be board designated by the Board of Directors for special projects
and expenditures.

Temporarily restricted net assets include contributions for which time
restrictions or donor-imposed restrictions have not yet been met. When a
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported In the statement of activities as net assets
released from restriction (Note 12).
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Permanenttv restHcted net assets Include gifts which require, by donor
restriction, that the corpus be Invested in perpetuity and only the Income or a
portion thereof (excluding capital gains restricted by State statute) be made
available for program operaltons In accordance with donor restrictions. The
Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 and
2016.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value Is defined as the. price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability (i.e. the ."exit price") In an orderly transaction between market
participants at tt»e measurement date. The accounting standards for fair values
establishes a hierarchy for Inputs used In . measuring fair value that maximizes
the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable Inputs by
requiring that the most obsenrable Inputs be used when available. Observable
inputs are inputs that maricet participants would use in pricing the, asset or liability
developed based on; market data obtained from sources independent of the
Organization. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Organization's
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use In pricing the
asset or liability developed based on the best Information available In the
circumstances.

The hierarchy Is classified into three levels based on the reliability of Inputs as
follows:

.  Leve! 1: Valuations based on quoted prices In active markets for Identical
assets or liabilities that the Organization has the ability to access. Since
valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available
in an active market, valuation of these products does not entail a significant
degree of Judgment.

Level Z Valuation is determined from quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities In active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments In markets
that are not active or by model-based techniques In which all significant inputs
are observable in the market.

Level 3: Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to
the overall fair value measurement The degree of Judgment exercised in
determining fair value Is greatest for instruments categorized as Level 3.

The availability of observable Inputs can vary and is affected by a wide variety of
factors, including, the type of asset/liability, whether the asset/liability is established
In the marketplace, and other characteristics particular to the transaction. To the
extent that valuation Is based on models or inputs that are less obsenrable or
unobservable In the market, the determination of fair value requires more judgment.
In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fail into different levels
of the fair value hierarchy, in such cases, for disclosure purposes the level in the
fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement In its entirety falls is
determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in Its entirety.
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Fair value Is a market-based measure considered from the perspective of a market
participant rather than an entity-specific measure. Therefore, even when market
assumptions are not readily available, assumptions are required to reflect those that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. .

As disclosed In Note 6. the bond payable, formerty baring monthly Interest of 69%
of the sum of the one month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 3.25%,
when the Organization's debt service coverage ratio was 1.10; or 3.00% when the
Organl^tion's debt service coverage ratio was 1.20, Included.an Interest rate swap
agreement; The Organization paid Interest at a fixed 3.85%. The arrangement was
scheduled to expire on August 2040.. The notional amount of the contract was
$3,145,412. Accordingly, the swap arrangement, which is a derivative financial
Instrument, was classified as a cash flow hedge and was valued at the net present
value (NPV) of all estimated future cash flows. The Organization's purpose In
entering Into a swap arrangement was to hedge against the risk of Interest rate
increases on the related variable rate debt and not to hold the Instrument for trading
purposes. The swap arrangement was removed In February 2016 when the bond
agreement was renewed and the effective interest rate became 2.75% plus the
bank's internal cost of funds multiplied by 67%. The rate at the time of renewal was
3.10%. For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Organization realized a gain of
$7,385 on the swap and there was no fair value of the swap remaining after the
bond was renewed.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the arrrcunt management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. A portion of the accounts
receivable balance represents amounts due from patients at Carroll County Dental
and participants in the alcohol and other drug treatment programs. Past due
receivables are written off at management's discretion using the direct write off
method; this is not considered a departure from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United State because the effects of the direct write method
approximate those of the allowance method. Management selects accounts to be
written off after analyzing past payment history, the age of the accounts receivable,
and collection rates for receivables with similar characteristics, such as length of
time outstanding. The Organization does not charge interest on outstanding
accounts receivable.

Pfopertv and Depreciation

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and Improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance, and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipment, and Improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation Is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an Individual program is
charged directly to the related program.
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Depreciation expense for assets used by more than one program Is charged to the
program based upon a square footage or other similar allocation. . .

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets Is Included in the Indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs In accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as Incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

. Buildings and improvements 20 to 40 years
.. Vehicles. 5 to 8.5 years
;  Furniture and equipment 5 to. 15. years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.'s rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents and the anrK>unts
received from the clients..

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue In the period In which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $197,548 and $233,329 as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization Is a not-for-profit Section 501 (cX3) organization In accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has t>een classtfi^ as an Organization that is
not a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for a
chantable contribution deduction for Individual donors. The Organization files
information returns in the United States. The Organization's Federal Form 990
(Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax), Is subject to exartilnatlon by the
IRS, generally for three years after It Is filed. The Orgariizatlon is no longer subject
to examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2013.

The Organization follows FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty In Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition
and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken In a tax return.
The Organization does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions,
therefore, a liability for income taxes associated with uncertain tax positions has not
been recognized.
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Cornerstone Hpusing North, Inc. Is exempt from Income taxes under Section
501(cX3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization to be other than a private foundation within the
meaning of Section 509(a).

Retirement plan

The Organizatiori maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization's annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further Information can be obtained from the
Organization's 403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance norvflnanclal assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased If not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed rroncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as restricted support. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of noncash
assets are recorded as unrestricted support.

Donated Drooertv and equipment

Donations of property and equipment are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as unrestricted support
unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that
must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support.
Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must be
maintained, the Organization reports explratbns of donor restrictions when the
donated or acquired assets are placed In service as instructed by the donor. The
Organization reclasslfies temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets
at that time.

Promises to Give

Conditional promises to give are not recognized In the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected In more than one
year are recorded at fair value, \vhlch Is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted Interest rates applicable to the years In which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts Is Included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date.
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Promises that remain uncoltected more than one year after their due dates are
written off unless the donors Indicate that payment Is merely postponed. When a.
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets, are reclassrfied to unrestricted
net assets.

As of June 30. 2017 and 2016, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor stipulations, but restricted In regards to timing, and therefore classified as
temporarily restricted in the amount of $205,804 and $229,419, respectively. This
amount was Included in grants and contracts on the Consolidated Statement of
Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements In conformity accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requlresmanagement to make
estimates arxl. assumptions that affect the reported arnounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent asse^ and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
I  Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its

financial Instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization's financial
I  instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts

payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term rnaturity of those
instruments.

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarize on a functional basis In the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program salaries and related expenses are allocated to the various
!  programs and supporting services based on actual or estimated time

employees spend on each function as reported on a timesheet.

Wori^ers Compensatfon expenses are charged to each program based upon
the classification of each employee and allocated to the various program
based upon the time employees spend on each function as noted above.

Paid Leave Is charged to a leave pool and Is allocated to each program as a
percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These expenses
Include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health and dental
insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool Is allocated to each
program based upon a percentage of salaries.
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Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon specific
assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation expense on the
statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are used by
multiple, programs. Buildings are primarily charged to the benefiting program
based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs related to a building Include
depreciation, insurance, utilities, building maintenance, etc. These costs are
reported as space costs on the staten>ents of functional expenses.

.  Insurance: automobile insurance Is allocated to programs based on vehicle
usage; building- liability Insurance is allocated to programs based on square
footage of the buildings: and insurance for furniture and equipment is allocated
to programs using the book basis of the Insured assets.

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost Pool and
are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of program expenses.
The expenses Include items such as administrative salaries, general liability
Insurance, administrative travel, professional fees and other expenses which
cannot be speclficaliy Identified and charged to a program.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other Indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. The proposal effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016 received
provisional approval and is effective until amended at a rate of 12.7%. Per the
agreement with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the
Organization's final rate for the year ended June 30, 2016 was 12.5%.

i

Advertising pollcv

The Organization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising Is expens^ as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $26,456 and
$27,769, respectively.

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds on deposit with financial
Institutions, and investments with original rnaturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial Institutions. At June 30, 2017, the balances in
interest and non-interest-bearing accounts were Insured by the FDIC up to
$250,000. At June 30, 2017, there was approximately $665,000 of deposits held In
excess of the FDIC limit. Management believes the Organization is not exposed to
any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and considers this a rwrmal
business risk.
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Cash Restrictions

The Organization is required to maintain a deposit account with a banK as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 6. The required balance In the
account Is $52,497 and is restricted from withdrawal except to make payments of
debt service or as approved by the US [department of Agriculture.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service must t>e replenished with
monthly deposits uritil the maximum required deposit balance Is achieved. The
balance as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $19,611 and $15,372, respectively. The
Organization was not In compliance with this requirement; however, in May 2013,
the client began making the required monthly , deposits. The Organization has
made all of their scheduled deposits for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.
These amounts are included in restricted cash on the Statements of Financial
Position...

The Organization Is required to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part, of a bond Issue.{see bond payable in Not© 6). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and Is equal to the interest payments on the bond for a 12-
month period. The balance as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $187,095 and
$186,908, respectively, and the Organization was In compliance with this
requirement. These amounts are Included in restricted cash on the Statements of
Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate In
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account Is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $642,308 and $509,095, respectively.
These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of Rnanclal
Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2017 and 2016
was $642,308 and $503,888, respectively, and is included in the restricted cash
balance on the Statements of Rnanclal Position. The Organization was assessed a
fee of $5,244 related to the unauthorized use of these funds In prior years. The
final assessed fee of $5,207 was paid by the Organization during the year ended
June 30, 2017.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, inc. is restricted for
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulations prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30,2017 and 2016 was $93,673 and $81,583, respectively.

NOTE 3. INVENTORY

In 2017 and 2016, inventory Included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2017 and 2016, consists of weatherization materials
totaling $65,641 and $88,880, respectively.
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NOTE 4. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

For the years ending June 30. 2017 and 2016, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accaie vacation for a maximum of 160 hours and 200 hours, respectiveiy.
At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the Organization had accrued a liability for future
annual leave time that its employees had eamed and vested In the ahiount of
$242,545 and $294,243, respectively.

NOTES. PROPERTY

Property consists of the following at June 30. 2017:

Capttalized Accumulated
Cost Depreciation

Building
Equipment
Land

$10,679,707
2,400,922
463.840

$ 3,428,094
1.889,376

^5 317.470

Property consists of the following at June 30,2016:

Capitalized Accumulated
Cost Depreciation

Building
Equipment
Land

$10,682,236
2.237,057
468.767

Net

Book Value

$7,251,613
511,546

463.840

$ 3,325,948
1,726,978

Net

Book Value

$ 7,356,288
510,079
468.767

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment, whose book
value is Immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the Organization's
property and equipment totals.

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $491,254
and $471,299, respectiveiy.

the Organization also had building refinancing costs of $17,730 during the year
erxled June 30, 2014. Amortization expense and accumulated amortization for the
year ended June 30, 2017 was $887 and $4,139, respectively. Amortization
expense and accumulated amortization for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $887
and $3,252, respectively.
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NOTE 6. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt of the Ofganizatlon. as of June 30. 2017 and 2016 consisted of
the following:

MZ 2016

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
Installments of $1,4.96, Including interest at 4.5% per
annum.. Secured by the general business assets.
Final Installment due June 2024. $ 108,127 $ 120,899

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
installments of $1,664, including Interest at 5% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Rnal
installment due Jariuary 2027. 150,935. 163,026

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
Installments of $292. including interest at 4.75% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
Installment due April 2030. 29,633 31,688

Note payable with the USDA requiring 360 monthly
Installments of $74, Including Interest at 4.75% per
annum. Secured by general business assets. Final
Installment due June 2029. 8,103 8,593

Note payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
Installments of $3,033, including interest at 6.75%
per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two
commercial properties. Final Installment due April
2021. 368,428 386.831

Note payable with a bank requiring 60 monthly
installments of $459, Including interest at 5% per
annum. This note was an unsecured line of credit
that was converted to a term loan during the year
ended June 30, 2016. Final Installment due April
2021. See Note 8. 19,144 23,585

Note payable to a non-profit organization (related
party), monthly principal payments of $1,533. Final
installment due October 2018. A portion of the note
payable was forgiven by the non-profit organization
during the year ended June 30,2017. See Note 16. 24,533 84,563
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Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly . Installments of $312, including Interest at
5.49% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle.-Final Installment due August 2021. 13,934 16,832

Note payable to a finandng company requiring 72
monthly installments of $313, including Interest at
5.54% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due July 2021. 13,715 16,628

Note payable to a financing company requiring 60
monthly installments of $143, Including interest at
5.99% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final Installment due November 2020. 5,306 6,666

Note payable to a financing company requiring 72
monthly installments of $248, including interest at
6.10% per annum. Secured by the Organization's
vehicle. Final installment due February 2023. 14,207

Note payable with a bank requiring 18 monthly
installments of $4,518, Including interest at 4.16®/o
per annum. Secured by second mortgage on
commercial property. Final balloon payment due
December 2017. 417,421 440,653

Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly
installments of $14,485, Including interest of 2.75%
plus the bank's Internal cost of funds multiplied by
67% with an Indicative rate as of March 2017 of

3.28%. Secured by first commercial real estate
mortgage on various properties and assignments of
rents at various properties. Final installment due
August 2040. 2.801,159 2.896,533

Comerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. This capital advance is not subject to
Interest or principle amortization and will be forgiven
after 40 years, or on August 1,2047. 1,617,600 1,617,600
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Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage payable
due to New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.
The mortgage is not subject to interest or principle
amortization. Payments are deferred for 40 years,
final payment due in August 2047.

Less current portion due within one year

250.000 . 250.QQQ

.5,842,245 6.064,097
(587.809) (197.181)

£■ 5.254.436

The schedulied maturities of long term debt as of June 30,2017 were as follows:

Years ending
June 30

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

Thereafter

Amount

$  587,809
151,765
157,927
446,827
133,253

4.364.664

^ 5.842.245

As described at Note 2, the Organization is required to maintain a reserve account
with a bank for the first four notes payable listed above. In May 2013, the
Organization began making monthly deposits to the reserve account, but had not
yet accumulated the required balance. Failure to meet this requirement may t>e
construed by the Govemment to constitute default: however, the awarding agency
is aware of this issue and has not made a request for advanced payment.

NOTE 7. CAPITAL LEASE OBUGATIONS

During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Company leased a phone system and
copier under the terms of capital leases, expiring in November 2020 and March
2021, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2017. the Company leased an
additional copier under the terms of a capital lease, expiring in May 2021. The
assets and liabilities under the capital leases are recorded at the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the assets. The
assets are depreciated over their estimated lives.
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The obligations Included In capital leases at June 30, 2017 and 2016, consisted of
the following:

2017 2016

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $208 for principal and
interest at 9.5% per annum. The lease is secured
by the phone system and will mature in November
2020. $ 7.246 $ 8,823

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly InstallrDents of $122 for principal and
Interest at 8.841% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature In March
2021. 4.570 5,651

Lease payable to a financing company with
monthly installments of $122 for principal and
interest at 8.918% per annum. The lease is
secured by a copier and will mature In May 2021. 4.911 :

16,727 14,474
Less cun-ent portion f4.057) (2.718^

^  12.670 $ 11-756

The scheduled maturities of capital lease obligations as of June 30, 2017 were as
follows:

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2018 $ 4.057

2019 4.445

2020 4,870

2021 3.355

S  16 727
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NOTE 8. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with TD Bank wrfilch Is
secured with real estate mortgages and assignments of leases and rents on various
properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement. Borrowings under the line
bear Interest at 5.00% per annum, and totaled $400,000 and $600,000 at June 30,
2017 and 2016, respectively. The line Is subject to renewal each January.

The Organization was Issued an unsecured revoMng line of credit In 2014 with the
New Hampshire Department of Administration Services. On June 30, 2017 and
2016, the. outstanding debt totaled $271,434 and $263,867, respectively, which
Included accrued Interest of $14,916 and $13,867, respectively. During the year
ended June. 30, 2017 there was an amendment to the original agreement. The
Organization Is not required to make payments of Interest or principal prior to
maturity. The unsecured revolving line of credit matures in November ,2019.

NOTE 9. LEASES

Operating Leases

The Organization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space.
Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various starting dates,
lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the Organization has
several facilities which are leased on a month to month basis. For the years ended
June 30,2017 and 2016, the annual rent expense for leased facilities was $161,025
and $158,499. respectively.

Minimum future rental payments under norvcanceiable operating leases having
Initial terms In excess of One year as of June 30, 2017, are as follows;

Years ending
June 30 Amount

2018 $ 136,428
2019 88.309
2020 43.441
2021 39,611
2022 3.301

g 311.090

NOTE 10. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Organization records the value of In-kind contributions according to the
accounting policy described In Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Eider
Programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.
These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.
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The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder Programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental

payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.

Many other individuals have donated significant amounts of time to the activities of
the Organization. The financial statements do not reflect any value for these
donated. services since there is no reliable basis for making a reasonable
determination.

NOTE 11. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. receives a majority of its support from
federal aod state governments. For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016,
approximately $12,220,000 (72%) and $12,200,000 (72%), respectively, of the
Organization's total revenue was received from federal and state governments, if a
significant reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant
effect on the Organization's programs and activities.

Comerstone Housing North, inc. receives'a large majority of Its support from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June
30, 2017 and 2016 approximately 69% and 66%, respectively, of the Organizations
total revenue was derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urtjan
Development. In the absence of additional revenue sources, the.future existence of
Comerstone Housing North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Comerstone Housing North, lnc.'s assets are apartment projects,
for which operations are concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market In
addition, the Organization operates In a regulated environment. The operation of
the Organization is subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of
federal, state and local regulatory agencies, Including, but not limited to, HUD.
Such administrative directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an
act of Congress or an administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes
may occur with little rK)tlce or Inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,
Including the administrative burden, to comply with the change.
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NOTE 12. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016

Temporary Municipal Funding $ 205.804 $ .229,419
10 Bricks Shelter Funds 141,190 . 135,257
Restricted Buildings 94.239 99,313
FAR 87,991
Homeless Programs 36,856 43,277
NH Charitable FourKlation Grant, Mt. Jasper 32,653. 32,653
Loans - HSGP 24,261
AOD - IDN Capacity Fund 15,066
Service Link 12,123 19,135
FAR/EAR 11,735 12,167
Loans - HHARLF 10,884
USDA 7.252
L. CHIR - Brown Co. House 8,236 22,314
Donations to Mahoosuc Trail 6,842 6,842
RSVR Program Funds 3,675 13,637
Donations to Maple Fund 1,246 1,825
Julien Fund (AOD) 1,175 775
Head Start 973 875
Angelias Fund (AOD) 235 235
EAR 164 68,143
Loan Programs -• 37,427
Carroll County Transit Program - 682
Coos County Transit Program . 586
Senior Meals - 53.381

Total temporarily restricted net assets S 702 .600

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCjES

Grant Compilance

The Organization received funds under several federal and state grants. Under the
terms of the grants the Organization Is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be
noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could
be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.
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I  Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills

,  Company.

!  The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
. coritamlnants which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the

i  East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

in addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
;  Building did mX pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
'  environment provided the West Wing Building Is maintained to prevent further
i  structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and. contaminants are
I  released Into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional
;  action including containment and remediation.

NOTE 14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed In Note 6, the Organization has a loan payable to a non-profit
organization which also provides pass-through state and federal funding for some
of the Organization's programs. See Note 6 and Note 16 for terms of the note
payables and related forgiveness of debt. Total notes payable to related parties for
the years ended June 30. 2017 and 2016 was $24,533 and $84,563. respectively.

NOTE 15. RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNT

Cornerstone Housing North, Iric.'s use of the residual receipts account Is contingent
upon HUD's prior written approval. During the year,ended June 30, 2016,
Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. was required to return to HUD the balance In the
residual receipts account In excess of $250 per unit. This resulted in a refund to
HUD of $1,184. This was recorded as a miscellaneous financial expense on the
Statements of Activities during the year erxled June 30, 2016.

NOTE 16. FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

I

During the year ended June 30. 2017, the Organization realized forgiveness of debt
Income In connection vAXh a note payable to a non-profit organization. Forgiveness
of debt Income totaled $25,912 for the year ended June 30.2017.
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NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about coriditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Non-recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through November
10, 2017, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. ■

Effective October 1, 2017, the Organization is no longer responsible for the Alcohol
& Other Drugs (ADD) program. The grants for the program have been transferred
to North Country Health Consortium (NCHC), as they are taking over the program.
Temporarily restricted net assets related to AOD as of June 30, 2017 will be either
released for fiscal year 2018 operations or returned subsequent to the transfer of
the program. Subsequent to year end, the Friendship House was sold to Affordable
Housing Education and Development (AHEAD).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF RNANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WTTH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.
Bertin, New Hampshire

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemmenf Auditing Standards
Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program. Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial
position as of June 30. 2017. and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have Issued our
report thereon dated November 10. 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine
the audit procedures that are appropriate in tt»e circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of Tn-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing tfieir assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
rnisstatement of the entity's financial statements will not l>e prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose descrit>ed in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in Intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action Program |nc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control ar>d
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's Intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral-part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's intemal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

November 10,2017
North Conway, New Hampshire
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TRI.COUMTY COMMUNITY ArTinN PROGRAM. INC.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Tri-County Community Action Program. Inc.
Berlin, New^Hampsliire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Trj-County Community Action Program Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described In the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Tii-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2017. Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified In the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Afanagemenf's Responsibility

Management Is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Tri-County Community Action
Program lnc,*s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted In the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Govemmenf Auditing Standards. Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards arid Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompllance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to at)Ove that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit Includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Tri-County Community Action Program Inc.'s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community
Action Program Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Eaderal Program

In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major f^erai programs for the year ended June 30,2017.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program Inc.'s Internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance In
accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency In internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and comect. noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness In Internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in Internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in Internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of defidendes. In
Internal control over compliance with a t^ of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness In intemal control over compliance, yet Important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in Intemal control over compfiance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report Is not suitable for any other purpose.

November 10, 2017
North Conway, New Hampshire
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PROGRAM. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2017

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Trl-County
Community Action Program, Inc.

2. Np significant deficiencies relating to tfie audit of the financial statements are reported In the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncpmpliance material to the financial statements of Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported In accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit

4. No significant deficiencies In internal control over major federal award programs during the audit
are reported- In the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on ̂ 1 major programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) are
reported In this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, LIHEAP - CFDA #93.568

U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services, Agirtg Cluster - CFDA #93.044, 93.045 and
93.053

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. was detennined to be a tow-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Board of Directors FY2018

Section 14

COOS COUNTY

Board Chair

Sandy AJonzo

Secretary

Gary Coulombe

Treasurer

Cathy Conway

CARROLL COUNTY

Anne Barber

Michael Dewar

Vice Chair

Oino Scala

Karolina Bi^ozowska

GRAFTON COUNTY

Linda Massimilla

Tricia Garrison

Richard McLeod
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Organizational Chart

Section 3

»L%Kecoilv'e-r

Director,ICC

Division

Director, TCC
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^ /Associate'^
I Director . I
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Executive/Program Employees;

Chief Executive Officer/Corp. - Jeanne Robillard
Division Director/Corp. - Prevention Services - Dawn Fcrringo
Program Director/Estate and Trust Departments/GS - Donna M.C. Keddy, NMG
Associate Director/Staff Guardian/GS - Jayne McCabe, NMG
Staff Guardians - Sandi Caron/NCG, Sherri Litchfield, Marie Brockway
Guardian Support Coordinator - Patrick Gilmartin
Estate Guardian/Accounting Servs./Decedent's Estates/GS - Katie Mooney, NCG
Office Manager/Benefits Administrator/GS - Meredith Robinson
Payee/Benefit Associate - Shelba Tetu
Administrative Secretary/Payee and Benefit Associate - Diane Cross
Payee Associates - Rena Call and Korina Gensamer

Estate/Payee Associate - Cathy Fountain

Administrative Assistant/Reconciliation Clerk - Diane Caruso

Receptionists - Andrea Baird, Pauline Gennan



Resumes of All Key Personnel and Job Descriptions of Support Personnel

Section 16

Jeanne L. Robiilard

CORE STRENGTHS

Program development, management and administration □ Community collaborations

Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet funder standards

Grant writing and management □ Budget performance and financial reporting Innovative

solutions & problem solving □ OCapacity building

Professional presentations 0 Public speaking
Dedication □□ Imagination □□ Determination □ Fortitude

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Tri-County Community Actfon Programs, Inc.

Chief Executive Officer

Berlin, NH current FT employment

Tii-County Community Action Programs, Inc.

Chief Operating Officer

Berlin, NH 2016-2018

Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that
provide over 60 consumer services across three counties of Northern New Hampshire.

Essential duties include; supervision of Division Directors, oversee and monitor program

resources, revenues, expenditures and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs

to meet or exceed agency defined strategic goals; develop and implement strategies to

improve individual programs and overall agency program and fiscal performance;
oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan, Community

Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new

service initiatives. Provide tactical guidance to Division Directors to trouble shoot issues
and problems in the daily operations of programs.

Tri-County Community Action Programs, Inc.

Division Director; TCCAP Prevention Services

Berlin, NH 2015- 2016
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Responsible for four agency programs under the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention

Services; oversee division resources, revenues, and expenditures and monitor budget

performance; general oversight of programs to meet or exceed agency defined strategic

goals; supervise program directors; write grants to support programs, monitor results, and

prepare grant reports and financial statements for fimders and agency, develop

fundraising and marketing strategies for programs; represent program through

participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/division goals and service

delivery,

collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative

testimony.

Tii-County Community Action Programs, Inc.

Program/Division Director: Support Center at Burch House

Littleton, New Hampshire 2007- 2015 Oversee daily operation and supervision of

domestic and sexual violence crisis center and residential shelter, write grants to support

programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial statements for funders

and parent agency; oversee program resources, revenues and expenditures, and monitor

budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and direct victim

advocacy programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and

federal law; develop fundraising and marketing strategies; participate in state and local

collaborations to enhance victim services; represent program in state and federal victim

service initiatives, including presentation of legislative testimony, create and present
trainings for medical and legal professionals on legal standards and best practices for

victim services.

Bookeeper: Women's Rural Entrepreneurial Network (WREN)

Bethlehem, NH current PT employment

Responsible for grant fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi

weekly payroll and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end

reconciliations for bank accounts, credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales;

monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three retail locations, preparing monthly cash flow,

forecasts, and standard fiscal reports for Board of Directors.
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Tri-County Communfty Action Programs, Inc.

Direct ServicesA^olunteer Coordinator: Support Center at Burch House

Littleton, New Hampshire 1997 to 2007

Provide advocacy and direct service to victims of domestic and sexual violence;

supervise court advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and

interns; develop agency systems, policies and protocols; create and present community

outreach presentations and campaigns; present school-based violence prevention classes

for grades K-I2 ; provide on-call coverage of crisis line

Director: Haverfaill Area Juvenile Diversion Program

Woodsviile, New Hampshire 1999-2001

Recruit, train, and supervise volunteer diversion committees; establish community

programming for diverted youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative

relationships between the court system, juvenile service officers, local police

departments, and diversion program; prepare and file court reports on diverted youth;

community outreach and education

Counselor/Title I Teacher: Northern Family Institute-^JefTerson Shelter

Jefferson, New Hampshire 1996-1999

Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer support

groups, develop and implement treatment plans and case management services to clients,

supervise and tutor youth in classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Educatioo

BS in Human Services, Springfield College School of Human Services, Boston, MA

Criminal Justice Concentration, Graduated with 4.0 GPA

AS in Drug and Alcohol Rehabilitation Counseling (DARC Program)

Southern Connecticut Community College, New Haven, CT

Additional Skills, Professional Leadership and Civic Affiliations

□ Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem Twice Elected 2006-

2010
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□ Chairman, Arts Alliance of Northern New Hampshire 2000-2003, Treasurer 1996-

1998

□ Chairman, Haverhill Area Family Violence Council 1998-2003

□ Certified PRIME FOR LIFE Impaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor

#NH16199

□ Registered Sexual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire
□ Board Member, Women*s Rural Entrepreneurial Networic 2014; Individual Member

2008-2017

□ Bethlehem Planning Board 2010 - 2015

□ Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current

□ Granite United Way, North Country Cabinet Member 2011-2012

□ DTCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2011

0 Bethlehem Citizen's Advisory Committee on Recycling 2007-2010

□ Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH 2000-2006

□ Small Business Owner : Aurora Energies 2015- current

D Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweet Jamm Swing Band Jazz Vocalist 1997- current

□ Member, United States Figure Skating Assoc/Intemational Skating Institute current

since 1993

□ Avid outdoor enthusiast and angler
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DAWN FERRINGO

Experience

PreventloD Services Division Director, Tri-County CAP. Berlin, NH July ZU16 to

present

♦Write, manage, and administer federal, state, and local grants and grant deliverables

♦Provide supervision of all programs directors under Division

♦Oversee and administer all fiscal and administrative matters related to programs, including
budget preparation, tracking, and management, grants preparation and management, reports
to funders and audit requirements

♦Maintain program documentation and ensure compliance with funding standards
(including audits, reports and compliance checks) and objectives as required by funders
♦Prepare monthly financial reports and Division reports for CEO/COO and TCCAP Board
♦Ensure program integrity, viability, and compliance with all funding standards

♦Ensure program has adequate resources to sustain operations and programs

♦Represent program at community, business, and civic functions

♦Develop and maintain positive collaborative relationships with area health and human
service providd^, and other civic and business organizations
♦Represent Division programs in federal, state and local initiatives

♦Organize, plan, and prepare agency development and fundraising projects

Shelter Manager, Tyler Blain House, Tri-County CAP, Lancaster, NH March 2016

to June 2016.

♦Responsible for the general welfare and safety of all Shelter Residents.
♦Direct intake and exit procedures

♦Maintain appropriate client records.

♦Oversee the enforcement of house rules and standards of conduct.

♦Coordinate and assist with the provision of case management services for residents.

♦Supervise other House staff: hire, train, schedule and evaluate; oversee the submission

of payroll forms.

♦Oversee the maintenance of the Shelter building and grounds with TCCAP Facilities;

keep the interior orderly, clean and safe, the exterior sound and presentable, house
vehicle, appliances and office equipment in good working order.

67



D Ferringo *2

•Maintain cash receipts for shelter guests rent, submit rent revenue to Accounts

♦Receivable, and review and submit bills for payment.
♦Be responsible for the receipt, storage and disbursement of donated goods.
♦Keep necessary records; prepare and submit reports on Shelter activities as required by
flmdcrs.

♦Enter statistical data into State HMIS system; act as one of the coordinated entry points
for the Northern Region per State of NH BHHS, attend HMIS trainings as needed.
♦Operate under strict client confidentiality and code of conduct requirements.
♦Abide by the Homeless Programs Ethics Policy.
♦Public Relations Representative for the Tyler Blain House and related TCCAP programs
to include statewide Shelter Meetings, other meetings and opportunities for community
outreach as necessary..

♦Assist Homeless Programs Manager and Prevention Division Director with fund raising
and grant writing.

♦Commumcate regularly with Homeless Programs Manager and Prevention Division
Director; inform them of important issues promptly.

Director of Welfare, Town of Bethlehem, Bethlehem, NH July 2009 to March 2016.
♦Developed municipal welfare policy and maintained policy integrity, viability and

compliance with NH RSA 165, Aid to Assisted Persons.

♦Oversaw and administered all fiscal and administrative matters related to municipal
welfare including budget preparation, tracking and management
♦Effectively reduced over all municipal welfare budgets by 60% over the course of three
years through program evaluation and established new policy and program facilitation
practices.

♦Provided case management for clients who qualify for general assistance, which often
includes resource and referrals networking and client advocacy.
♦Employed a method of self-care with clients including self assessment, goal setting,
strategies and desired outcomes in the Seven Areas of Wellness.

♦Monitored legislation and new programs and makes recommendations regarding the
administration of the welfare function to the Board of Selectmen;
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*Made frequent collateral contact requiring considerable skill and tact in eliciting

confidential and pertinent information in order to determine eligibility for assistance.

•Maintained meticulous case files, case notes, and other related records.

•Established and maintains effective relationships with state and local social services

organizations.

•Maintained strict confidentiality practices.

Development and Special Events Manager, Adaptive Sports Partners of the North

Country, Franconia, NH October 2013 - May 2014.

•Annual Fundraising and Resource Development: Worked with the Executive Director

and Development Committee to create, oversee and manage annual fundraising plan for

the organization. Helped to establish new mission statement, strategic plan and case

statement for the organization.

•Event Management: Managed key fundraising events throughout the year including;

Wobble *n Gobble Thanksgiving Day 5K, Pirates of the High Skis, Sunrise Ascent on

Mount Washington, Any Which Way You Can Triathlon Challenge, and multiple smaller

events.

•Outreach and Communication: Promoted Adaptive Sports Partners of the North

Country's mission and business operation in the community and beyond.

Workplace Success Facilitator/Community Job Specialist, TrI-County CAP,

Littleton, NH September 2007 - January 2011.

•Conducted daily work simulated sessions through '"Service Bureau" projects and

Workplace Success curriculum to participants enrolled with the NH Employment

Program (NHEP).

♦Followed each participant's NHEP Employability Plan in an effort to resolve
employment barriers.

•Coordinated Community Work Experience Program (CWEP) in Grafton, Coos, and
Carroll Counties for participants who completed Woikplace Success.
•Developed and maintained relationships with the volunteer sites and acted as a liaison
for these sites, the client, and the NHEP Employment Counselor Specialist.
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DONNA M. C. KEDDY

Career Objective: To utilize my experience in the Probate Forum to advocate for

incapacitated individuals for the improvement of their quality of life.

EMPLOYMENT:

2005-Present - Tri-County CAP, Inc. Guardianship Services- Director

Directorship approved by Board of Directors on 4/21/2004

Acting Director effective 5/13/2003

1993-2003 - TCC/GS Assistant Director/Estate Supervisor

1/01/1993-5/12/2003 - Duties include Management of the Estate and Trust Departments,

direct supervision of five financial managers, ie: Estate Managers, Payee Specialist and

Benefits Administrator, indirect supervision of entire program staff as Director's

designee. This position also includes carrying an Estate and Trust Caseload.

1991-1992 - TCC/GS Estate Manager

6/1991 -12/1992 - Duties included the development of a more efficient system to manage

and account for wards resources. Continual training and understanding of the Probate

System and all public assistance programs and systems, plus Social Security and Veteran

Administrative systems. Also carried an Estate and Payee Caseload. Duties also

included Administrative Program functions. Direct supervision of estate and siqjport

staff.

1988-1992 - TCC/GS Administrative Assistant/Staff Guardian

11/1988-12/1992 - Duties included Administrative Program Functions, Payee

Responsibilities, and a guardianship caseload at Glencliff Home for the Elderly.

1985-1989 Bookkeeper for Diamond International Corporation

Woodland Division based out of Lancaster/Groveton, New Hampshire

EDUCATION:

1973-1977 Ludlow High School, Business Study

Ludlow, MA

National Honor Society
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CERTIFICATIONS: Member since 1988, Registered Guardian, Conference Presenter

National Guardianship Foundation. National Master Guardian, Center for Guardianship

Certification. -

Professional Qualifications and Background:

♦Development of comprehensive program policies and protocols for the establishment of
Estate, Trust, Protective Payee, and Benefit Management Services for state-wide
public guardianship program with oversight of the associate director, staff
guardians, estate and benefit staff in both Whitefield and Concord offices.

♦Consultation services to family guardians and individuals either considering
Guardianship over a loved one or education regarding guardianship standards
and responsibilities both on a fee-for-service basis and as a professional
courtesy to the Probate Court and the general public.

♦Member of the National Guardianship Association (NGA) fiom 1988 to present.
♦Certified as a National Registered Guardian throu^ the NGA in 1997.
♦Presenter at the National Guardianship Conference in Arlington, Virginia 1998.
Topic: The Keys of Estate Management '*The First Ninety "Days".
♦Selected by Judge Maher, then Administrative Probate Judge, to be on his

committee to produce a handbook to guide, assist, and provide resources to
individuals that are responsible for making health care decision for others.

"Making Medical Decisions for Someone Else: A New Hampshire Handbook (2007).
♦Appointed to Judge King's Task Force on Professional Guardians 6/24/2008.

Purpose: need to ensure that the guardians serving the vulnerable population are held to
hi^ professional and ethical standards and have adequate education, training and

experience. (Article in Coos County Democrat July 2,2008). The NH House passed the

proposed legislation for the amendment on RS A 464-A: 10 on 5/20/2009.

♦Certified as a National Master Guardian through the Center for Guardianship

Certification on 4/1/2010.
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JAYNE ELIZABETH MCCABE

Career Objective:

To woric for a customer orientated human services organization that enables me to utilize

a variety of leadership and management skills in a challenging setting.

EMPLOYMENT:

8/98- present TRI-COUNTY CAP, INC^ GUARDIANSHIP SERVICES

Associate Director - 4/04 to present

Duties include assisting the Director in the overall management of the program,

supervision of staff guardians, training and orientation

of staff, and quality assurance activities. Managing assigned case load.

Senior Staff Guardian- 11/02 to 4/04

Duties included direct supervision of 7 staff guardians, staff training and orientation, and

working with the program management team.

Staff Guardian- 8/98 to 10/02

Duties included making medical and treatment decisions for incapacitated adults,

working with treatment teams from a variety of community agencies, and advocacy.

4/83- 11/98 MOORE CENTER SERVICES INC.

Self Determination and Special Projects Director- 2/98 to 11/98

Primaiy responsibilities included coordination of regional self-determination project a

part of a state-wide grant from the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation. Primary focus

included developing a data collection system, facilitating necessary training, and

identification of systems issues which impacted the ability of the consumers to exercise

choice and control. Secondary responsibilities included coordination of regional quality

assurance activities.

72



JE McCabe *2

Quality Assurance Director-11/93 to 2/98

Areas of authority included coordination of regional quality assurance activities;

coordination of regional client rights activities including complaint investigation,

problem resolution and trend analysis; and, coordination of regional staff development

and training activities.

Director of Regional Residential Services- 2/88-11/93

Areas of authority included directing programmatic support and administrative services

for residential programs services 127 individuals within a seven community region;

management of owned and lease property, negotiating and monitoring subcontracts;

formulation and management of program budget.

Residential Supervisor- 3/86 to 2/88

Supervision of staffed residences; recruitment, training and supervision of private

residential providers; and, coordination of quality assurance and licensing activities.

Various other positions within the agency- 4/83 to 3/86

EDUCATION:

1986 NEW HAMPSHIRE COLLEGE, Manchester, New Hampshire

M.S., Human Services Administration

1983 SAINT ANSELM COLLEGE, Goffstown,NH

B.S., Criminal Justice

CERTinCATIONS:

Center for Guardianship Certification:

National Master Guardian 4/2010 to present

National Certified Guardian 10/1999 to 4/2010
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SANDRA CARON

OBJECTIVE:

Utilize community resources to create positive and meaningful programs for individuals

with disabilities.

EDUCATION:

BS in Early Childhood Education, Northeastern University, Boston MA. 1986.

Concentrated in Innovative teaching style with understudy in special needs.

WORK EXPERIENCE:

Tri-County CAP. IncJGuardianship Services, Concord, NH 03301 (October, 2007-

Present)

Meet with wards and/or treatment team according to ward's needs and program policy.

Develop and maintain a working relationship with treatment providers. Advocate for the

wards needs. Provide informed consent as necessary and appropriate. Maintain records

and documentation in a timely manner. Complete guardianship reports and

documentation accurately in accordance with program requirements. Demonstrate a

woridng knowledge of state standards for treatment providers.

Life Share Inc. Manchester, NH. (2(X)4 - 2007)

D.S.P. responsible for designing positive community base programs for three individuals.

Administering medication, creating monthly activity calendars and weekly life skill

classes. Develop and conduct staff training sessions. Organize special events aimed at

community inclusion.

EXTENDED COURSES COMPLETED:

On line College Course for Direct Support by The Moore Center

CMT training

Medication Administration- State of NH

Disabilities Quality Of Life, Clients Rights

The Making Of A Home: Home Providers Perspective, seminar

D.D. Worid - Guys and Main Street Man, seminar

Direct Support Conference "Enriching Lives" '
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PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS:

NH Developmental Disabilities Council

NH Education Board: Dept. For Training and seminar research

CERTinCATIONS:

Member of the National Guardianship Association 2008 to present

National Certified Guardian (Centers for Guardianship Certification) 2008 to present
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SHERRl P. LITCHHELD

EDUCATION:

Associates Degree - Liberal Arts

New Hampshire College

EXPERIENCE;

Tri County CAP, Inc^ Guardianship Services, 18 Low Avenue, Concord, New

Hampshire, (603) 224-0805

2010- Present

Staff Guardian:

♦Primary responsibilities include:

♦Provide advocacy and informed consent on behalf of individuals deemed by the Probate
Court as incapacitated and unable to make informed decisions.

♦Advocate for the needs of individual's and for changes in treatment as necessary.
♦Provide informed consent as necessary and appropriate in regards to medical issues that
include, but not limited to, medication authorization and medical treatment.

♦Maintain records and documentation.

♦Develop and maintain a working relationship with treatment provider's that ensure all
services being provided are in the individual's best interest and is in the least restrictive

setting.

♦Attend court hearings as required.

American Red Cross, 2 Maitland Street, Concord, NH 03301, (603) 225-6697

2007-2009

Director of Health & Safety:

Responsibilities included:

♦Scheduling all community classes and arranging for instructors to teach classes being
offered.

♦Oversaw the ordering of all Health & Safety equipment and supplies required for
classes.
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♦Supervised per diem instructors and woriced closely with outside instructors to ensure
that all Red Cross classes were being conducted per American Red Cross standards.
*Tau^t First Aid, CPR (Adult/Infant/Child) when needed. Supervised and oversaw
training of all volunteers within the Health & Safety department.
* Responsible for promoting and selling Health & Safety classes to companies and
organizations.

♦Conducted and promoted other Red Cross trainings such as Prepare New Hampshire,
Speakers Bureau, Disaster Services, Services to the Armed Forces, and the LNA

program. Additional responsibilities included data entry, developing annual budget, and
extensive travel throu^out New Hampshire.

Granite Bay Connections, Inc^ 54 Old Suncook Road, Concord, NH 03301,

(603)224-5588

2001- 2007

Director of Quality Assurance:

♦Ensuring that all homes that Granite Bay Connection operated met all the requirements
for State Certification and full compliance for re-certification. This included monitoring
documentation, commimication, and implementation of all service components.
♦Also responsible for staff development and training to ensure compliance with state
regulations which included, but was not limited to. Client Rights, Overview of

Developmental Disabilities, Learning Skills, Blood Bome Pathogens, and HIPPA.

♦ Served as the agency HIPPA officer and monitored internal complaints.
♦Supervised the agency RN Nurse Trainer to ensure compliance with the state regulation
that governs medication administration to all individuals receiving services.

♦Maintained direct contact with all local and state agencies to ensure that all means of

communication is happening.

77



SP Litchfield *3

Program Maoager Director:

^Provided direct support and supervision to Program Managers and the Clinical team

members.

•Monitored all residential and vocational programs; maintained close contact with state

agencies to address issues that required immediate attention.

♦Responsible for maintaining all internal documentation and all documentation going to
state and local agencies.

♦Worked closely with the CEO and VP for all major decisions involving the agency in
the area of Clinical Development and outside contracts.
♦Also worked closely with the MIS Director and Director of Human Resources

pertaining to financial matters and personnel matters.
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MARIE BROCKWAY

Education:

Master of Science, Environmental Studies, Education major

Antioch University New England, Keene NH

Bachelor of Arts, Behavioral Science, History & Philosophy minor

Notre Dame College, Manchester NH

Professional History:

Staff Guardian, TrI-County Community Action Program, Whitefield NH

July 5,2016 to Present

Department of Children and Families, St. Johnsbury VT

October 2015 to June 2016

Deputy Town Clerk/Tax Collector, Bethlehem NH

April 2014 to March 2016

Town Clerk/Tax Collector, Franconia NH

November 2014 to April 2015 (Interim)

Manager, Springfield Humane Society, Springfield VT

January 2007 - January 2014

Assistant Director, Historic Sites, Kansas State Historical Society, Topcka KS

August 2000 - December 2006

Executive Director, Mt Kearsarge Indian Museum, Education and Cultural Center,

Warner NH

December 1997 - December 1999

Consultant, Nez Perce Tribe Wildlife Department - Wolf Reintroduction Project,

Lapwai ID

June 1995 - September 1995 (sabbatical from Director of Youth & Family Services

position)

Director, Youth & Family Services - Town of Hooksett/Hooksett Police

Department/Hooksett District Court, Hooksett NH

September 1985-January 1998 (position overlapped with Indian Museum)
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Areas of Strength;

CommuDication/Education:

* Interact, with public in person, via email and phone in a friendly and professional

manner to answer questions and provide information and services

^Facilitate positive change with individuals and/or groups

♦Cultivate and maintain productive partnerships/relationships with local, state. Tribal
leaders; service agencies, attomey^s, the courts and the community in general, including
donors

♦Collect and interpret prioritized information to determine the least restrictive and most

appropriate outcome for wards

♦Mediate competing interests with individuals, groups and communities
♦Organize and motivate community support groups
♦Facilitate meetings by encouraging individual creativity, a team ̂ roach and reaching
consensus

♦Speak on relevant topics with individuals and groups in community, academic and
political settings

♦Research, collect, organize and write/edit information for dissemination

♦Edit material for accessibility and content

♦Plan and implement special public event

AdministratioD:

♦Ensure all aspects of performance and operations are managed according to the best
practices as recommended by the prevailing industry standards
♦Maintain accurate focus on numerous simultaneously occurring activities and projects
♦Supervise multiple employees and volunteers

♦Manage human resource issues

♦Interview, hire and evaluate employees and volunteers

♦Develop, implement youth services/historical/environmental/animal welfare programs
♦Develop and administer annual budgets
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Board Memberships flnvitationan;

•Identify service gaps, create structure and service delivery plans, develop funding,

coordinate volunteers/employees

♦Project manage interpretive design elements for historic sites including exhibits, written

materials, hands-on components, audio and visual components

♦Review funding requests/proposals and award grant monies
♦Track operational activities

♦Bethlehem Heritage Society, Treasurer - current

♦Lewis & Clark Bicentennial Commemoration, Native American Committee

♦Tallgrass Prairie National Preserve, Cottonwood Falls KS, National Advisory Board

♦Kaw Nation Memorial Heritage Park, Council Grove KS, Master Planning Board

♦Nez Perce Tribe National Trail Committee, Topeka KS, KSHS representative

♦Kansas Historical Markers Committee, Topeka KS, Chair
♦Tri-Town Area Task Force on Domestic Violence, Hooksett NH, Chair

♦Attorney Generars Task Force on Child Abuse and Neglect Prevention, Concord NH

♦Merrimack County Grant review committee, Concord NH

♦Hooksett Emergency Relief Committee, Hooksett NH, founding member
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Kfltherine Mooney

Objective

To obtain a position working and helping others while gaining more knowledge and

experience.

Highlights of Qualifications

Nationally Certified Guardian through the Center for Guardianship Certification since

October 2008

Member of the National Guardianship Association since October 2008

Computer Internet and Research Engines, Microsoft Word, Microsoft PowerPoint, and

Microsoft Excel

Work well independently and in a team

Attention to detail and ability to multitask

Education

Bachelor of Science In Psychology- Plymouth State University, 2007

Concentrations - Mental Health and Psych and Law

Work Experience

Estate Guardian/Conservator/Representative Payee/Estate Administrator

for Tri-County CAP, IncVGuardianship - Whitefield, NH
I

October 2007 - Present

Guardianship services for elderly and incapacitated adults

Provide administrative and estate support to the Director and Associate Director

Oversee Estate Associate

Assist with the running of reports and maintenance of the client database system

Completion of Court required reports, inventories, accountings, motions, etc.

Management of income, benefits, and maintaining a client's estate.

Administrative and financial tasks as instructed
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K Mooney *2

Sales Associate for Jiffy Mart - Lancaster, NH

June 2006 - January 2008

Customer Service

Checking in products and stocking

Observe/card customers for legal purchases Store closing responsibilities

Deli -Preparing Food, Cooking, and Cleaning

Cashier

Data Processor Assistant for Lee F. Carroll, PE - Gorfaam, NH

2001 -2006, As Needed

Assistant typist as needed basis for an electrical engineering company

Rides Attendant for Santa's Village - Jefferson, NH

June 2001 - December 2005

Customer Service/Public Relations, Monitor safety requirements and adherence,

Ticket Sales, Gift Shop
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Patrick GUmartm

Highlights of Qualifications:

Nationally Certified Guardian through the Center for Guardianship Certification

November 5,2005 through November 30,2017

Member of the National Guardianship Association November 5, 2005 through November

30, 2017

Knowledge of public policy and laws regarding the mentally and disabled populations

Vast experience with the DOC population since 1974

Professional Experience:

Guardian Support Coordinator - TrI-County CAP, IncVGuardianship Services

February 2018 - Present

Provide support to other staff members in providing guardianship services.

Public Guardian - Tri-County CAP, IncJGuardianship Services

September 1994 - February 2018

Agent for a court appointed public guardianship agency.

Duties include advocacy, assistance with decision making for mentally incapacitated

adults, court appearances, and preparation and filing of motion.

Residential Staff - Cypress Center

October 1993 - September 1994

Psychiatric assistant in a short-term residential psychiatric care center and respite facility.

Position involved development and implementation of crisis oriented care plans,

conducting treatment and socialization groups, individual counseling, daily

documentation of treatment progress, and operation of the crisis phone line.

Case Manager - The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

December 1979 - May 1987

Service coordinator in a community mental health center.

Responsibilities included coordination of treatment for chronically mentally ill

individuals in various levels of community placements, development and monitoring of

annual treatment plans, crisis intervention and referral to agencies for services as needed.

Group and individual counseling was also provided.
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P GUmartin *2

Residential Coordinator - The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester

April 1981 - February 1982

Coordinator of all residential programs within a community mental health center.

Responsible for the development and oversight of a HUD subsidized psychiatric group

home and hiring and direct supervision of program staff.

Wrote a grant to create a transitional apartment program within residential department

Social Worker 1 - NH State Prison

June 1974 - October 1979

Mental health therapist and case manager within a maximum security prison.

The position began in an autonomous grant funded program providing rehabilitative

treatment to convicted felons. Upon expiration of the grant, the unit became part of the

institution and the focus became case management based. Discharge planning and prison

administrative duties were added.

Assistant Cottage Parent - NH Youth Development Center

January 1974 to June 1974

Supervisor of young offenders in the staters juvenile detention center.

Provide daily routine and structure as well as the maintaining of security in the

institution.

Therapeutic interaction and appropriate role modeling while maintaining proper

boundaries.

Assistance in large group counseling.

Educatfon:

Bachelor of Arts in Psychology- Keene State College, 1973

Bishop Bradley Hi^ School, 1969
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Guardianship Services

JOB DESCRIPTION

Position Title: Office Manager/Benefits Administrator - MR

Responsible To: Director or Designee

Role:

Office Manager: Responsible for the overall running of the guardianship office on a daily

basis. Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable Clerk for program. Private Pay Invoice

Clerk.

Benefits Administrator: To research, secure, protect, and maintain all benefits that wards

and clients are eligible for through State and Federal program. Supdvises - Benefits

Specialist.

Essential Functions & Responsibilities:

♦Guarantee that the guardianship office runs efficiently, smoothly, and in a professional

manner daily per set protocols and procedures. Guarantees that staff associates will meet

identified deadlines, certification and training requirements, and overall program
expectations.

♦Receipt of private revenue, tracking, processing, and reporting by program and

corporation requirements in conjunction with the Director to guarantee consistency in
reporting program revenue.

♦Preparation of private pay invoices on a monthly basis by program protocols and

procedures, including tracking of payments and non-payments for additional finalization.

♦Receipt of program operational invoices from vendors, preparation and processing of

vouchers by program and corporation requirements in conjunction with the Director to

guarantee consistency flow of expenditures.

♦Primary point of contact for all financial associates to request assistance in their

understanding of all benefit programs through the Social Security Administration,
including Medicare and Medicare supplemental insurance plans, and through the

Department of Human Services, including expanded Medicaid supplemental plans,

Medicaid, APTD/Cash, Food Stamps, and Extra Help eligibility. This is in coordination
with the Director as needed. Additionally includes the application process for all

programs.
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Office Manager/Benefits Administrator - MR

Job Description *2

•ORGANIZATION IS ESSEOTIAL.

•Guarantee that office and phone reception is being provided in a professional manner.

•Maintain files in an organized and retrievable manner as outlined by program policies

and procedures. Each file setup should be identical.

•Develop a basic understanding of Guardianship Laws and Responsibilities.

•Perform any and all other duties as deemed necessary by the Director or Designee.

Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:

•Experience: Must have office and business experience.

•Organizational skills needed. Must have a financial skill set.

•Ability to work in short-term, high stress situations. Ability to work independently and

with other people.

•Education: A high school education or GED.

•Job specific skills acquired through on-the-job training.

•Interpersonal Skills Courtesy, tact, and diplomacy are essential elements of the job.

•Work involves much personal contact with others inside and/or outside the organization

for purposes of giving or obtaining information, building relationships, or soliciting

cooperation. Motivation of staff associates is also essential.

•Other Skills Ability to leam and retain multiple regulatory guidelines and requirements.

•Ability to work independently and with others.

•Must have excellent observation and communications skills, both oral and written.

•Ability to work in short-term, high stress situations.

•Knowledge of bookkeeping procedures.

•Computer literacy
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Office Maoager/Benefits Administrator - MR

Job DescriptJon *3

Physical Requirements:

♦The ability to work in conditions that arie compromising relative to the cleaning out of
assigned wards homes, storage units, etc.
♦The ability to lift a minimum of 50 lbs. and/or assist other staff associates with large
furniture or other personal belongings.
♦Work Environment Exposure to unfavorable conditions which may require protective
clothing.
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Guardianship Services

JOB DESCRIPTION

Position Title: Administrative Associate/Payee and Benefits Associate - DFC

Responsible To: Director or Designee

Role:

The primary responsibilities of this position are to provide support, payee, and benefit

services as solely defined.

Essential Functions & Responsibilities:

•Research files, access computer databases, etc. for the preparation of accurate annual

Reports of Persons as required by the Probate Courts including the maintenance of an

Excel Spreadsheet for tracking of filing dates for all wards.

♦Research files, access computer databases, work in conjunction with other staff
members or outside individuals in order to maintain all subsidized housing bmefits for
clients and wards. Indirect supervision of administrative associate/housing duties.
•Meet all wage reporting obligations as required by The Social Security Administration
for continuance of benefits for all clients and wards as identified by program protocols
and requirements in approved format.

•Provide administrative support to staff members as needed or as available time will
allow. Must maintain additional payee duties in the first instance.

•Maintain client and office files in an organized and retrievable manner.
•Develop a basic understanding of Guardianship Laws and Responsibilities.
•Perform any and all other duties as deemed necessary by the Director or Designee.
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:

♦Experience: Must have office and business experience.
•Organizational skills needed. Must have a financial skill set

•Ability to work in short-teim, high stress situations. Ability to work independently and
with other people.
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Administrative Secretary/Payee and Benefits Associate - DFC

Job DescriptioD *2

*Education: A hi^ school education or GED.

*Job specific skills acquired through on the job training.

♦Interpersonal Skills Courtesy, tact, and diplomacy are essential elements of the job.
♦Work involves much personal contact with others inside and/or outside the organization
for purposes of giving or obtaining information, building relationships, or soliciting
cooperation.
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Guardianship Service

JOB DESCRIPTION

Position Title: Administrative Assistant/Reconciliation Clerk -DMC

Responsible To: Director or Designee

Role:

*To provide administrative support to the.program to ensure availability of information
*

by multiple users.

♦To research files to gather information as may be required for mandatory reports and
applications.

Essential Functions & Responsibilities:

♦Reconcile and audit Bank of NH and TD Bank accounts on a monthly basis.
♦Database management including updating of addresses and other essential information
including client wages, entering account balances into the budget database, etc.
Uploading medical documents to the database. Reporting to the Courts when a ward has a
change of address as required either by mail or the new ECourt system.
♦Provide assistance as requested with processing of housing re-certifications and leases.

. ♦Provide assistance in researching-files for the completion of Annual Reports of Person
as required by the Probate Court.

♦Maintain fully documented records by program protocols and procedures.
♦Maintain client and office files in an organized and retrievable maimer.
♦Develop a basic understanding of Guardianship Laws and Responsibilities.
♦Other duties as requested including signing payee disbursement checks, etc.
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:

♦Experience: Must have office and business experience; bookkeeping experience is
required.

♦Education: *A high school education or GED. Accounting certificate preferred.
♦Job specific skills acquired through on the job training.
♦Interpersonal Skills Courtesy, tact, and diplomacy are essential elements of the job.
♦Work involves contact with others inside and/or outside for purposes of giving or
obtaining information, building relationships, or soliciting cooperation.
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Guardianship Services

JOB DESCRIPTION

Position Titie: Office Clerk/Receptionist -AB(PT) and PGerman (FT)

Responsible To: Director or Designee

Role:

♦To SCTve as the first point of contact for outside parties and visitors. Perform

miscellaneous secretarial/receptionist duties in supporting the needs of others in the

organization.

Essential Functions & Responsibilities:

♦Provides office reception to visitors and answers the telephone. Directs or forwards the

visitor or caller to the proper party or takes messages when appropriate.

♦Manages the phone system and fax machine, sending faxes for other departments as

needed; sets procedures for use of phone system and fax madiine, programs machines,

and resolves equipment problems. General office support.

♦Receives and sorts incoming mail for distribution to the appropriate associate. Ensures

that mail requiring signature and return is processed in a timely marmer.
♦Maintains general and administrative files and records. Uploads documents to program

database for use by internal parties.

♦Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:

Experience: Three months to twelve months of similar or related experience.

Education; A high school education or GED.

♦Job specific sjdlls acquired through on the job training.

♦Interpersonal Skills Excellent communication and customer service skills required.

♦Ability to work independently and with others.

♦Woric nonnally involves contacts with persons beyond immediate associates generally
regarding routine matters for purposes of giving or obtaining information which may

require some discussion. Outside contacts take the form of service to the public

(customers or vendors) requiring ordinary courtesy in providing assistance and

information.
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List of Key Personnel with Salaries

Section 15

Key Staff Personnel:

Jeanne Robillard - Chief Executive Officer/Corporation ($115,000.00)

Dawn Ferringo - Division Director/Prevention Services/Coiporation ($49,5(K).00)

Donna Keddy- Program Director ($59,862.00)

Jayne McCabe- Associate Director/Staff Guardian ($48,450.00)

Sandi Caron - Staff Guardian ($29,120.00)

Shcrri Litchfield - Staff Guardian ($29,120.00)

Marie Brockway Staff Guardian ($29,120.00)

Katie Mooney - Estate Guardian ($35,190.00)

Patrick Gilmartin - Guardian Support Coordinator ($27,040.00)

Administrative Support Staff:

Meredith Robinson - Office Manager/Benefits Administrator ($31,500.00)

Diane F. Cross- Administrative Secretary ($29,120.00)

Diane M. Caruso - Administrative Associate ($15,912.00 30 Hrs.)

Pauline German - ReceptionistAVhiteficld Staff ($19,110.00 35 Mrs.)

Andrea Baird - Receptionist/Concord Office ($9,495.00 PT 20 Hrs.)
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